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Vision Mission

Creating Happy People Becoming the Dominant
through Financial Provincial Bank with the
Empowerment. First Choice of the People.
!y
AAN

h\/4

Values

e We value our customers as our lifeline e We strive for excellence in delivering
and thus we provide high priority to their our products and services. For this
needs, aspirations, and values they carry. purpose, we are combining human,

social and technological resources in a

e We take our employees as the greatest meaningful way.
asset of the bank and we are consistently
putting effort in selecting the best e We are practicing routine and continuous
talents, developing them and utilizing small improvements to gain significant
them in the best interest of the employee achievements.

as well as the bank.
e We are striving to create long-term value
e We maintain the highest Integrity and and sustainable growth for the bank and
honesty in what we do and what we say. its employees.
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e Gt A3 geret &0,0¥0/-
9t F3Tol BITel BUS CARNICH-Yed 3,03,%00/-
3. dwdE® - e Shereratt 33.3/-
3. Ui BRIGRT 3fdd ?%WN?;HT% e ¥¥,90,9%C /48
8. 30Y UQMPRIEE STeaT dotd, ofl, el Jfder 9,93,00,9Y/-
3 af oto/0t9
6.9, faawor faazor WfgHf3ren, el e Jlaur! Iha .
q) foraddel 3T 9t WSlog H[IR IS 3,90,000/-
Q) 3G I QG TAIG JAGH ,09,000/-
3) foradarer Tocmeid 9t @A er HaR &. 4% 3¥,000/-
8) IAGET Hadl folell SoliaT (Ia) 9,5,000/-
q. Jaad Afdifa Y) 9GT 9t Sed G{AR Hediel Q,5,000/-
&) VG 9t Jfo@ gerer 9,38,000/-
V) IGT 9t A deuld 3,03,000/-
T) JGed 9t Hfoler el oGy 9,33,000/-
R) WGed G aRd BIGE BIhT 9,9&,000/-
9t YoTol HIFel BUS BAIRRICYH - (Yoeb) 3,03,R00/-
3. g - @ St 23.99%/-
3. UIW BRIGRT 3fAdd ?;IHWM?;QHT;\’I - 8%,83,383/80
8. 367 UGRBRIgE STFH dcld, a7, e JfAEn 9,3%,0],899/93

TSAADEED! TR D, o de JfAen Thatan 3o SUHAATBED! Sodb ol Taid oS ARIed! & |

@



& Sindhu Bikash Bank Ltd.
V. RAct] [P Sab 13T,

U. IRusiigear gfonferal aicdt Tp! cImefier THd

m

F. 3,05,033.50 (3810 &eT o Ui §5TR 36 I dfae wadt T O ) |

. QUT 989 FAIfSTAT HeUfer WRE a1 f[APt IR B FHITeh! faaeur :

JHf Fdaetl fAaeUr T T Feiool AT fAGRUET Scard HEa |

QT q0Y TASTH AFIG HaUell ST HEH! HRARXD! fdaur :
T B! @t TG DIFTell LB Qe |

. I U AT GAfeT Piglet qAfTen AodleTd Al Ufcidgaral Gelldq] Uof 316 dof Hel :

ST |

o

31) FHeal TaTATT :

g g7 PR Paatles AAARG T G IEUE | HITeld Joolld TolAd PeaigEd! GEiagul BraficiddT
Aigcaqul HHDT Tea g, PeaNigED! UVRId GEIdT T SHIdI MfAdfg ot foede UaRd Taa &l | fAfdieer aferer ugie
TTAEEHI 3dg HE T ModNe ST [AFEEels el I dfcies gl g 3Neadl & |

3m) fafdreer SuAfefags :
D TH BRAGEEAR el AR Al Bad THABIIEUd Jodiclel ol AgIm! I fogsigeee! Jfefdgs aca afves! & | I
HfAfAEF AUt AT Il ST RPN Adag folg eeigeap! Mflstell T SRS g 3MTH! & |

q) &/ 3T-BIHIDT 57197 : I ETTSIGIoT ST

3) @fdler/ 3q-aAfHferar GiIeT : JFleT G forareor
Taaaell afdier (AML/CFT)

h. 9. olldl ug
q. 9t Ied H{AR dHcad TSI (TSTAD) .. de ug
Q. UHE Sfae fddhd TG q. 9 3Rd TBIge BIhT ISP (TSAETD)
MeaR aRET TR fAefoTaT q. SNfer faamorehT fAamsitar g G
3. Jgy g .
faemsiter ggre 3. AML/CFT/ Compliance 3fied  Iaed Jfd

Q) A/ FT-THITDT I : SNWH et HHT

&) @3t/ 3T-AATDH 771 : FHefardt dar Gfder Al

h. 9. ollel ug h. 9. ollel ug
q. 4t wfeR e ST (FTETD) q. diafa forerm Soller I3 ST (FoeIh)
Ugel JG Q. UHE BRI 3fIdGd TG
3 9 T N (FToTeT) 3. O e TSI TarE TG
3. UAE Hellelol ifidhd JGe T TG feTorehT fdemsiaT
8. U SNRaer 3ifddd TGy A & 8Lz o

(3) AT ITRIRICADT BRigS:

AT SdHat 3T edeTaly JIAd el AT JMGRATDT BRISHAGE I D! & | SIfthds T Il BRISHFAGE SMIsTel
RPN dAl CIfthds &N IUBUBE fAAeur IRH & | fifdieel TAGTEEaA Ichaldd BRIBAGED! 3RS, SIS F0Id HFdT
PRI, ASGHGE AIABIRD BRIHAGE, Ao ThHesEl BT dal c el Heidh fAqeur qen fafdiest Taessar Secfdst
T IAABIS AAIEE fdaeur ARTH! & |

(%) =1t Aten T BRI :
fIBrT IFd! FRIGT AT I8t 3dd JAdih! AEIHSIC Mol SfoRl IURAT SToliSol fAPdRT Sdbel Mol YTt §fg Tl AT ASaT
U TAM 31T 30MST TGt ANSToll Tl I Jedlfold Hellely STeichrel IRISGE |



G’
EUSCR IR CED

Ueddlig iTUol
UGTel 1St Hgdiol J13q] got Hequf IRREGH ABIdes, Sdha! Iooldd alfdl dgeld, SN I 3T HAollacid! T AoGlel B TechT
& cTATATST T JFUf Hefales Ufd MR TUT UG Idd Qe |

AT UfAAGeABd Sl 3706 dferdll, SRFFRRBA 3T AT Folldol JEIRIcHD JobIaGE UGl dlgfgal Mol al Ted AWUANGIHEE
SHT2T: BAE3IR BANIEC 3 Folol BIhel BUS TAIRRICY adll Sl IR Healot! sAqeTeial Yellddblel Jdl UGTeT e Ea] el IR IASTER
Uol. 318 .Ed.fA. e, Fuiflice fafdics aur 36y Jocgs fdd aur Jg Jediss Ufd Hedldig &Ih Jldf digoeg |

fordus A, siulet Ted Tdedest fafdies, RIS vweus ARy fRfdies, auld ARy a3 for. comde! Sa JTaawuld A9y 3R sIh
AQ HSSTS Ufel 310h ITATAR D! TSI T ET TG |

HodIG |
QIAIGT UG Jagt
3rEA&T, FodleTd AfAfT

@



& Sindhu Bikash Bank Ltd.
V. RAct] [P Sab 13T,

UM ¥oT Q063 DT GBI 90Q DT JUGHI 8 TANIAD! [AAIT
31.d. 20TO/0Cq

&) fIora T FRITR®! Rigadidd :
I UfddGeten efoel JIEa! |

W) AfeT qan srecRificy uRf¥fidae Heuie! PRIARATS $Hof 3T WO HE Al 3R
Ttk Ufdidgeton Tetool IRE |

1) gfcragal aaR el ffarees aiqg add! 3udfed T HIASIAT JTgfUol HAIDT AFTGHAT HoUleid HAfHfcIdh! HIRUT:
qitfeh UfddGetan Heioal TS |

H) Hdoiich! 3NANIF a1 ATHAUS Addad :
St gfddGotan Heldoel oISEaT |

) Fodicid AT HUDY gIHE T Wlh! HIRUT :
SIitfe gfddGeten Hctoal oSEa! |

°) PRIARCTS 3T Ulel HET HRIES :
q) QUDI STl Rl dfhy @oNId A 3N Giolellg Ulel Ufddpel Teld |
J) A5 e JeQ UfaRTEDT BRUT AMSoT G¥ QR N5 Uef Wl IR |
3) Siidet foralgd! rcAraedd HAHAIA HEDH! Hod Gl Ul 3R |
8) QUS! fdey HesIR BQT eaIReY cUUR HICTEC Tof 3R |

) AWMU Uferdgarenl Got BthAd Iecid U] AT Al IUT Aodleld Afdfcrad! Uferasa :
ARG UfAGaTaN e DIbAEE ICAWHTDHIA AU JAAD Afeidel TLRBIAN cIaeTel ol foig el fag b |

ST) ETHIer aiswis aTef IR ST RS Thd :
STHESY |

35) AT STH HEH! HU ST HEPH! AT XN, A IRRH ifFd Fod, XA IR S geioqT 3N A AU HIUsitel
YTt R STFAT IHA T oAl QAT SThd HEUfEg AN AR fASHT It HeUelicl Ut IRl Tha o2l SThd HEd! AALT aud
THd flhdl IR HE AN &I faaeur :
9N ST Slelua |

) fIore 3NPfeh aefer HoUeh T TAD! AGRID B! PRIARSD! Yalfer T Al 3N e 3reda Tga RAfTH! YeRraelida :
faora 3nfefcs Tfem HeUGich! HRITRG! Jalfd ¥ A 3N TR 3lecadl gl RAfdd! Jelvidelidel QBRI Falford gl adl IH HaUsiid!
AENID BTGl oead! |

Rrfe 31M.9. 00]/0T0 3MM.d. 30T0/0Tq afg uferera
gohr Yot YY0,8¥8,0§0.9% YY0,8¥8,0§0.9% 0.007
el JFufd ¥,330,8%8,0&0.00 &,837,950,330.00 0.TY
Tl forgu Jhetol 8,003,999,999.00 ¥,08Q,08T,993.00 0.9
el Dol JUE qaT st 3,0§3,933,03R.§0 3,0§0,09¥,933.50 ARAVA
WG FeDT (B2 AN (T0,393,9¥¥.9V) R,&6C0,¥8&.Q0  990.9%7%

T) Sl AT AP AgIIS Holoilal NMAS AT HFUool IRD! Y[ FRIARGS T A AT HeUeficd! BRIARAT MTH!
Tt Ageaguf uRdefal :
I BTGB! TERID HFUel oRad! | ddal M I 0T0/0T9 AT IRD! TiW HRITREE Jedoeidl 31.d. 0T0/009 & g fagwur
AT HctoaT ANTH! |

ﬁ
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¥ ufaaga

3) fdore 3nf¥fe quferr HeUsiih! MR IRRUGIIgEA HeUollclly IUcTedl IRTED! SMADBIS
Pl STeIPpel U FORTED! |

8) faora 3nf¥fes aufer Heucfiadl Todlcied dAT URINIGRIgEA felud! AT Fdifdicdd! fAaeul, Helolidl AT HRIARA
foToTg® TetooT IP! HE Al Fddotel foloTgHdic Halailct UL LI SIS :

f.5. IoaIeid dAT UGS EIgED! ard ug IR A=A
q. 9t FHefaret ot (Ufafeife- 9t Gige TG Jag) 3ETH 3%%,&&9
Q. 9t forem SolaT Iva el Y .¥0g
3. Jfor@ gemet PaE53 o <) 9,800
8. dod RPN hcdlel Hodleldh 900
Y. JfeR demfa Jodleld 900
&. od SBIGY Il Iddesl Hodeldh -

Fiole® IRRN HRIANET Mool I8 e dIaN dqot Soldlel sleled! |

@) faora 3nf¥fe adfen weusiivior Heafotiad AFBIAGEAT Gt HodIeTd AT folsTd! ATAGRG! Afehord Farfd! aRAT IUcTa
IRTESD! SoTDIEID! TG :
3 AFTGEA Gol STIDIl U SORED! |

UT) SHoUicl 3MEa IRT IMB A WRE IR 3T A Mgl IR WRE Ifd! HIRUT, ¥ AATH H&AT ¥ 3 e am
IS IR WG IRAIUT HUdiled Hehlol AT Tha :
faora 3nfdfes asf Q0T0,/0TA F HeUslicl 3Mhsht IR 3Mbal WG TR |

d) 3Nl foTAeoIUT YUTEt U aT sleiUah! T U] HE A &I fadd fageor:
I IS SHA UGG 3Medd foIIeUT YU sIaTAThIentsr fafdteet siifa, forerer, foigfordT den drffafies afamort ARprRd! der 3
B JHIdDI BRIfcadeidleliar fdfdiest Al qer IuAfdfdas e JREd! dar fdetgs WsT a1t SRIfeael ol ! & |

) fAora 3nf¥fe aefdl et caaraUe Eefd! fagwor :

far.of. fdaeur IHA &.
q et @ Q0,9&,00,993 /-
Q BRI Jodlelol Wef ¥,0¥,00,9¥& /-

?) AWMU ANIIDT AGRAGE D! alleTdet! foroTgeal YTt IR UIRHf3rehs, ol aem Jfawr, I AfHfrA IRB HTeT SdRAGIH!
fdaeor T &A@ AfHfA Fot Pob1a et sie At faaeor :

fa.5. Todicie a2 UGHABEIgE®! oildl ug IHHA &.
ST Gt o HAR PHedld F QT,000/-
q. ed¥es AWMU AAc (I55. ¥3 ¥ ¥&) Iy 9 ¥olig IS -
IS I Gt Afga fafe -
ST It GrEige NG Jagt ¥ Q0,000/-
Q. 3Mede AWMU TfAT (35h.90 A &0) JGT 9t fSdlig Is6 -
I wfta Gt Afga

ST F. ¥§,000/-
31.d. 0T0/0TA & 3MedRd AWURGIUT AAID! §6H © Uch a3t SModd AEUNGIUA T¥dd NG UdAGI3UR &althd dre! fafdeet
Wwiﬂﬁ@aﬁl

) AUIeIP, Udet Hodlcld, PRIGRI U, Haloiic! MR A6 aT farsTa! afSTh ! aldgR aT forsT Helod T@H! e,
S a1 HoIfST HEATA HUSHATS ot IHHA ebI3al AID! Tg A H |
Foellelds, Udet! Foglield, BRIl U, dHaUelicl 3MURd ORIEEN dl folsid! dfSihad slidgR dl folsT Hctool Il df, halalt dl
TS TEATR HFUGIATY Fot Thel JbI3el aldht B! |

@



& Sindhu Bikash Bank Ltd.
V. RAct] [P Sab 13T,

o) AodIeTd, Ydet! Aodlcld, HIADR] YHH AT UGIMABTIg ST fchlol eEd! TSI HaT 2 JfIendt T :

fa.d. Toarce a2 UGiaRigE®! ol ug ThA &.
q) forgcamet 3ETgT Gt Isleq HAR ASS 3,90,000/-
Q) 3G I NG TG JagH ,09,000/-
3) foracianer Toaaid St fEerer GaR &. 51 3¥,000/-
8) TGS Werar fole SoeT (2US3) 9,600,000/~
q Joarad Afefd Y) IGT Gt Sod HAR dedid 9,600,000/~
&) TG 9 JAfS1a gernet 9,38,000/-
0) TG 9t AR Heufd 3,03,000/-
T) I 9t Jforat alreT AT 9,383,000/~
]) UG 91t o TBIGY DIch! 9,9&,000/-
9t YTol PHITel BUS TARNICH - (o) 3,909,800/~
9 AERE - wef ohererat 2393/~
9t U FAR IS
3 Ui BRIGR! 3fdd S 8%,83,389/80
8 3 IGRaREE ST dleld, 3Tl doll 36 Jfdurgs 9,9%,0Q,899/99
U) AuneiigeEa gfenferer aiat Tga! clleNier IH
F. 3,09,033/50 (3re=qt e @ Ul goTe 316 I dfdh 0T UarT O )
W) QBT 989 JafoTd Jeufer WRE aT AP IRSB FHRId! fdaeur
THeUell ol Q0&3 DI QI 989 JallfoTd HU WG dl fdd! ORI |
q) QW 90y TANMTH AFdg HeUell dId HED! HRIARD! fAd0T :
QW AUy FAfSTH Jedg HeUel diT HRIER T |
#) T Vol AT YafeTd Slofel dANSTH FoATeTd AfetfcTd! Ufcragordll FeATSqUol 316 Fat Bl
ST Tol e Ualfeld Plfel Falford Jodeld Hfdfdd! Ufddgersll Je3qUe! 36T KBS ololed! |
&) 3cd MAYAD HRIg:
TQ A Seere IfRABEDY |
o Ui UAE HRIGIRT JAfeNdd Eures) JsTol PItel BUS TARRICH
TIcS TPHIFeCoTy
feram Safet Iss THod AN Hedle afre semfe ¥ TEIGT PIAT
JAD JAD TS Iddedl ATed

fafa: Q0Ta/90/8
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DIUMT Yol Q063 DT GBI 90Q DT JUGHI 8 TANIAD! [AAIT
311.d. 200Q/0CTO

&) fIora T FRITR®! Rigadidd :
I UfddGeten efoel JIEa! |

W) AfteT qan sreceificy uRf¥fceae Hauia! PRIARATS dHof 3T R HE Al 3R
Ttk Ufdidgeton Tetool IRE |

1) gfcragal aaR el ffcreed arq] aufd! Iucfed ¥ HIATHAT ITgfUol FHRIHT AedoHAT HoUleld AfHfcid! HIRUT:
qitfeh UfddGetan Heioal TS |

H) Hdoiich! 3NANIF a1 ATHAUS Addad :
St gfddGotan Heldoel oISEaT |

) Fodicid AT HUDY gIHE T Wlh! HIRUT :
SIitfe gfddGeten Hctoal oSEa! |

°) PRIGRCS AR Ulol J&T HIES :
Q) Ul IsTolfdes 3MeRd AT comId THT 3Nffd Qers Ul Ufddme Jord |
q) A>F G TeQ! UASTEHT HRUT AMfSfeT G¥ FfFder g Uof Aot 3R |
3) Siidet foralgd! rcAraedd HAHAIA HEDH! Hod Gl Ul 3R |
8) QU 3rfdey HASIY GG oI UR HICEIE Uof 3R |

) AWMU Uferdgarenl Got BthAd Iecid U] AT Al IUT Aodleld Afdfcrad! Uferasa :

ARG UfdGeTaN Heled DIbAdEE Iead EDIA Al UL JSUAd Alddel JURDICH cAGTATelals folq el [Gg Tdad! |

ST) ETHIer aiswis aTef IR ST RS Thd :
STHESY |

35) IR ST HUSD! T SThd HEUD! IR HET, el M 3ifhd Hed, Il AW FHd galetoe! 30NA A aUd Heloilal
YTt R STFAT IHA T oAl QAT SThd HEUfEg AN AR fASHT It HeUelicl Ut IRl Tha o2l SThd HEd! AALT aud

T fipdf a3l HE A & fageur :
IRV SThd STHEd! |

31) faoret 3Nffeh THAT HFUGH T TAD! AGIAD HdUeiih! PRIARD Yolfel T A 3N aefehl 3recda ITgah! RAfcrad! GoRidelida :
faora 3nfefes Tfem HeUGchl HRITRG! Jolfd T A 3N TR 3ecadl gl RAfdd! Jelvidelidel QBRI Faford gl adl IH HaUsiid!

TENID DUl TRBH! |

fRrfes 3M.d. 00T/ 00] 311.9. 0]/0T0 afg uferera
gohr Yot ¥¥0,89&,060.9% Y¥0,8¥&,060.9% 0.00%
T T Y,930,809,808.98  ¥,390,838,0§0.00 -3.097
T foga Jdbetol 8,07Y¥,000,999.00 8,003,999,999.00 .03/
T Dol ATET T Foreit 3,.3%3,0VRR8.00  3,0§3,933,03%.§0 -§.00%
WG FelhT (B 3fTd) 08,987,290.00 (T0,393,9Y5.90)  -800.¥37

T) SHell dAT TAD! AGIIS HaUaiiel NMAH THAT HoUoal IRD! YA FRIAREE ¥ AN AT HoUoiich! BRIARA MBI

Tt Fgeayul uRacla :

I HFETGHD! JBNID HeUsl e d! | ddbal 3Mfd asf QOVR /TO AT IRDI THE PRIANES Hedced 31.d. 900R/0T0 P fadiT fageor

T HeTooT AMTH! |

W



& Sindhu Bikash Bank Ltd.
V. RAct] [P Sab 13T,

3) fAord 3nffes aefar HeUsiia! MR TGS HoUailelly IUcTe IRTESD! STADINI :
Pl STIDIe SUAE STORTEDT |

8) faora snf¥fes afdr FHeUslidl IAouUdd dAT UGMIGRIgEA foltdl IS Fifdlcad! fAaeul, HeUolid! IAT HRIGRET
foToTg® TctooT Igeh! HT AN Adotiel fololgeale Haloiict UL 13! SioThIeT

5. Foareie a2 UgIfiaigEat aret ug R &
q. SNeg HAR IS e aRYAN
Q. Dl Joohy (Ufafafd-fgarer R &.51.) ol 3%R,6&9
3. forem Sollar S Foclieldh Y.Y0&
8. Jf31a eret D 9,800
Y. Icd GAR Hedid D Qo0
& Jfe Dl FEAD Qo0
0. Jforet areT AT Iddeol Aodeld 0

Toles IR BRIARA el I8 SRadIEN qol Seidlel sleled! |

@) faora 3nf¥fes aufar FHeuchieor Heafotia AehlagEall Gal AoAETd AT foToTd! FAGRS! Afehold FarAd! ARAT IUcTa
IRTED! STTBIEID! GIRT :
A JeGoEe Gt SISl U FTORTED! |

UT) HeUehicl Ml AL IMB A WRE IRDI AT cAAL! Mgl AT WG Ifd! HRUT, AT ISP A& T 3ifHd o aen
It AR WRE IRAUA STl HThlol IRDI I
fqora 3nfefes aef Q0VR/0TO A FHeUslial 3MEel IR 3Mbdl WRG ORI |

) 3ol foRIGAUT YUTTEl 3E aT FTHED! T HEH T A &Y faecd fdaqeor :
I AP ddbel Jgo INMeaRd foIeoUT JUTEh! sUqeIdlantl fdfdieal aifd, forid, QT den GRARES dgfaon cRpRd! dar
AP TeAIADIe! DrIfeadeicplelial ffdioet Sl qAT SUARIBEE ISeT AREDH! Tl f[FMIBEE FST 3t HRAfeael ol IND & |

o) 3ot 3nffd afd! et AU e fdawor :

fa.of. fdaeur IHA &.
q et "\ R,98,6R,%¥%& /-
Q DRIl Jchelel Wl 8,9¥,90,39C/-

?) AEWUIETUT AHIIDT AGTAGE D! aileTdct! forolgeal YTt AR UIRHf3eh, 3w aem Jfawn, 3 Al IR HTeT BrRAgId!
fdaeur T & AfHferet ot FehTa fFud! 3E Al fdqeur :

.5, FoaIcId a2 UGIteRigEad! ollel ug IHA &.
IoTd 9t fGoler AR & S & T,000/-
9. 3MedN® AWMU AfAfd JGHT It FEReraT fOrdt -
TG Ifda 9t A grerel
3na. omq/ocommmm%ﬁMBma@meWmmmwm
HIPIABE Uglel JREH! |

) HUIeIP, Udot HAIcTd, PRIGIRI U, Holoilc! MU A aT forsTa! afSTh ! sl aT forsT Hctod T@d! e,
St a1 HaIfSA ATATA HoUeliclls GHot THH b3l didt Ig A T |
Joelelds, Udetl Joleld, BRIGI U, dHeUelic! MR d IRIEGH dl folsid! AfSThaT slidgR d folsT Hctool Il Hdf, delslt dl
TS TEATR HFUGHAT Fot bl gIbI3el aldht B |

ﬁ
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o) AAIeTD, Udot! HoUIeTdh, PRIGIE YA AT UGHUBRIgEels 3ehloil ARTDH! TRl ol o Jfund! I

fa.d. Toarce a2 UGiaRigE®! ol ug ThA &.
3G Gt ASeGRAR ASS 9,88,600.00
I Gadt forem Solet (2rsa) 9,80,050.00
I Gt Sed [AR DHedd 9,30,000.00
q T At I 9t fGorer HaR @, 9,39,¥¥0.00
I@TT Gt Hfdw demia 9,8%,200.00
I Gt Jfolet et 2T Q,98,900.00
G 9t fota gEne 9,80,050.00
4t FoTel BTl BUS BN H- Yo 3,99,R00/-
q awEmRE® - AEStgT @t R3]/~
_— 9t A FAR IS
? = acid, ofdl el 36 Jfder RRROAT/NE
8 3Y TQIeRKies STET dctd, Tl ol 316y Jfdess 9,93,00,99Y/-
U) AuneiigeEa gfenferer aiat Tga! clleNier IS
F. 3,09,033/50 (&=t et @ Ui goTe 316 I dfdh F0dT UarT S )
W) GWBT 989 JafoTd Jeufer WRE aT AP IRSB FHRId! fdaeur
THeUell ol Q0&3 DI QI 989 JallfoTd HU WG dl fdd! ORI |
q) QWT 90y TANMTH AFdg HeUell dId HED! HRIARD! fAd0T :
QW AUy FAfSTH Jedg HeUel diT HRIER T |
#) T Vol AT YafeTd Hlofel TANSTH FodATeTd AfetfcTd! Ufcragordll FeATSqUol 316 Fot Gl
ST Tol e Ualfeld dlofel Falford Jodleld Hfdfdd! Ufddgersl Je3qUe! 36T KBS loled! |
&) 3Mcd MAYAD HRg:
Jd A Ieerd AR ABE |
Hforem IgR Y aDIeT TG UG Jagt fa.e. gora s
o Ui UAE HRIGI JfeNdd 3T JsTol PItel BUS TARRICH
TIcS TPHIFeCoTy
AR Hgrafe THod HFAR Hedret fore Ealtet Sss A TEIgE BIDBI
TS ToTAD D Tgded oD

fafa: Q0Ta/20/Q8

@



& Sindhu Bikash Bank Ltd.
V. RAct] [P Sab 13T,

fRIGIUST Gal qel foTsBIRToT foradiact!,
Q003 I 3T 2§ DI 3U forerdt () AT AJd ot Gl

&) FoaIed Afifcrd Uferdger:
Id UfAAGTHIN Hetoel B |

) AEUSIgTh S Uferagor:
TN gfdgeTar Feloel B! |

;) AEUSIETOT HEe! faefta faaeor:
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andent Auditor’s Report
slders of Sindhu Bikash Bank Ltd.

a the Audit of the Financial Statements

-«d the General Purpose financial statements of the M/S Sindhu Bikash

_ne “Bank"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at Ashadh

(July 15, 2024), and the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive

ae, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then

.ded, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements presents fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the company as at Ashadh 31, 2081 ( July 15, 2024) and
of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (N5As). Our
responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our Report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics
Jfor Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAN's Handbook of Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. In addition to the basis of opinion, we have determined the following matters
as key audit matters for the current period to communicate in our report-
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N
i;. Key Audit Matters Audit's Response
1.| Impairment of Loans and
Advances
We approached the verificaon of
Directive 4 issued by NRB requires | impairment of loans and advances by way
that a bank shall measure | of:
impairment loss on loans and
advances at the higher of- - Review the performing and non-
performing status of loans and advances
e The amount derived as per by obtaining data from the system and
norms prescribed by Nepal matching the same with the NRB 2.2
Rastra Bank for loan loss report.
provisioning; and
- Review of corporate and branches level
o Amount determined adopting credit files based on systematic
Incurred Loss Model as per the sampling to map contemporary and
Carve out provided on NFR5 9 merging risks in different industry
financial instruments- segments and nations as a whole,
impairment. specifically due to COVID-19 and
international wars.
Impairment of loans and advances
under incurred loss model requires | -  Duly reviewing the policy framework
assessment of future cash flows as and Walked through the practice
well as historical loss experiences adopted by the bank for credit operation
of portfolios. On the other hand, during the year as per regulator norms.
impairment of loans and advances
under NRB norms for loan loss | - Assessing the single obligor norms,
provisioning require assessment of multi-banking facility, and consortium
the overdue status of loans and financing and segmental credit exposure
advances and proper utilization of and reporting of the bank,
loans for the intended purpose.
Significant estimates and
assumptions were used by the
management in such calculations.
2.| Bank's IT System and MIS Our audit approach regarding obtaining
reliance on Bank's IT systems included the
The _Bank's key f‘i.namfial following procedures: i
accounting  and  reporting | . Oppained and inspected the change
processes are highly dependent on management policies and for a sample
:ﬁ‘;;:?rm:mi;:“{zﬂls over H‘: of changes in inputs and control
| i i L functions on the system, has been
that gaps in the change| . jowed to confirm that changes had
management, segregation of duties | pooy performed in line with approved
or user access management desisions.
controls  (in  relation to  key
W
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Key Audit Matters Audit’s Response

Z o

financial accounting and reporting | - Tested a sample of the automated
systems) may undermine our controls that are designed to enforce
ability to place some reliance appropriate segregation of duties.
thereon in our audit - Tested the design, operation and
effectiveness of control over granting,
removal and appropriateness of access
rights on the accounting and reporting
system of the bank.

We have tested a sample of outputs
particularly interest income and expenses
on loans and advances of the system
through manual calculations,

3.| Prompt Corrective Action Our audit has duly checked this area of

reporting and compliances by way of -

- Reviewing initial action points progress
and latest communication with
regulator

-  Enquiry and interview with senior
management and board of directors
about the progress.

Nepal Rastra Bank has took
Prompt Corrective Action due to
downgrading of some high value
credit resulting to addition of loan
loss provision for the financial year
2079-80 and continued during the
fiscal year under audit.

Other Information

Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is material misstatement of the other information, we are
required to report that fact.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

'E\ w'-l.__
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
ErTOr.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit committee as those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatement can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control.

e
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« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the company to express an opinion on
the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the company audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on the requirements of Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 and
Companies Act, 2063

As per Section 66(3) of Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 we declare that-

* replies to the queries as per the demand were provided,

* the balance sheet, off-balance sheet transactions, profit and loss account, except
for the effects of the matters prescribed in the basis of opinion section of our
report, cash flow statement and other financial statements, as well, have been
prepared in such format and in accordance with such procedures as prescribed

L
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by the Rastra Bank, and whether or not they actually matched with the accounts,
records, books and ledgers maintained by the bank and financial institution,

* the accounts, records, books and ledgers have been maintained accurately in
accordance with prevailing laws,

* any official of the bank or financial instituon has not committed any act
contrary to the prevailing laws or committed any irregularity or caused any loss
or damage to the bank or financial institution,

» credits have been written off as per the Credit Write-off Byelaws or directives of
the Rastra Bank,

* the transactions of the financial institution have been carried on in a satisfactory
manner as prescribed by the Rastra Bank,

* matters to be informed to the shareholders have been adequately provided in
notes to accounts and other disclosure

We did not come across, based on our audit, cases of accounting related fraud and the
cases where the board of directors or any director or any office bearer of the Bank has
acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the Bank or
committed any misappropriation of the funds of Bank and materially complied with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2063 as well.

%

Laba Kumar Khatri | Partner

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: Poush 29, 2081
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Statement of Financial Position

As on 31st Asar, 2081

Group Bank
Particulars Note Asar end 2081 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2081 Asar end 2080
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 41 813,215,761 665,138,048 813,215,761 665,138,048
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 139,936,167 175,007,227 139,936,167 175,007,227
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 43 - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 44 - - - -
Other Trading Assets 4.5 - - - -
Loans and Advances to BFIs 4.6 273,245,826 493,727,509 273,245,826 493,727,509
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7 3,587,469,306 3,268,406,331 3,587,469,306 3,268,406,331
Investment Securities 4.8 1,064,946,108 324,415,830 1,064,946,108 324,415,830
Current Tax Assets 49 30,395,165 6,943,059 30,395,165 6,943,059
Investment in Subsidiaries 4.10 - - - -
Investment in Associates 4.1 - - - -
Investment Property 4.12 136,189,005 53,034,175 136,189,005 53,034,175
Property and Equipment 413 213,148,296 221,845,063 213,148,296 221,845,063
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.14 1,919,544 2,145,949 1,919,544 2,145,949
Deferred Tax Assets 4.15 15,277,755 12,384,298 15,277,755 12,384,298
Other Assets 4.16 162,407,393 104,447,278 162,407,393 104,447,278
Total Assets 6,438,150,327 5,327,494,767 6,438,150,327 5,327,494,767
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417 - - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 419 - - - -
Deposits from Customers 4.20 5,892,048,223 4,873,221,121 5,892,048,223 4,873,221,121
Borrowings 4.21 8,394,981 15,000,000 8,394,981 15,000,000
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 9,713,418 - 9,713,418 -
Provisions 4.22 - - - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 415 - - - -
Other Liabilities 4.23 174,030,883 117,583,506 174,030,883 117,583,506
Debt Securities Issued 4.24 - - - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - - - -
Total Liabilities 6,084,187,504 5,005,804,627 6,084,187,504 5,005,804,627
Equity
Share Capital 4.26 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067
Share Premium - - - -
Retained Earnings (371,784,191) (360,814,369) (371,784,191) (360,814,369)
Reserves 4.27 168,290,946 125,048,442 168,290,946 125,048,442
Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders 353,962,823 321,690,140 353,962,823 321,690,140
Non Controlling Interest - -
Total Equity 353,962,823 321,690,140 353,962,823 321,690,140
Total Liabilities and Equity 6,438,150,327 5,327,494,767 6,438,150,327 5,327,494,767
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 4.28 42,945,397 1,375,000 42,945,397 1,375,000
Net Assets Value per share 63.50 57.71 63.50 57.71
As per our report of even date
Sunita Baidar Suresh Devkota Damodar Prasad Subedi FCA Laba Kumar Khatri
Account & Finance Head Chief Executive Officer Chairman Partner
Neeva Dangol Shrestha Basanta Kumar Katwal Sameer Kakshapati Bharat Bahadur Karki Sujan Kafle & Associates
Director Director Director Director

29th Poush, 2081 | Banepa, Kavre
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EULCRREED
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31st Asar, 2081
Group Bank
Particulars Note Asar end 2081 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2081 Asar end 2080
Interest Income 4.29 584,111,614 601,850,503 584,111,614 601,850,503
Interest Expense 4.30 392,658,640 418,469,234 392,658,640 418,469,234
Net Interest Income 191,452,974 183,381,269 191,452,974 183,381,269
Fee and Commission Income 4.31 23,482,959 19,596,857 23,482,959 19,596,857
Fee and Commission Expense 4.32 1,573,768 3,550,040 1,573,768 3,550,040
Net Fee and Commission Income 21,909,191 16,046,817 21,909,191 16,046,817
Net Interest, Fee and Commisson Income 213,362,164 199,428,086 213,362,164 199,428,086
Net Trading Income 4.33 - - - -
Other Operating Income 4.34 3,420,855 3,102,502 3,420,855 3,102,502
Total Operating Income 216,783,020 202,530,588 216,783,020 202,530,588
mpairment Charge/ (Reversal)for Loans and Other - 35 10,859,105 319,113,840 10859105 319,113,840
Net Operating Income 205,923,915 (116,583,252) 205,923,915 (116,583,252)
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 4.36 101,677,123 92,469,956 101,677,123 92,469,956
Other Operating Expenses 4.37 50,570,256 45,577,328 50,570,256 45,577,328
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.38 23,995,990 25,682,619 23,995,990 25,682,619
Operating Profit 29,680,546 (280,313,155) 29,680,546 (280,313,155)
Non Operating Income 4.39 - - - -
Non Operating Expense 4.40 - - - -
Profit Before Income Tax 29,680,546 (280,313,155) 29,680,546 (280,313,155)
Income Tax Expense 4.41
Current Tax - 9,713,418 - 9,713,418
Deferred Tax (732,317) 3,731,234 (732,317) 3,731,234
Profit for the Year 30,412,863 (293,757,807) 30,412,863 (293,757,807)
Profit Attributable to:
Equity-holders of the Bank 30,412,863 (293,757,807) 30,412,863 (293,757,807)
Non-Controlling Interest
Profit for the Year 30,412,863 (293,757,807) 30,412,863 (293,757,807)
Earnings per Share
Basic Earnings per Share 5.46 (52.70) 5.46 (52.70)
Diluted Earnings per Share 5.46 (52.70) 5.46 (52.70)

As per our report of even date

Sunita Baidar Suresh Devkota Damodar Prasad Subedi FCA Laba Kumar Khatri
Account & Finance Head Chief Executive Officer Chairman Partner
Sujan Kafle & Associates
Neeva Dangol Shrestha Basanta Kumar Katwal Sameer Kakshapati Bharat Bahadur Karki
Director Director Director Director

29th Poush, 2081 | Banepa, Kavre
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31st Asar, 2081

Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2081 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2081 Asar end 2080
Profit for the year 30,412,863 (293,757,807) 30,412,863 (293,757,807)
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Income Tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losse;) from investment in equity instruments meas- (7,042,871) (1,877,568) (7,042,871) (1,877,568)
ured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revaluation - - - -
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (160,929) 8,937,028 (160,929.00) 8,937,028
Income tax relating to above items 2,161,140 (2,117,838) 2,161,140 (2,117,838)
z"ctla":s':g';;"t';";:z?l‘:’;i'}’:sL“‘°me that will not be (5,042,660) 4,941,622 (5,042,660) 4,941,622
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial i i i i
assets of foreign operation)
Income tax relating to above items - - - -
Reclassify to profit or loss - - - -
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be i i ) )
reclassified to profit or loss
c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate i i ) )
accounted as per equity method
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, Net of Income Tax (5,042,660) 4,941,622 (5,042,660) 4,941,622
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 25,370,203 (288,816,186) 25,370,203 (288,816,186)
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:
Equity-Holders of the Bank 25,370,203 (288,816,186) 25,370,203 (288,816,186)
Non-Controlling Interest
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 25,370,203 (288,816,186) 25,370,203 (288,816,186)
As per our report of even date
Sunita Baidar Suresh Devkota Damodar Prasad Subedi FCA Laba Kumar Khatri
Account & Finance Head Chief Executive Officer Chairman Partner
Sujan Kafle & Associates
Neeva Dangol Shrestha Basanta Kumar Katwal Sameer Kakshapati Bharat Bahadur Karki
Director Director Director Director

29th Poush, 2081 | Banepa, Kavre
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31st Asar, 2081
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081  Asar End 2080  Asar End 2081  Asar End 2080
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 531,720,665 606,940,615 531,720,665 606,940,615
Fee and Other Income Received 23,482,959 19,596,857 23,482,959 19,596,857
Dividend Received - -
Receipts from Other Operating Activities 1,991,187 1,274,741 1,991,187 1,274,741
Interest Paid (392,658,640) (411,649,283) (392,658,640) (411,649,283)
Commissions and Fees Paid (1,573,768) (3,550,040) (1,573,768) (3,550,040)
Cash Payment to Employees (103,845,802) (93,805,230) (103,845,802) (93,805,230)
Other Expenses Paid (50,570,256) (62,594,929) (50,570,256) (62,594,929)
Operating Cash Flows before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities 8,546,345 56,212,730 8,546,345 56,212,730
(Increase)/ Decrease in Operating Assets =
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 35,071,061 (87,347,930) 35,071,061 (87,347,930)
Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions - - - -
Other Trading Assets - - - -
Loans and Advances to BFIs 223,665,379 (49,119,120) 223,665,379 (49,119,120)
Loans and Advances to Customers (313,648,073) (36,965,292) (313,648,073) (36,965,292)
Other Assets (84,548,765) (302,590,616) (84,548,765) (302,590,616)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities - -
Due to Banks and Financials Institutions - - - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Deposit from Customers 1,018,827,102 87,451,000 1,018,827,102 87,451,000
Borrowings (6,605,019) (5,000,000) (6,605,019) (5,000,000)
Other Liabilities 48,871,769 (996,288) 48,871,769 (996,288)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities before Tax Paid 930,179,800  (338,355,516) 930,179,800  (338,355,516)
Income Tax Paid 732,317 (13,444,652) 732,317 (13,444,652)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 930,912,116  (351,800,168) 930,912,116  (351,800,168)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Investment Securities (740,530,279) (21,094,824) (740,530,279) (21,094,824)
Receipts from Sale of Investment Securities - 974,182 - 974,182
Purchase of Property and Equipment (14,841,776) (38,438,557) (14,841,776) (38,438,557)
Receipts from Sale of Property and Equipment - - - -
Purchase of Intangible Assets (231,041) (431,638) (231,041) (431,638)
Purchase of Investment Properties - - - -
Receipts from Sale of Investment Properties (83,154,830) 24,468,938 (83,154,830) 24,468,938
Interest Received 52,634,036 48,838,923 52,634,036 48,838,923
Dividend Received 1,429,668 853,579 1,429,668 853,579
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (784,694,223) 15,170,604  (784,694,223) 15,170,604
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Issue of Debt Securities - - - -
Repayments of Debt Securities - - - -
Receipts from Issue of Subordinated Liabilities - - - -
Repayments of Subordinated Liabilities - - - -
Receipt from Issue of Shares - - - -
Dividends Paid - - - -
Interest Paid - - - -
Other Receipts/Payments 1,859,819 826,379 1,859,819 826,379
Net Cash from Financing Activities 1,859,819 826,379 1,859,819 826,379
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 148,077,713  (335,803,186) 148,077,713  (335,803,186)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Shrawan 01, 2080 665,138,048  1,000,941,234 665,138,048  1,000,941,234
Effect of Exchange Rate fluctuations on Cash and Cash Equivalents Held
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Asar End 2081 813,215,761 665,138,048 813,215,761 665,138,048
As per our report of even date
Sunita Baidar Suresh Devkota Damodar Prasad Subedi FCA Laba Kumar Khatri
Account & Finance Head Chief Executive Officer Chairman Partner
Neeva Dangol Shrestha Basanta Kumar Katwal Sameer Kakshapati Bharat Bahadur Karki Sujan Kafle & Associates
Director Director Director Director

29th Poush, 2081 | Banepa, Kavre
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Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31st Asar, 2081 (As per NRB Regulation)

Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2081 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2081 Asar end 2080
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 30,412,863 (293,757,807) 30,412,863 (293,757,807)
Appropriations:
a. General reserve (6,082,573) - (6,082,573) -
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund - -
c. Capital redemption reserve - -
d. Corporate social responsibility fund (304,129) - (304,129) -
e. Employees’ training fund (2,774,099) (2,835,077) (2,774,099) (2,835,077)
f. Other - -

a) Bonus share - - - -

b) Cash Dividend Paid - - - -

¢) Investment Adjustment Fund - - - -

d) CSR Expenses 243,173 372,860 243,173 372,860

e) Staff Training Expenses 1,671,878 1,206,506 1,671,878 1,206,506
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 23,167,113 (295,013,518) 23,167,113 (295,013,518)
Regulatory adjustment :

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) 2,534,285 (11,305,818) 2,534,285 (11,305,818)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) - - - -
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/ i i i i

reversal (+)

d f::erfsg’la('l)bss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/ (34,369,738) 15,415,431 (34,369,738) 15,415,431
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) (2,893,456) 5,849,072 (2,893,456) 5,849,072
f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) - - - -
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) - - - -
h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) - - - -
i. Other (+/-) - -

- Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investment Securities (4,930,010) (1,314,297) (4,930,010) (1,314,297)
(';';::;‘l’ftiitof:’ theyear end 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024) for 16 199 805)  (286,369,130)  (16,491,805) (286,369,130
Opening Balance in Retained Earnings (355,292,386) (74,445,239) (360,814,369) (74,445,239)
Adjustment(+,-) 5,521,984 - 5,521,984 -
Distributions:

Bonus Shares Issued - - - -
Cash Dividend Paid - - - -
Total Distributable profit or (Loss) as on 31 Ashad 2081 (15 (371,784,191) (360,814,369) (371,784,191) (360,814,369)

July 2024)

Annualised Distributable Profit/Loss per share

ﬁ
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Financial
Statements, unless otherwise indicated.

1. Reporting Entity
SINDHU BIKASH BANK is a “B” class development bank operating in 5 districts i.e., Sindhupalchowk, Kavrepalanchowk,
Dolakha, Chitwan and Makawanpur. It was established in Bhadra 22, 2067 i.e., September 7, 2010.

This bank is licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank (Central Bank of Nepal) as Class “B” Development Bank and running under
the Company Act & Bank & Financial Institution Act of Nepal. The Bank is listed on Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd and its
stock symbol is “SINDU".

2. Basis of Preparation
2.1. Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared considering bank as a ongoing concern as the Board of the Bank is satisfied
that the Bank has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the
Board of Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including
future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

In the course of regular inspection by Nepal Rastra Bank, the Bank has been imposed Prompt Corrective Action due
to downgrading of some high value credit resulting to addition of loan loss provision for the financial year 2079-80.
Though this addition of provision has reduced capital fund substantially, it doesn't affect the above assumption of
going concern. These loans are well supported by land collateral assets covering the whole loan amount. The Bank
is confident of full recovery of all those loans.

2.2. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis and under historical cost conventions except
where the standards require otherwise. The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with
Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) developed by the Accounting Standards Board, Nepal (ASB, Nepal) and
pronounced for application by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

The financial statements comprise of Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, Statement in Changes in Equity, Statement of Cashflows and Notes to the Accounts
on the format prescribed by NRB Directive No. 4.

2.3. Reporting Period
The Bank follows the Nepalese financial year based on Nepali calendar starting from 1st Shrawan 2080 and ending
on 31st Asar 2081. (16th July 2023 to 15th July 2024).

2.4. Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is functional and presentation currency of
the bank. The financial information presented has been rounded off to nearest rupee except where otherwise stated.

2.5. Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgment

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in
the application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of the notes wherever the
estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

Reporting Pronouncement
The Bank has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB as effective on 13
September 2013. The NFRS conform, in all material respect, to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as

issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
¥\
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However, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) vide its notice dated 10 November 2020 has resolved
that Carve-outs in NFRS with Alternative Treatment and effective period shall be provided to the Banks and Financial
Institutions regulated by NRB on the specific recommendation of Accounting Standard Board (ASB).

2.6. Changes in Accounting Policies
The accounting policies are applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements except for new
or revised statements and interpretations implemented during the year.

2.7. New Reporting standards issued but not effective

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation, NAS 39 Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments - Disclosures have been applied. NFRS 9 has
been complied for the classification of Financial Instruments. Few carve-outs on applicable accounting standards
as provided by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal have been used by the Bank, the quantitative and
qualitative impact of the same have been disclosed in detail in Notes to the Accounts. Further, several new standards
and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by International Accounting
Standard Board after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when
Accounting Standard Board Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.

2.8. Discounting
Non-current assets and liabilities are discounted where discounting is material. Interest income and expenses have
been recognized on the unwinding of financial assets and liabilities respectively.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
3.1. Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following material items in
the Statement of Financial Position:
o Available for sale investments (quoted) are measured at fair value.
o Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value of the defined benefit obligation less
the fair value of the plan assets.

3.2. Basis of consolidation
The bank does not have any subsidiaries & so the disclosure in this section is not applicable.

3.3. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent comprise short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and carried at amortized cost.

The cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement include cash in hand, balances with banks,
money at call and money market funds and financial assets with original maturity less than 3 months from the date
of acquisition.

3.4. Financial assets and Financial Liabilities

a. Recognition

The bank recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs
in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities, other than those carried at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities which are carried at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL), are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

b. Classification
The financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value based on business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Financial assets are classified under three categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:

i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost:
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortized

ﬁ
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cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR) method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR and loss arising
from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
ii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial
assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI).
.Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss:
The bank classifies the financials assets as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or designated
at fair value through profit or loss.

Any other financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified under two categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:

i. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.
Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized at profit or loss.

ii. Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently
measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

c. De-recognition
The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

d. Determination of Fair Value

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Bank follow three levels of the
fair-value-hierarchy are described below:

Level 1:Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;

Level 2:Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable or valuations of quoted
for similar instrument in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instrument in inactive
markets; and

Level 3:Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable. Investment in Unquoted Equity
Instrument are carried cost as the market price of such shares could not be ascertained with certainty at the
reporting date.

e. Impairment

The Bank reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether an
impairment loss should be provided in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The Management'’s judgement is extensively
used in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. These
estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting in
future changes to the provisions made.

The individual impairment provision applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based
on Management's best estimate of the present value of the future cash flows that are expected to be received. In
estimating these cash flows, Management makes judgements about the number of factors including a borrower’s
financial situation and the net realizable value of any underlying collateral.

Top borrowers and loans classified as non-performing assets as per NRB norms forming part of 25% of the portfolio

are tested for individual impairment. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits to estimate the recoverable
amount of cash flows.
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The Bank considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:

o Whether the counterparty is in default of principal or interest payments.

o When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its obligation.

o Where the Bank initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of the counterpart.

o Where the Bank consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished financial obligation,
demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or postponement of scheduled payments.

o Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
of a bank of financial assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with specific individual financial
assets.

A collective impairment provision is established for:

o groups of homogeneous loans and advances and investment securities which are held-to-maturity, that are not
considered individually significant; and

o groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually impaired.

The collective impairment is carried using the statistical modelling such as historical trends of probability of defaults,
timings of recoveries, and current economic and market conditions which may warrant for the loss being greater
than the suggested by the historical trends.

For the purpose of collective assessment of impairment bank has categorized assets into following broad products
as follows:

o Auto Loan

o Home Loan

o Term Loan

o Personal Loan

o Short Term Loan

Carve out adopted for assessment of impairment charge

The Bank has opted to apply carve out on impairment of loans and receivables. Accordingly, individual and collective
impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS is compared with the impairment provision required under NRB
directive no. 2, higher of the amount derived from these measures is taken as impairment loss for loans and
receivables.

3.5. Trading Assets

Financial assets are classified as trading assets (held for trading) if they have been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or form part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are recognized on trade date,
when the bank enters into contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are normally derecognized when
sold. They are initially measured at fair value, with transaction costs taken to profit or loss. Subsequent changes in
their fair values are recognized in profit or loss.

3.6. Derivatives assets and derivative liabilities
The bank does not have derivative assets as on the reporting date so the disclosure in this section is not applicable.

3.7. Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and measurement:

The bank applies the cost model to all property and equipment and recognize these at the cost of acquisition plus
expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost also includes the cost of replacing part of the equipment when the recognition criteria
are met.

Depreciation:

Depreciation is calculated by using the written down value method on cost or valuation of the Property & Equipment
other than freehold land and leasehold properties. Depreciation on leasehold properties is calculated by using the
straight-line method on cost or valuation of the property. The rates of depreciations are given below:
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The Bank has not measured any property and plant at revaluation model and at fair value. Assets having acquisition
cost less than NPR 5,000 have been written off as an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
Rate of Depreciation per annum (%)

Asset Category For the year ended For the year ended
15 July, 2024 16 July, 2023
Freehold Buildings 5% 5%
Motor Vehicles 15% 15%
Computer Equipment 25% 25%
Furniture 15% 15%
Office Equipment 15% 15%
Leasehold Properties 20% 20%

3.8. Goodwill/Intangible Assets

a. Goodwill

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in Business Combination
is recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The Bank follows
the partial goodwill method for the computation of goodwill in business combinations. Goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired.

b. Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets are recognized when the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, there is control over the asset
as a result of past events, future economic are expected from the asset. These intangible assets are recognized at
historical cost lessimpairment less amortisation over their estimated useful life. Amortisation of the intangible assets
is calculated using the straight-line method over the useful life based on a pattern in which the asset’s economic
benefits are consumed by the bank.

3.9. Investment Property

Investment properties are land or building or both other than those classified as property and equipment under NAS
16 - “Property, Plant and Equipment”; and assets classified as non-current assets held for sale under NFRS 5 - “Non-
Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”. Land and Building acquired as non-banking assets are
recognised as investment property.

Investment properties are measured at cost, including transaction costs. Depreciation is charges in investment
property as they are partly intended for the owner-occupied use.

3.10. Income Tax

Tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

a. Current Tax

Current tax is the income tax expense is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates
to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in equity or in
other comprehensive income. Current tax is the amounts expected or paid to Inland Revenue Department in respect
of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

b. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet and the amounts attributed to such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the periods in which the assets will be realised
or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they arise in the same tax reporting bank and relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and when the bank has a legal right to offset.
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3.11. Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

a. Deposits

Deposits by banks & customers are financial liabilities of the bank as there is an obligation to deliver cash or financial
assets back to the depositing bank or customer and are initially recognised at fair value, plus for those financial
liabilities not at fair value through profit and loss. The transaction price is considered as the fair value for measuring
the deposits.

b. Debt Securities Issued
Debt Securities are initially measured at the fair value less incremental direct cost and subsequently at their amortised
cost using effective interest method except where the bank designates liabilities at fair value through profit t or loss.

c. Subordinated Liabilities
These are the liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to claims of depositors, debt securities issued and
other creditors. It shall include redeemable preference shares, subordinated notes issued, borrowings etc.

3.12. Provisions

A provision is recognized if as a result of a past event, the bank has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
The amount recognised is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date, taking in to account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation at that date. Provisions
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates and are reversed if there is not
the probability of outflow of resources.

The contingent liability are the liabilities for which it is uncertain as to whether it will become an obligation as
it depends on the occurrence of an uncertain future event. These amounts are off-balance sheet items and are
disclosed when there is a possible obligation that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources. A
provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from a contract
are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.

3.13. Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Bank and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

a. Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financial assets through other
comprehensive income interest income or expense is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. The calculation of effective interest rate includes all charges and fee paid or received that are integral part
of the effective interest only if considered necessary. Such a charges are not amortized over the life of the loan and
advances as the income so recognized closely approximates the income that would have derived under effective
interest method and are recognized directly in statement of profit and loss.

The interest income recognized in the statement of profit and loss includes the following:

o Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest rate method,
except for impaired loans and advances. These financial assets include investment in government securities,
investment in NRB Bond and deposit instruments, reverse repos, interbank lending, etc.

o As per carve out on NAS 39 Para 9, the Bank has not included the fees and paid or received in loans and advances
that are immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably the effective interest rate and have recognized them
directly as revenue in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

o As per carve out on NAS 39 AG 93, the Bank has applied the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
a financial asset unless the financial asset is written off either partially or fully.

o Interest on investment securities is calculated on effective interest rate.

o Income on discounted instruments like bills purchased, documents negotiation is recognized over the period of
discounting on accrual basis using effective interest rate.

o The bank has adopted the following criterion in to suspend the interest income where there is reasonable doubt
about the collectability of the interest:

- Loans where there is reasonable doubt about the ultimate collectability of principal or interest;
- Loans against which individual impairment as per NAS 39 or life time impairment as per NFRS 9 has been made;
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- Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 3 months in arrears and where
the “net realizable value” of security is insufficient to cover payment of principal and accrued interest;

- Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 12 months in arrears, irrespective
of the net realizable value of collateral;

- Overdrafts and other short-term facilities which have not been settled after the expiry of the loan and even not
renewed within 3 months of the expiry, and where the net realizable value of security is insufficient to cover
payment of principal and accrued interest;

- Overdrafts and other short-term facilities which have not been settled after the expiry of the loan and even not
renewed within 12 months of the expiry, irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral.

b. Fee and Commission Income
Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.

c. Dividend Income
Dividend income received from equity shares is recognized in the books when the bank’s right to receive the dividend
is established.

d. Net Trading Income

Net Trading Income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value, related capital gain/loss and dividend
from financial assets through profit and loss. Trading expenses are deducted from the trading income and the
amount net of trading expenses are disclosed in statement of profit and loss.

e. Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss
Net income from other financial instrument measured at fair value through Profit or Loss includes all gains/(losses)
arises from the revaluation of financial instrument at fair value.

3.14. Interest Expense
Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using effective interest
rate method.

3.15. Employee Benefits

a. Short term employee benefits

The bank’s short-term employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, allowances, socials security expenses,
bonuses as provided in the law and other employee related expenses. Short term employee benefits are measured
on an undiscounted basis and are charged to statement of profit and loss as and when the related service is provided.

b. Long term employee benefits

® Defined Contribution Plans
The contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in profit or loss as and when the services are
rendered by employees which the bank contributes fixed percentage of the salary to the Employee’s Provident
Fund. The Bank has no further obligations under these plans beyond its periodic contributions.

® Defined Benefit Plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The bank’s net
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in current and prior periods. That benefit
is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan
assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on corporate bonds, that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the bank’s obligation and that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits are expected to be paid.

The defined benefit obligation is recognised on the basis of the report of qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. The bank recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans immediately in
other comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined benefits plans in employee benefit are expensed
in profit and loss account.

Measurements of the net defined benefit liability comprise actuarial gains and losses. The return on plan assets
(excluding interestincome) and the effect of the assets ceiling (if any excluding interest) are recognized immediately
in Other Comprehensive Income. The bank determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined
liability (assets) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
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beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefits liability (assets), taking into account any changes
in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefits payments. Net
interest expenses and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized as personnel expenses in
Statement of profit and Loss.

The bank provides gratuity and leave encashment as the defined benefits plans to its employees.
Bank has not been registered with Social Security Fund during the FY 2080-81.

3.16. Leases

Lease accounting has been prepared according to NFRS 16. Upon lease commencement the bank has recognized a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of the lease liability
plus any initial direct costs incurred by the bank. After lease commencement, bank has measured the right-of-use
asset using a cost model. Under the cost model a right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted at the borrowing yield rate of the bank.

3.17. Foreign Currency Transactions, Translation and Balances
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR). The bank does not have carried out foreign
currency transactions during the reporting period.

3.18. Financial guarantee and loan commitments

Financial Guarantees are contingent liabilities that arise out of the contract that the bank might make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is
due in accordance with terms of debt instrument. Guarantee liabilities being the off-balance items are disclosed if
the outflow of economic resources is probable.

Loan commitment is the commitment where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or
on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not, or letters of
credit and the Bank has not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these financial
statements as commitments.

3.19. Share capital and reserves

Equity is the residual interest in the total assets of the Bank after deducting all of its liability. Shares are classified as
equity when the Bank has an unconditional right to avoid delivery of cash or another financial asset, that is, when
the dividend and repayment of capital are at the sole and absolute discretion of the Bank and there is no contractual
obligation whatsoever to that effect. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are
deducted from the initial measurement of the equity instruments considering the tax benefits achieved thereon.

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in
which they are declared. Reserves are the allocation out of profit or retained earnings. These are created as statutory
requirement, accounting standard requirement and bank’s own requirement.

3.20. Earnings per share including Diluted EPS

Bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of Bank by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both the profit and loss
attributable to the ordinary equity holders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.21. Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of an entity:

o that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and
expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity),

o whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available.

Not every part of an entity is necessarily an operating segment or part of an operating segment. For example, a
corporate headquarters or some functional departments may not earn revenues or may earn revenues that are only
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incidental to the activities of the entity and would not be operating segments. For the purposes of this NFRS, an
entity's post-employment benefit plans are not operating segments. The geographical segment has been identified
on the basis of the location of the branches in 5 different District of the country.

3.22. Investment in Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Bank has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies. Investments in associate entities are accounted for using the equity method (equity-accounted
investees) and are recognized initially at cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs.

The Bank doesn't have any associate till date.

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Disclosures)

A. Staff Loans measured at fair value

Under previous NAS, staff loans were recorded at cost less repayments net of loan loss provision, if any. Under NFRS,
the Bank has to measure the staff loans granted below the market interest rate at their fair value, calculate based on
the market interest rate of similar products.

The fair value (Amortized cost) of such loans as at Asar 31, 2081 was Rs. 46,642,275.73 and their previous NAS carrying
amount was Rs. 89,642,476.78. The difference between the fair value and NAS carrying amount was Rs. 43,000,201.05

has been netted off against staff loans & recognized as pre-paid staff cost in other assets.

B. Provisions (excluding provision for tax)

Particular Asad End 2081 Asad End 2080
Provision through Profit & Loss

Provision/(Reversal) for loans and advances 407,638,035 410,279,930
Provision for other assets 13,501,000 209,666
Provision through Other comprehensive Income (Fair Value Reserve)

Provision for investments 39,028,632 48,948,524
Provision for PMS investment 2,667,782 3,574,909

In compliance with the NRB Directives and subsequent amendment there to, specific loan loss provision was made
based on the arrears time period and General provision were made at a specified rate given by NRB time to time.

Loan has been impaired with the amount which is higher between NFRS impairment and NRB 2.2 provisions as per
the Carve-outs issued which has been calculated as below.

Particular Asad End 2081 Asad End 2080
Loan and Advances 4,190,844,300 4,086,206,616
Pass Loan 3,239,810,763 3,352,348,774
Watchlist 503,401,490 301,757,960
Restructured / Rescheduled 2,237,700 2,300,000
Sub-standard 100,658,746 28,998,159
Doubtful 53,179,522 113,454,530
Bad 291,556,071 287,347,193
Staff loan 88,552,437 76,634,320
Less: Staff loan NFRS Adjustment (43,000,201) (44,356,201)
Accrued Interest Receivable 52,202,802 53,929,034
Less: Accrued interest receivable on Bad Loan (20,246,171) (16,669,960)
Total Loan As per NFRS 4,268,353,167 4,172,419,726
Total Loan Loss Provision 407,638,035 410,279,930
Pass 38,877,729 43,580,534
Watch List 25,170,075 15,087,898
Restructured / Rescheduled 279,713 287,500
Sub-standard 25,164,687 7,249,540
Doubtful 26,589,761 56,727,265
Bad 291,556,071 287,347,193
Opening of Loan Loss Provision 410,279,930 91,166,090
Addition/(Reversal) of Loan Loss Provision (2,641,895) 319,113,840

Total Collective Impairment of Loans and Advances-NFRS - -
Addition/(Reversal) of loss provision as per NRB (2,641,895) 319,113,840
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* Provision for investments increased by NRs. 7,042,871.21 primarily due to provision on equity shares.

* The Bank has detected embezzlement of fund during FY 2079/80 committed by Mrs. Ruksa Shrestha, Act. BM of
the Barhabise branch. During the internal investigation made by the bank, it was observed that Mrs. Shrestha has
embezzled approx. NRs. 1.35 Crores. The Bank has filed the Legal case against Mrs. Shrestha & other related persons
to recover the embezzled amount at Appellate Court, Patan through Criminal Investigation Bureau (CIB), Kathmandu.

C. Financial Investments - Available for Sale
The bank’s investment in shares and mutual fund are carried at fair value through other comprehensive income.
The bonus share received is accounted by increasing the number of shares without changing the cost of the shares.

The details of the investment made in these securities are presented in Note 4.8.3.

D. Staff Training Fund

NRB directive 6 require BFIs to incur expenses towards employee and development equivalent to at least 3% of the
preceding year's total staff expenses Amount remaining to the incurred towards employee training and development
has been presented as staff training fund as per the requirement of the NRB directive as shown below:

Particular Asad End 2081 Asad End 2080

Opening Staff Training Fund 3,818,356 2,189,785
Add: 3% of the last year staff expenses 2,774,099 2,835,077
Less: Actual staff training expenses this year 1,671,878 1,206,506
Closing Staff Training Fund 4,920,577 3,818,356

E. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

NRB directive 6 require BFIs to create towards corporate social development fund and appropriate an amount
equivalent to 1% of net profit annually into this fund for covering expenditure related to CSR activities in the

subsequent year.

Particular Asad End 2081 Asad End 2080

Opening CSR Fund 90,140 463,000
Add: 1% of profit this year 304,129 -
Less: CSR Expenses this year 243,173 372,860
Closing CSR Fund 151,096 90,140

F. Regulatory Reserve

The amount to this reserve has been created from the profit/retained earnings as per the Directive of NRB for the purpose
of implementation of NFRSs and is not regarded as free for distribution of dividend. Details are as presented under:

Particular Asad End 2081 Asad End 2080
Opening Regulatory Reserve 105,229,194 113,873,582
Interest receivable on loans and advances (2,534,285) 11,305,818
Actuarial losses

Change in fair value on equity investment 4,930,010 1,314,297
Provision for Non-banking assets (Reversal) 34,369,738 (15,415,431)
Deferred Tax Assets (Reversal) 2,893,456 (5,849,072)
Closing Regulatory Reserve 144,888,113 105,229,194
The component wise break-up of the regulatory reserve is as follows:

. Interest Actuarial ORI for Deferred tax Ll valye Iqs s
Particular - Non-Banking recognized in Total
Receivable Loss assets
assets 0CI

Balance as of Asad 31, 2076 2,291,021 928,859 - 2,302,319 2,717,942 8,240,141
Addition/ Reversal during the FY 2076/077 (1,464,596) (928,859) - 423,599  (1,116,550)  (3,086,406)
Balance as of Asad 31, 2077 826,425 - - 2,725,918 1,601,392 5,153,735
Addition during the FY 2077/078 8,131,839 - 16,226,769 4,020,394 6,361,651 34,740,654
Balance as of Asad 31, 2078 8,958,264 - 16,226,769 6,746,312 7,963,044 39,894,389
Addition during the FY 2078/079 2,402,881 - 32,600,192 11,487,059 27,489,063 73,979,194
Balance as of Asad 31, 2079 11,361,145 - 48,826,961 18,233,371 35,452,107 113,873,583
Addition/ (Reversal) during the FY 2079/080 11,305,818 (15,415,431)  (5,849,072) 1,314,297  (8,644,388)
Balance as of Ashad 31, 2080 22,666,963 33,411,530 12,384,298 36,766,404 105,229,194
Addition/ (Reversal) during the FY 2080/081  (2,534,285) 34,369,738 2,893,456 4,930,010 39,658,919
Balance as of Ashad 31, 2081 20,132,678 - 67,781,268 15,277,755 41,696,413 144,888,113
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G. General Reserve

Section 44 of Bank and Financial Institutions Act 2073 requires the Bank to allocate at least 20% of the net profits of
every year to General Reserve until it is twice the paid-up capital. The Bank has appropriated NPR 6,082,573/- of the
net profits and 20% of restatement of prior period item through retained earnings to General Reserve in the current
year. Also, as per the amendment to directive 4/80 (3) issued by Nepal Rastra Bank amount of NPR. 17,159,815 has
been transferred from Regulatory Reserve to Retained Earning with respect to Non-Banking Asset.

Particular Asad End 2081 Asad End 2080

Opening General reserve 43,914,210 43,914,210
Add: 20% of profit this year 6,082,573 -
Add: 20% of restatement of prior period item through retained earning 1,380,496 -
Closing General Reserve 51,377,278 43,914,210

H. Fair Value Reserve

The net change in fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair value and change in fair value is recognized
in other comprehensive income until assets are derecognized. The amount transferred to this reserve during the
year is:

Particular Asad End 2081 Asad End 2080

Opening Fair Value Reserve (36,766,404) (35,452,106)
Transfer/ Adjustment in Reserve (4,930,010) (1,314,298)
Closing Fair Value Reserve (41,696,413) (36,766,404)

I. Actuarial Gain/(Loss)
The reserve created against the actuarial valuation of gratuity benefit to the employee of the bank due to change in
actuarial assumptions used to value employee obligations.

Particular Asad End 2081 Asad End 2080

Opening Actuarial Gain/(Loss) 8,744,201 2,488,281
Transfer/ Adjustment in Reserve (112,650) 6,255,920
Closing Fair Value Reserve 8,631,550 8,744,201

J. Capital Reserve
The capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of capital and which shall not be
available for distribution of cash dividend.

Particular Asad End 2081 Asad End 2080

Opening Capital Reserve 18,746 18,746
Transfer/ Adjustment in Reserve - -
Closing Capital Reserve 18,746 18,746

K. Movement of AIR

Particular Asad End 2081 Asad End 2080

Opening AIR on Loans and Advance 53,929,034.08 28,548,595.91
Add: Accrued Interest on Loans and Advance 569,866,821.02 571,461,491.88
Less: Realised Interest on Loans and Advance 571,593,053.20 546,081,053.71
Closing AIR on Loans and Advance to customer 52,133,442.95 53,868,382.35
Closing AIR on loan to staff 69,358.95 60651.73
Total 52,202,801.90 53,929,034.08
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Cash and Cash Equivalent 4.1
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Cashin Hand 83,464,818 60,349,685 83,464,818 60,349,685
Balances with BFIs 113,365,000 17,633,410 113,365,000 17,633,410
Money at Call and Short Notice 616,385,943 587,154,953 616,385,943 587,154,953
Other - - - -
Total 813,215,761 665,138,048 813,215,761 665,138,048
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Statutory Balances with NRB 139,936,167 175,007,227 139,936,167 175,007,227

Securities purchased under Resale Agreement - - - -
Other Deposit and Receivable from NRB - - - -

Total 139,936,167 175,007,227 139,936,167 175,007,227

Placements with Banks and Financial Instutions 4.3
Group Bank

Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080

Placement with Domestic BFIs - - - -
Placement with Foreign BFIs - - - -
Less: Allowances for Impairment - - - -
Total - - - -

Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Held for Trading - -
Interest Rate Swap - - - -
Currency Swap - - - -
Forward Exchange Contract - - - -
Others - - - -
Held for Risk Management - - -
Interest Rate Swap - - - -
Currency Swap - - - -
Forward Exchange Contract - - - -
Others - - - -
Total - - - -

Other Trading Assets 4.5
Group Bank

Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080

Treasury Bills - - - -
Government Bonds - - - -
NRB Bonds - - - -
Domestic Corporate Bonds - - - -
Equities = - - -
Other Trading Assets = - - -
Total - - - -
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Loans and Advances to BFIs 4.6
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Loans to Micro-Finance Institutions 276,487,080 500,118,574 276,487,080 500,118,574
Other-AIR on Loans to Micro Finance institutions 76,591 110,476 76,591 110,476
Less: Allowances for Impairment (3,317,845) (6,501,541) (3,317,845) (6,501,541)
Total 273,245,826 493,727,509 273,245,826 493,727,509
Allowances for Impairment 4.6.1
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Balance at Shrawan 01 6,501,541 5,859,194 6,501,541 5,859,194
Impairment Losss for the year: - -
Charge for the year (3,183,697) 642,347 (3,183,697) 642,347
Recoveries/Reversal - - - -
Amount Written Off - - - -
Balance at Asar End 3,317,845 6,501,541 3,317,845 6,501,541
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Loans and Advances measured at Amortized Cost 3,991,789,496 3,672,184,719 3,991,789,496 3,672,184,719
Less: Impairment Allowances - -
Collective Impairment (404,320,190) (403,778,388) (404,320,190) (403,778,388)
Individual Impairment - -
Net Amount 3,587,469,306 3,268,406,331 3,587,469,306 3,268,406,331
Loans and Advances measured at FVTPL - - - -
Total 3,587,469,306 3,268,406,331 3,587,469,306 3,268,406,331
Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Product 4.71
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Product
Term Loans 1,918,276,932 787,057,347 1,918,276,932 787,057,347
Overdraft 332,979,611 44,092,116 332,979,611 44,092,116
Trust Receipt/Import Loans - - - -
Demand and other Working Capital Loans 277,740,686 650,329,538 277,740,686 650,329,538
Personal Residential Loans 728,164,238 584,583,893 728,164,238 584,583,893
Real Estate Loans 50,000,000 86,191,235 50,000,000 86,191,235
Margin Lending Loans 162,198,150 193,463,084 162,198,150 193,463,084
Hire Purchase Loans 165,972,985 202,934,902 165,972,985 202,934,902
Deprived Sector Loans 413,202,999 531,790,800 413,202,999 531,790,800
Bills Purchased - - - -
Staffs Loans 45,552,236 32,278,119 45,552,236 32,278,119
Other 142,308,700 1,005,763,701 142,308,700 1,005,763,701
Sub-Total 4,236,396,536 4,118,484,735 4,236,396,536 4,118,484,735
Interest Receivable 31,956,631 53,929,034 31,956,631 53,929,034
Grand Total 4,268,353,167 4,172,413,770 4,268,353,167 4,172,413,770
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Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Currency

4.7.2

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Nepalese Rupee

4,268,353,167

4,172,413,770

4,268,353,167

4,172,413,770

Indian Rupee

United States Dollar

Great Britain Pound

Euro

Japanese Yen

Chinese Yuan

Other

Grand Total

4,268,353,167

4,172,413,770

4,268,353,167

4,172,413,770

Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Product

4.7.3

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Secured

Moveable/Immoveable Assets

3,806,269,896

3,492,023,951

3,806,269,896

3,492,023,951

Gold and Silver

100,013,054

98,140,554

100,013,054

98,140,554

Guarantee of Domestic BFIs

276,487,080

500,118,574

276,487,080

500,118,574

Government Guarantee

Guarantee of International Rated Bank

Collateral of Export Document

Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt

40,030,901

49,852,571

40,030,901

49,852,571

Collatereal of Government Securities

Counter Guarantee

Personal Guarantee

Other Collateral

Subtotal

4,222,800,931

4,140,135,650

4,222,800,931

4,140,135,650

Unsecured (staff loan)

45,552,236

32,278,119

45,552,236

32,278,119

Grand Total

4,268,353,167

4,172,413,770

4,268,353,167

4,172,413,770

Allowance for Impairment

4.7.4

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Specific Allowance for Impairment

Balance at Shrawan 01

Impairment Loss for the year

Charge for the year

Recoveries/Reversals during the year

Write-Offs

Other Movement

Balance at Asar End

Collective Allowances for Impairment

Balance at Sharawan 01

403,778,388

85,306,895

403,778,388

85,306,895

Impairment Loss for the year

Charge/(Reversal) for the year

541,801

318,471,493

541,801

318,471,493

Other Movement

Balance at Asar End

404,320,190

403,778,388

404,320,190

403,778,388

Total Allowances for Impairment

404,320,190

403,778,388

404,320,190

403,778,388
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Investment Securities 4.8
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost 992,407,400 246,464,250 992,407,400 246,464,250
Investment in Equity measured at FVTOCI 72,538,708 77,951,580 72,538,708 77,951,580
Total 1,064,946,108 324,415,830 1,064,946,108 324,415,830
Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost 4.8.1
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Debt Securities - - - -
Government Bonds - - = =
Government Treasury Bills 992,407,400 246,464,250 992,407,400 246,464,250
Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds - - - -
Nepal Rastra Bank Deposit Instruments - - -
Other - - -
Less: Specific Allowances for Impairment - - - -
Total 992,407,400 246,464,250 992,407,400 246,464,250
Investment Securities measured at FVTOCI 4.8.2
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Equity Instruments
Quoted Equity Securities 72,538,708 77,951,580 72,538,708 77,951,580
Unquoted Equity Securities - - - -
Total 72,538,708 77,951,580 72,538,708 77,951,580
Information relating to Investment in Equities 4.8.3
Particulars Asar end 2081 Asar end 2080
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Investment in Quoted Equity
Api Power Company Ltd. 649 - Ordinary Shares 28,000 53,480 - -
Global IME Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd- 1- Ordinary Share - 2,730 - 1,061
Janautthan Samudayic Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 6 -Ordinary Share - 9,976 - 6,120
Kisan Micro Finance Bittiya Sanstha 1- Ordinary Share - 1,070 - 709
Life Insurance Corporation 2,923- Ordinary Share 5,742,474 4,203,274 5,742,474 4,545,265
Sagarmatha Lumbini Insurance Company Limited 1 - Ordinary Share - 727 - 748
Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited- 1,06,149 Ordinary Shares 49,588,404 24,201,972 49,588,404 23,777,376
Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd- 28,598 Ordinary Shares 36,781,482 17,702,162 36,781,482 21,276,912
Nmb Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 2 -Ordinary Share - 1,520 - 1,280
National Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 18 - Ordinary Share - 26,771 - 24,588
NIBL Sahabhagita Fund 9,96,013-Ordinary Share 10,000,000 10,517,897 10,000,000 10,587,618
Himalayan Life Insurance Company Limited 4,318 - Ordinary Share 2,908,532 1,688,338 2,908,532 2,189,226
Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Ltd- 16020 Ordinary Shares 14,777,871 5,661,468 13,175,871 6,837,336
Ridi Power Company Limited - 191
119,826,763 64,071,575 118,196,763 69,248,239
Investment through PMS:
Citizen Investment Trust-906 ordinary shares 2,796,061 2,203,685 2,796,061 1,892,634
Neco Insurance Company Limited-1145 ordinary shares 1,167,900 957,220 1,167,900 1,020,310
Himalayan Distillery Limited- 112 ordinary shares 186,013 170,232 186,013 251,776
Surya Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited-797 ordinary shares 613,722 342,630 613,722 486,170
Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited-864 Ordinary Share 444,355 196,992 444,355 193,536
Siddhartha Premier Insurance Company Limited- 1417 ordinary shares 1,327,361 1,218,478 1,327,361 1,103,135
Life Insurance Company Nepal-1548 ordinary shares 2,887,299 2,226,024 2,887,299 2,407,140
Himalayan Life Insurance Company Limited 649 - Ordinary Share 455,643 253,759 455,643 329,043
Shivam Cements Limited-1565 ordinary shares 2,399,896 898,112 2,399,896 1,019,598
12,278,250 8,467,133 12,278,250 8,703,341
Total 132,105,013 72,538,708 130,475,013 77,951,580
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Current Tax Assets 4.9
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Current Tax Assets
Current year Income Tax Assets 30,395,165 16,656,476 30,395,165 16,656,476
Tax Assets of Prior Periods - - - -
Current Tax Liabilities - - - -
Current year Income Tax Liabilities - 9,713,418 - 9,713,418
Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods 9,713,418 - 9,713,418 -
Total 20,681,747 6,943,059 20,681,747 6,943,059
Investment in Subsidiaries 4.10
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries - - - -
Total Investment - - - -
Less: Impairment Allowances - - - -
Net Carrying Amount - - - -
Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries 4.10.1
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Total - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries 4.10.2
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Total - - - -
Information relating to Subsidiaries of the Bank 4.10.3
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Total - - - -
Non Controlling Interest of the Subsidiaries 4.10.4
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080

Equity Interest held by NCI (%)

Profit (Loss) allocated during the year

Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Asar End

Dividend Paid to NCI

Equity Interest held by NCI (%)

Profit (Loss) allocated during the year

Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Asar End

Dividend Paid to NCI
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Investment in Associates 4.11
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080  Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Investment in Quoted Associates - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Associates - - - -
Total Investment - -
Less: Impairment Allowances - - - -
Net Carrying Amount - - - -
Investment in Quoted Associates 4.11.1
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080  Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Total - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Associates 4.11.2
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Total - - - -
Information relating to Associates of the Bank 4.11.3
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080  Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Total - - - -
Equity Value of Associates 4.11.4
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Total - - - -
Investment Properties 4.12
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Investment Properties measured at Fair Value
Balance as on Shrawan 01 - - -
Addition/(Disposal) during the year. - - - -
Net Changes in fair value during the year. - - - -
Adjustment/Transfer. - - - -
Net Amount - - - -
Investment Properties measured at Cost - -
Balance as on Shrawan 01 53,034,175 77,503,113 53,034,175 77,503,113
Addition/(Disposal) during the year 83,154,830 - 83,154,830 -
Depreciation on investment property - - - -
Adjustment/Transfer - (24,468,938) (24,468,938)
Net Amount 136,189,005 53,034,175 136,189,005 53,034,175
Total 136,189,005 53,034,175 136,189,005 53,034,175

@



& SindhuBikash Bank Lt
V. RAct] [P Sab 13T,

Property and Equipment 4.13
Bank
. - Leasehold Computer & . Furniture . Equipment Total Asar

FEHIER Y Ellding Properties Accegsories REE & Fixtures LRI gofhers end 2081
Cost
As on Shrawan 01 2080 121,056,000 26,320,337 22,853,281 19,976,956 24,543,055 66,006,663 17,374,344 18,886,954 317,017,589
Addition during the Year

Acquisition - - 1,955,804 943,423 - 934,591 - 1,933,005 5,766,824

Adjustment - - - - - - -

Capitalization - - - - - - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - - - - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - (21,290) - (5,041) - - (31,876) (58,208)
Balance as on Asar End 2081 121,056,000 26,320,337 24,787,795 20,920,379 24,538,013 66,941,254 17,374,344 20,788,083 322,726,205
Depreciation and Impairment

As on Shrawan 01 2080 - 1,248,524 9,839,038 12,677,563 11,298,281 40,327,904 10,246,798 9,534,419 95,172,526
Impairment for the year - - - - - - - -
Depreciation charge for the year - 1,253,591 2,747,477 1,938,729 1,985,960 3,903,185 1,069,132 1,507,309 14,405,383
Disposals - - - - - - - - -
Adjustments - - - - - - - -
As on Asar End 2081 - 2,502,115 12,586,514 14,616,292 13,284,241 44,231,089 11,315,930 11,041,728 109,577,909
Capital Work in Progress - -
Net Book Value 121,056,000 23,818,223 12,201,280 6,304,087 11,253,772 22,710,165 6,058,414 9,746,355 213,148,296
As on Asar End 2080 121,056,000 25,071,813 13,014,244 7,299,393 13,244,774 25,678,758 7,127,546 9,352,535 221,845,063
As on Asar End 2081 121,056,000 23,818,223 12,201,280 6,304,087 11,253,772 22,710,165 6,058,414 9,746,355 213,148,296
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 414
Bank
Particulars Goodwill Software Other Total Asar End
Purchased Developed 2081

Cost
As on Shrawan 01 2080 - 5,381,314 - - 5,381,314
Addition during the Year

Acquisition - 226,000 226,000

Capitalization - - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - - -

Adjustment/Revaluation - 5,041 - - 5,041
Balance as on Asar End 2081 - 5,612,356 - - 5,612,356
Amortisation and Impairment

As on Shrawan 01 2080 - 3,235,365 - - 3,235,365
Amortisation charge for the year - 457,447 - - 457,447
Impairment for the year - - - - -
Disposals - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - -
As on Asar end 2081 - 3,692,812 - - 3,692,812
Capital Work in Progress

Net Book Value - 1,919,544 - - 1,919,544
As on Asar end 2080 - 2,145,949 - - 2,145,949
As on Asar end 2081 - 1,919,544 - - 1,919,544
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Deferred Tax 415
Current Year
Particulars Chsetsliabildes Yox evere)
(Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loans and Advances to BFIs -
Loans and Advances to Customers - -
Investment Properties - -
Investment Securities 2,112,861 - 2,112,861
Property and Equipment 4,399,466 - 4,399,466
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 7,732,216 7,732,216
Lease Liabilities 1,033,212 1,033,212
Provisions - -
Other Temporary Differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 15,277,755
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year end of 2081 15,277,755
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan 01, 2080 12,384,298
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 2,893,457
Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized in profit or loss (732,317)
Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized in OCI 2,161,140
Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized directly in Equity -
Other Assets 4.16
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Assets held for Sale - - - -
Other Non-Banking Assets - - - -
Bills Receivable - - - -
Accounts Receivable 2,247,042 1,939,500 2,247,042 1,939,500
Accrued Income - - - -
Prepayments and Deposits 8,621,798 6,489,630 8,621,798 6,489,630
Income Tax Deposit - - - -
Deferred Employee Expenditure 43,000,201 44,356,201 43,000,201 44,356,201
ROU Assets 78,191,074 41,314,123 78,191,074 41,314,123
Other Assets 30,347,277 10,347,824 30,347,277 10,347,824
Total 162,407,393 104,447,278 162,407,393 104,447,278
Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 417
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Money Market Deposits - - - -

Interbank Borrowing

Other Deposits from BFIs

Settlement and Clearing Accounts

Total
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Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

4.18

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Refinance from NRB

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of Last Resort facility from NRB

Securities sold under repurchase agreements

Other Payable to NRB

Total

Derivative Financial Instruments

4.19

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts

Others

Held for Risk Management

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts.

Others

Total

Deposits from Customers

4.20

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Institutional Customers:

Term Deposits

1,487,936,811

618,528,154

1,487,936,811

618,528,154

Call Deposits

681,555,093

487,241,336

681,555,093

487,241,336

Current Deposits

119,967,324

485,113,626

119,967,324

485,113,626

Others

125,000

255,000

125,000

255,000

Individual Customers:

Term Deposits

1,888,575,507

1,881,242,311

1,888,575,507

1,881,242,311

Saving Deposits

1,669,125,061

1,370,251,315

1,669,125,061

1,370,251,315

Current Deposits 44,763,426 30,589,378 44,763,426 30,589,378
Others - - - -
Total 5,892,048,223 4,873,221,121 5,892,048,223 4,873,221,121
Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers 4.20.1
Group Bank

Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Nepalese Rupee 5,892,048,223 4,873,221,121 5,892,048,223 4,873,221,121
Indian Rupee - - - -
United States Dollar - - - -
Great Britain Pound - - - -
Euro = - - -
Japanese Yen - - - -
Chinese Yuan - - - -
Other - - - -
Total 5,892,048,223 4,873,221,121 5,892,048,223 4,873,221,121
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4.21

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Domestic Borrowings

Nepal Government

Other Institutions

Other

8,394,981

15,000,000

8,394,981

15,000,000

Sub Total

Foreign Borrowings

Foreign Banks and Financial Institutions

Multilateral Development Banks

Other Institutions

Sub Total

Total

8,394,981

15,000,000

8,394,981

15,000,000

Provisions

4.22

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Provisions for Redundancy

Provisions for Restructuring

Pending Legal Issues and Tax Litigation

Onerous Contracts

Other Provisions

Total

Movement in Provision

4.221

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Balance at Shrawan 01

Provisions made during the year

Provisions used during the year

Provisions reversed during the year

Unwind of Discount

Balance at Asar end

Other Liabilities

4.23

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Liabilities for emloyees defined benefit obligations

9,260,726

7,708,124

9,260,726

7,708,124

Liabilities for long service leave

16,513,326

15,784,138

16,513,326

15,784,138

Short term employee benefits

548,430

548,430

548,430

548,430

Bills payable

Sundry Creditors

841,747

10,281,946

841,747

10,281,946

Expenses Accrual

6,147,513

6,246,706

6,147,513

6,246,706

Interest payable on deposits

Interest payable on borrowing

Lease Liabilities

81,635,112

52,065,444

81,635,112

52,065,444

Liabilities on defered grant income

Unpaid Dividend

Liabilities under Finance Lease

Employee bonus payable

3,297,838

3,297,838

Other Liabilities

55,786,189

24,948,719

55,786,189

24,948,719

Total

174,030,883

117,583,506

174,030,883

117,583,506
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Defined Benefit Obligation 4.23.1
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Present value of unfunded obligations 9,260,726 7,708,124 9,260,726 7,708,124
Present value of funded obligations - - - -
Total present value of obligations 9,260,726 7,708,124 9,260,726 7,708,124
Fair value of plan assets - - - -
Present value of net obligations 9,260,726 7,708,124 9,260,726 7,708,124
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 9,260,726 7,708,124 9,260,726 7,708,124
Plan Assets 4.23.2
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Equity securities - - - -
payable - - - -
Bank deposit - - - -
Other - - - -
Total - - - -
Actual return on plan assets - - - -
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations 4.233
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 7,708,124 12,346,600 7,708,124 12,346,600
Actuarial (Gains)/losses 160,929 (8,937,028) 160,929 (8,937,028)
Benefits paid by the plan (549,867) (389,157) (549,867) (389,157)
Current service costs and interest 1,941,540 4,687,709 1,941,540 4,687,709
Defined benefit obligations at Asar end 9,260,726 7,708,124 9,260,726 7,708,124
Movement in the fair value of plan assets 4.234
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 - - - -
Contributions paid into the plan - - - -
Benefits paid during the year - - - -
Actuarial (losses) gains - - - -
Expected return on plan assets - - - -
Fair value of plan assets at Asar end - - - -
Amount recognised in profit or loss 4.23.5
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Current service costs 1,301,822 3,667,886 1,301,822 3,667,886
Interest on obligation 639,718 1,019,823 639,718 1,019,823
Expected return on plan assets - - - -
Total 1,941,540 4,687,709 1,941,540 4,687,709
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 4.23.6
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Acturial (gain)/loss 160,929 (8,937,028) 160,929 (8,937,028)
Total 160,929 (8,937,028) 160,929 (8,937,028)
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Actuarial assumptions 4.23.7
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Discount rate 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
Expected return on plan asset 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Future salary increase 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Withdrawal rate 15.00% 14.00% 15.00% 14.00%
Debt secutities issued 4.24
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through i i i i
profit or loss
Debt securities issued at amortised cost - - - -
Total - - - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Redeemable preference shares - - - -
Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities i i i i
component
Other - - - -
Total - - - -
Share Capital 4.26
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Ordinary shares 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067
Convertible preference shares (equity component only) - - - -
Irredemable preference shares (equity component only) - - - -
Perpetual debt (equity component only) - - - -
Total 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067
Ordinary Shares 4.26.1
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Authorized Capital
7,000,0000 Orsinary share of Rs. 100 each 700,000,000 700,000,000 700,000,000 700,000,000
Issued capital
55,74,560p0rdinary share of Rs. 100 each 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067
Subscribed and paid up capital
5 71,560 0r dingry e 100 each 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067
Total 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067
Ordinary share ownership 4.26.2
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Domestic ownership
Nepal Government - - - -
"A" Class Licensed Institutions - - - -
Other Licensed Intitutions - - - -
Other Institutions - - - -
Public 49% 49% 49% 49%
Other 51% 51% 51% 51%
Foreign ownership - - - -
Total 100% 100% 100.00% 100.00%
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List of Principal Shareholders holding 0.50% or more share share of the total share of the bank 4.26.3
Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Particulars Nos. of Shares % of holding Nos. of Shares % of holding
Employees Provident Fund 399,661 7.17% 399,661 7.17%
Devi Bahadur Shrestha 302,394 5.42% 302,394 5.42%
Rajendra Kumar Shrestha 195,113 3.50% 195,112 3.50%
Ram Hari Paudel 106,976 1.92% 126,976 2.28%
Sashikanta Agrawal 104,159 1.87% 104,159 1.87%
Amir Ratna Dangol 81,888 1.47% 81,888 1.47%
Suraj Shrestha 75,537 1.36% 75,536 1.36%
Jyoti Agrawal 71,155 1.28% - -
Mita Murarka Agrawal 57,857 1.04% - -
Durga Bahadur Shrestha 55,746 1.00% 55,746 1.00%
Naresh Lal Shrestha 55,745 1.00% 55,744 1.00%
Janak Kumar Shrestha 54,402 0.98% 54,402 0.98%
Bishnu Bdr Khatri 41,712 0.75% 41,712 0.75%
Mahima Basukala 36,233 0.65% 36,233 0.65%
Padam Bahadur Chhetri 35,344 0.63% 35,343 0.63%
Santosh Mainali 32,328 0.58% - -
Parbati Shrestha 31,225 0.56% 31,225 0.56%
Nirab Bhandari 30,970 0.56% 30,970 0.56%
Akesh Dangol 30,000 0.54% - -
Keshav Bahadur Basukala - - 38,667 0.69%
Shivratan Agrawal 28,502 0.51% - -
Bed Bahadur Shrestha 27,876 0.50% 27,875 0.50%
Pratap Khatri 27,874 0.50% 27,873 0.50%
Balaram Shrestha 27,874 0.50% 27,873 0.50%
Sarmila Shrestha Sakha 27,873 0.50% 27,873 0.50%
Shyam Krishna Shrestha 27,873 0.50% 27,873 0.50%
Reserves 4.27
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Statutory General Reserve 51,377,278 43,914,210 51,377,278 43,914,210
Exchange Equilisation Reserve - - - -
Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve 151,096 90,140 151,096 90,140
Capital Redemption Reserve - - - -
Regulatory Reserve 144,888,113 105,229,194 144,888,113 105,229,194
Investment Adjustment Reserve - - - -
Capital Reserve 18,746 18,746 18,746 18,746
Assets Revaluation Reserve - - - -
Fair Value Reserve (41,696,414) (36,766,404) (41,696,414) (36,766,404)
Dividend Equalisation Reserve - - - -
Actuarial Gain 8,631,550 8,744,201 8,631,550 8,744,201
Special Reserve - - - -
Other Reserve 4,920,577 3,818,356 4,920,577 3,818,356
Total 168,290,946 125,048,442 168,290,946 125,048,442
Contingent liabilities and commitments 4.28
Group Bank

Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Contingent liabilities 534,628 1,375,000 534,628 1,375,000
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 42,410,769 - 42,410,769 -
Capital commitment - - - -
Lease Commitment - - - -
Litigation - - - -
Total 42,945,397 1,375,000 42,945,397 1,375,000
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4.28.1

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080

Acceptance and documentary credit

Bills for collection

Forward exchange contracts

Guarantees

75,000 1,375,000

534,628 1,375,000

Underwriting commitment

Other commitments

Total

534,628 1,375,000

534,628 1,375,000

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

4.28.2

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080

Undisbursed amount of loans

Undrawn limits of overdrafts

42,410,769 -

42,410,769 =

Undrawn limits of credit cards

Undrawn limits of letter of credit

Undrawn limits of guarantee

Total

42,410,769 -

42,410,769 -

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision

statements

4.28.3

has not been made in financial

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080

Capital commitments in relation to Property and

Equipment

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Total

Lease commitments

4.28.4

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable

operating lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable

operating lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Grand total
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Litigation

4.28.5

The Bank has estimated contingent liability of Rs. 4,59,628 against the possibility of repayment of salary for the
suspended period in respect of legal case filed against suspended staff against whom litigation is pending in the

court.
Interest Income 4.29
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Cash and cash equivalent 13,695,509 21,241,941 13,695,509 21,241,911
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Placement with bank and financial institutions - - - -
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions 52,634,036 48,838,923 52,634,036 48,838,923
Loans and advances to customers 495,372,944 524,372,915 495,372,944 524,372,915
Investment securities - - - -
Loan and advances to staff 7,622,566 2,632,160 7,622,566 2,632,160
Other interest income 14,786,559 4,764,564 14,786,559 4,764,564
Total interest income 584,111,614 601,850,503 584,111,614 601,850,503
Interest Expense 4.30
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Due to bank and financial institutions - 2,271,337 - 2,271,337
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Deposits from customers 389,178,850 408,628,283 389,178,850 408,628,283
Borrowing 499,726 749,663 499,726 749,663
Interest Expense on Lease Liability 2,980,064 6,819,951 2,980,064 6,819,951
Debt securities issued - - - -
Subordinated liabilities - - - -
Other Charges - - - -
Total Interest expense 392,658,640 418,469,234 392,658,640 418,469,234
Fees and Commission Income 4.31
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Loan administration fees 17,197,364 13,995,604 17,197,364 13,995,604
Service fees - - - -
Consortium fees - - - -
Commitment fees - - - -
DD/TT/Swift fees - - - -
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees 201,851 100,980 201,851 100,980
Prepayment and swap fees 478,272 88,843 478,272 88,843
Investment banking fees - - - -
Asset management fees - - - -
Brokerage fees - 1,375 - 1,375
Remittance fees 670,296 1,407,106 670,296 1,407,106
Mobile banking issurance and renewal fees 3,644,621 2,493,405 3,644,621 2,493,405
Commission on letter of credit - - - -
Commission on guarantee contracts issued - - - -
Commission on share underwriting/issue - - - -
Locker rental - - - -
Other fees and commision income 1,290,554 1,509,545 1,290,554 1,509,545
Total Fees and Commission Income 23,482,959 19,596,857 23,482,959 19,596,857
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4.32

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

ATM management fees

VISA/Master card fees

Guarantee commission

Mobile banking expenses

1,360,803

984,083

1,360,803

984,083

DD/TT/Swift fees.

Remittance fees and commission

Other fees and commission expense

212,966

2,565,957

212,966

2,565,957

Total Fees and Commission Expense

1,573,768

3,550,040

1,573,768

3,550,040

Net Trading income

4.33

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Changes in fair value of trading assets

Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets

Interest income on trading assets

Dividend income on trading assets

Gain/loss foreign exchange transation

Other

Net Trading Income

Other Operating Income

4.34

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Foreign exchange revauation gain

Gain/loss on sale of investment securities

Fair value gain/loss on investment properties

Dividend on equity instruments

1,429,668

853,579

1,429,668

853,579

Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment

974,182

974,182

Gain/loss on sale of investment property

Operating lease income

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver

Other Operating Income

1,991,187

1,274,741

1,991,187

1,274,741

Total

3,420,855

3,102,502

3,420,855

3,102,502

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

4.35

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Asar End 2081

Asar End 2080

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to

BFIs

(3,183,697)

642,347

(3,183,697)

642,347

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to

customers

541,801

318,471,493

541,801

318,471,493

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with BFIs

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible

assets

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial assets

13,501,000

13,501,000

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

Total

10,859,105

319,113,840

10,859,105

319,113,840
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Personnel Expenses 4.36
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Salary 52,509,612 50,862,965 52,509,612 50,862,965
Allowances 19,735,025 19,076,714 19,735,025 19,076,714
Gratuity Expense 1,941,540 4,687,709 1,941,540 4,687,709
Provident Fund 4,603,936 4,437,009 4,603,936 4,437,009
Uniform 1,874,455 120,000 1,874,455 120,000
Training & development expense 1,671,878 1,206,506 1,671,878 1,206,506
Leave encashment 5,820,846 6,454,770 5,820,846 6,454,770
Medical 3,862,041 3,591,180 3,862,041 3,591,180
Insurance - - - -
Employees incentive - 50,000 - 50,000
Cash-settled share-based payments - - - -
Pension expense - - - -
Finance expense under NFRS 5,956,704 1,335,274 5,956,704 1,335,274
Other expenses related to staff 403,249 647,828 403,249 647,828
Subtotal 98,379,284 92,469,956 98,379,284 92,469,956
Employees Bonus 3,297,838 - 3,297,838 -
Grand total 101,677,123 92,469,956 101,677,123 92,469,956
Other Operating Expense 4.37
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Directors' fee 1,995,000 1,793,000 1,995,000 1,793,000
Directors' expense 974,145 844,929 974,145 844,929
Auditors' remuneration 710,770 655,400 710,770 655,400
Other audit related expense 884,861 457,610 884,861 457,610
Professional and legal expense 34,640 113,085 34,640 113,085
Office administration expense 35,990,027 33,099,213 35,990,027 33,099,213
Operating lease expense - - - -
Operating expense of investment properties - - - -
Corporate social responsibility expense 243,173 372,860 243,173 372,860
Onerous lease provisions - - - -
Other Expenses 9,737,640 8,241,231 9,737,640 8,241,231
Total 50,570,256 45,577,328 50,570,256 45,577,328
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Office Administration Expenses 4.371
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Printing & Stationery expenses 3,849,302 4,545,526 3,849,302 4,545,526
Connectivity Expenses 4,081,344 4,153,023 4,081,344 4,153,023
Repair & Maintenance - -
a) Building 85,885 50,368 85,885 50,368
b) Vehicle 906,183 876,499 906,183 876,499
¢) Computer & accessories 383,526 561,788 383,526 561,788
d) Office equipment and other 1,249,110 972,320 1,249,110 972,320
Office expenses 4,772,330 2,858,833 4,772,330 2,858,833
Light, Electricity & Water exp 2,996,443 2,593,936 2,996,443 2,593,936
Postage, Telex, Telephone & Fax 532,208 562,085 532,208 562,085
Security Expenses 6,762,556 6,183,055 6,762,556 6,183,055
Annual AGM expenses - 897,171 - 897,171
DCGC premium 2,882,332 2,563,823 2,882,332 2,563,823
Insurance exp 1,786,037 1,768,797 1,786,037 1,768,797
Periodicals & Books 36,100 34,087 36,100 34,087
Advertisement 2,114,336 1,004,338 2,114,336 1,004,338
Donation - - - -
Entertainment exp 563,471 794,550 563,471 794,550
Other-Registration and Renewal 2,988,864 2,679,014 2,988,864 2,679,014
Total 35,990,027 33,099,213 35,990,027 33,099,213
Depreciation and Amortisation 4.38
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Depreciation on property and equipment 14,405,383 15,033,790 14,405,383 15,033,790
Depreciation on ROU Asset 9,133,160 10,197,650 9,133,160 10,197,650
Depreciation on investment property - - - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 457,447 451,179 457,447 451,179
Total 23,995,990 25,682,619 23,995,990 25,682,619
Non Operating Income 4.39
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Recovery of loan written off - - - -
Other income - - - -
Total - - - -
Non Operating Expenses 4.40
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Loan written off - - - -
Redundancy provision - - - -
Expense of restructuring - - - -
Other expense - - - -
Total - - - -
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Income Tax Expenses 4.41
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Current tax expense
Current year - 9,713,418 - 9,713,418
Adjustments for prior years - - - -
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (732,317) 3,731,234 (732,317) 3,731,234
Changes in tax rate - - - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - - - -
Total income tax expense (732,317) 13,444,652 (732,317) 13,444,652
Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit 4.411
Group Bank
Particulars Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080 Asar End 2081 Asar End 2080
Profit before tax 29,680,546 (280,313,155) 29,680,546 (280,313,155)
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 8,904,164 (84,093,947) 8,904,164 (84,093,947)
Sﬂ:]p;zsa;( effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax 3106577 3.342,744 3.106,577 3342744
Less: Tax effect on exempt income - - - -
Add/less: Tax effect on other items (12,010,741) - (12,010,741) -
Total income tax expense - (80,751,203) - (80,751,203)
Effective tax rate 0.00% 28.81% 0.00% 28.81%

ﬁ



it Eu

2872y

ELNCR RE T

5. Disclosures and Additional Information
5.1. Risk Management
Risk is inherent in the Bank’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement,
monitoring and controlling. The bank has set risk limits and implemented controls. Each individual within the Bank
is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and continuous development of Bank's risk
management framework. The board oversee the appropriateness and sufficiency risk management policies and its
implementation. The board receives risk reports from risk management committee, deliberate on reports and issue
instructions to committee and the management.

Management committee ensures all risk management related policies are implemented. It oversees the functions
of Integrated Risk Management Department which is fully responsible for compliances of legal, regulatory or
contractual requirements on a continuous basis. Management Committee submits reports to board level risk
management committee and the board. The CRO ensures compliance of internal policies and procedures, prepares
risk related reports and submit to management and Risk management committee. Risk Management structure is
depicted below:

. RiskManagement
Committee
BOARD
—1 CEO CRO

Risk Management Committee

Board of Directors is the apex and supreme authority of the Bank and is responsible to frame and implement robust
policies and framework for effective compliance of regulation and direction issued by the regulatory authority. BOD
ensures the strategies, policies and procedure is in accordance with the risk appetite/tolerance limit for effective
management of risk within the Bank. The board understands the nature of risk of the bank, and periodically reviews
reports on risk management, including policies and standards, stress testing, liquidity and capital adequacy through
the reporting by the Risk Management Committee and the Management Committee.

Pursuant to the NRB directive on corporate governance, the Bank has established Risk Management Committee with
well-defined terms of reference in line the NRB directive. At least four meeting is conducted on annual basis however
number of meetings can be increased as per the requirement. The committee supervises overall risk management
of the Bank broadly classified as liquidity risk, market risk, operational risk and credit risk.

A. Credit Risk

The Bank has its own Credit Policy Guidelines to handle the Credit Risk Management philosophy that involves a
continual measurement of probability of default/loss; identification of possible risks and mitigations. The provisions
of Capital Adequacy Framework -2007 are compiled in line-to-line basis to overcome the Credit Risk. In order to
manage and eliminate the credit risk, the Bank has a practice of maintaining the best quality assets in its book. The
Bank’s Credit Policy elaborates detailed procedures for proper risk management. The Bank has delegated credit
approval limits to various officials to approve and sanction various amount of credit request based on their individual
expertise and risk judgment capability.

As a check and balance mechanism, each credit case requires dual approval. Regular monitoring of the credit
portfolio ensures that the Bank does not run the risk of concentration of portfolio in a particular business sector or
a single borrower. Similarly, the Bank also exercises controlled investment policy with adequately equipped resource
looking after the investment decisions.

The Bank has developed a risk assessment culture and has in place the required reports for assessing concentration

of risks. Periodic performance reporting based on Balanced Scorecard, in line with capital strength, to the Board is
alsoin place. These reports are periodically put up to the board. Board also reviews the same and issues instructions,

as appropriate, to the Bank's management.
L3
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During the current financial year, the Bank has availed the benefits of credit risk mitigation as under:

Particulars Asar end 2081 Asar end 2080
Deposits with own bank 40,030,901 49,852,571
Deposit with other banks and financial institutions - -
Securities issued by Nepal Government and Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Gold & Silver 100,013,054 98,140,554
Total 140,043,956 147,993,125

Collateral and other credit enhancements
The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty.
Guidelines are in place covering the acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral.

The general creditworthiness of customers tends to be the most relevant indicator of credit quality of a loan. However,
collateral provides additional security and the Bank generally requests large borrowers to provide same. The Bank
may take collateral in the form of a first charge over real estate and residential properties, floating charges over all
corporate assets and other liens and guarantees.

The Bank’s policy is to pursue timely realization of the collateral in an orderly manner. The proceeds are used to
reduce or repay the outstanding claim. The Bank generally does not use non-cash collateral for its own operations.

Definition of Past Due
Bank consider that any amounts uncollected one day or more beyond their contractual due date are ‘past due'.

Past due but not impaired loans

Past due but not impaired loans are those for which contractual interest or principal payments are past due, but
the Bank believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the stage of collection of amounts owed to the
Bank. All loans and advances have been impaired.

B. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in
market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and equity prices. The bank classifies
exposures to market risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios and manages each of those portfolios separately.

i. Currency Risk:

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Bank to experience volatility in the value of its assets, liabilities and
solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between the currencies of its assets and
liabilities and its reporting currency.

The Bank have not carried out any transactions in foreign currency & do not owned any assets in foreign currency.

ii. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The major interest rate risk that the bank is exposed to is the discount rate for determining.

iii. Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar
financial instruments traded in the market. The bank’s equity price risk exposure relates to financial investment held
at FVTOCI, whose values fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

C. Operational Risk

Operational Risk is defined as the risk of potential loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people
and systems or from the impact of external events, including legal risks for the bank. Operational Risk is pervasive
across all the functions of the Bank and is influenced by all resources, including human resource, systems and
procedural designs, deployed by the Bank to carry out those functions. Operational Risk can be caused by both internal
and external sources such as fraud, business interruptions, system failures, damage to physical infrastructure, failure

ﬁ
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in execution and service delivery, inherent risks in products, customers, inadequacy in procedures or flawed process
designs, and business practices. The risk can occur in any business function or the business supporting functions.

The Bank is committed to be governed with a strong culture of risk management and ethical business practices and
therefore to averse it from potentially damaging operational risk events and is in a sound position to deal effectively
with those events that do occur. The actions of the board and senior management, and policies, processes and
systems provide the foundation for a sound risk management culture

Bank seek to minimize our exposure to operational risk by use of key control standards, key control self-assessments
and key risk indicators as toolkits to identify, assess, monitor and control operational risk events through timely
acknowledgement of emerging threats and underlying vulnerabilities. The Bank shall also ensure highest level of
governance standards and adherence to Code of Conduct and robust compliance to all regulatory as well as the
Bank’s internal policy, procedures and guidelines.

The Bank has adopted dual control mechanism in its all-operational activities where each and every financial and
non-financial transaction is subject to approval from an authority higher than the transaction initiator. Regular
review meetings are conducted to assess the adequacy of risk monitoring mechanism and required changes are
made as and when felt necessary.

Effectivepolicies, proceduralguidelinesandstandard operating procedure are crucialtoolsforsoundriskmanagement.
Therefore, adequacy and effectiveness of the policies and procedures and their effective implementation is closely
monitored by the department to ensure that they have continuing relevance in line with regulatory requirement and
adjusts to dynamic risk environment of the industry.

D. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial commitments that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. Hence the bank may be unable to meet its payment obligations when they
fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged diversified funding
sources in addition to its core deposit base, and adopted a policy of continuously managing assets with liquidity in mind
and of monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The bank has formulated separate internal control
processes and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows
and the availability of high-grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The Bank maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets assumed to be easily liquidated in the event
of an unforeseen interruption of expected cash flow. The Bank also has committed lines of credit that could be
utilized to meet liquidity needs. Further, the Bank maintains a statutory deposit with the Nepal Rastra Bank and
other commercial Banks (for CRR purpose) at least equal to 4.00% of customer local deposits. In accordance with the
bank’s policy, the liquidity position is assessed and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration
to stress factors relating to both the market in general and specific to the Bank. The most important of these is to
maintain the required ratio of liquid assets to liabilities, to meet the regulatory requirement. Liquid assets consist of
cash, short-term bank deposits and liquid debt securities available for immediate sale. Further the Statutory Liquid
Assets Ratio of the Bank for the month of Asar 31, 2081 is 30.98%.

E. Risk Governance

Bank has a policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level arising to the bank and has inculcated
risk culture among the employees by establishing ownership mentality, capacity building programs, well defined job
responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture.

Through its Risk Management Framework, the Bank seeks to efficiently manage credit, market and liquidity risks
which arise directly through the Bank’s activities as well as operational, regulatory and reputational risks which arise
as a normal consequence of any business undertaking.

5.2. Capital Management

Capital management approach is driven by its desire to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business and to meet the regulatory capital requirements. The Bank’s capital management policies and practices
support its business strategy and ensure that it is adequately capitalized to withstand even in severe macroeconomic
downturns. Sindhu Bikas Bank is a licensed institution providing financial services therefore it must comply with
capital requirement of central bank so called Nepal Rastra Bank. The Bank’s capital consists of Tier I capital and Tier

II capital.
A
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A. Qualitative disclosures

The bank is assessing capital adequacy as per the framework as provided in Unified Directive-2080, directive no.1 as

issued by the Nepal Rastra Bank.

The bank is calculating, assessing, analyzing & monitoring the capital adequacy periodically.

The Board shall be primarily responsible for ensuring the current and future capital needs of the bank in relation
to strategic objectives. The management shall review and understand the nature and level of various risks that
the bank is confronting in the course of different business activities and how this risk relates to capital levels and
accordingly implement sound risk management framework specifying control measures to tackle each risk factor.

a) Capital structure and capital adequacy
o Tier 1 Capital and a breakdown of its Components:

Particulars

FY 2080-81

FY 2079-80

Paid up Equity Share Capital

557,456,067

557,456,067

Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares

Share Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

51,377,278

43,914,210

Retained Earnings

(371,784,191)

(360,814,369)

Un-audited current year cumulative profit

Special Reserve Fund

Capital Adjustment Reserves

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Capital Redemption Reserves Fund

Deferred Tax Reserve

Less: Goodwill

Less: Intangible Assets

1,919,544

2,145,949

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Less: Investment in equity of licensed Financial Institutions

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits

Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments

Less: Purchase of Land & Building in excess of limit & utilized

Less: Reciprocal crossholdings

Less: Other Deductions

Total Tier 1 Capital

235,148,356

238,428,704

o Tier 2 Capital and Breakdown of its Components:

Particulars

FY 2080-81

FY 2079-80

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

Subordinated Term Debt

Hybrid Capital Instruments

General loan loss provision

64,047,804

58,668,432

Exchange Equalization Reserves

Investments Adjustment Reserves

Accrued Interest Receivable on pass loan included in Regulatory Reserve

4,048,959

Interest Capitalized Reserve included in Regulatory Reserve

Other Reserves

Total Tier 2 Capital

68,096,763

58,668,432

ﬁ
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o Total Qualifying Capital:
Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
Core Capital (Tier 1) 235,148,356 238,428,704
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 68,096,763 58,668,432
Total Capital Fund 303,245,119 297,097,137

Capital Adequacy Ratio:
Tier I Capital to Total Risk weighted exposures as on 15th July, 2024 is 5.22%

Total Capital Fund to Total Risk weighted exposures as on 15th July, 2024 is 6.73%

Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support current and future activities,
if applicable:

Sindhu Bikash Bank adopts healthy risk management framework. The bank follows Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICAAP) and Risk Management Guideline while taking decision on any business. It has always
taken note of ICAAP and has taken steps accordingly in ensuring soundness of capital position and sustainability of
the business. The bank’s policies and procedures are approved by the Board of Directors and these documents provide
guidance on independent identification, measurement and management of risks across various businesses. Bank’s
different committees like Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee review the business and risks periodically
and take account of stress test results, scenario analysis so as to align risk, return and capital in sustainable manner.

The bank also defines risk aspects, considering domestic economic scenario, and puts in place the system to minimize
and remove such risk. The risk appetite and approach towards risk taking is well discussed in management level and
board level. It is always aligned with the business, its return and capital. Basel disclosures have been complied with,
addressing the risks and adopting measures to minimize their impact. Increasing complexities in risks, weakness of
businesses and fast changing world with intense competition pose a threat to sustainability.

Capital planning is an integral part of the bank’s medium-term strategic planning and annual budget formulation
process. Total risk weighted exposures for the projected level of business operations is calculated, the required
capital level is projected, and a plan is formulated to retain the required capital. The bank is well capitalized and able
to maintain the required capital through internal generation, and equally through capital markets if needed.

b) Risk exposures

Risk Weighted Exposures FY 2080-81

Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 3,973,307,229
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 318,393,806
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk -
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before Bank's adjustment of Pillar II) 4,291,701,035

o Risk Weighted exposures under each 11 categories of Credit Risk:
Categories FY 2080-81
Claims on Government and Central Bank -
Claims on Other Financial Entities -

Claims on Banks 201,247,605
Claims on Domestic Corporate and Securities Firms 968,383,674
Claims on Regulatory Retail Portfolio & Other Retail Portfolio 393,320,171
Claims secured by residential properties 1,287,902,201
Claims secured by Commercial real estate -
Past due claims 489,232,271
High Risk claims 125,355,737
Other Assets 498,848,786
Off Balance Sheet Items 9,016,784
Total 3,973,307,229
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o Total Risk Weight Exposures Calculation Table:

Risk Weighted Exposures FY 2079-80
Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 3,973,307,229
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 318,393,806
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk -
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before adjustments of Pillar II) 4,291,701,035
Adjustments under Pillar II
Add: Net liquid assets to total deposit ratio is not shortfall. -
Add: Overall risk management policies and procedures are not satisfactory. Add 2% of RWE 171,668,041
Add: RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 2 % of gross income. 43,288,000
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustment of Pillar II) 4,506,657,076
Total Core Capital 235,148,356
Total Capital 303,245,119
o Amount of Non-Performing Assets (both Gross and Net):
Particulars Gross Amount (Rs) Loan Loss Provision (Rs) Net NPL (Rs)
Restructured 2,237,700 279,713 1,957,988
Sub-Standard 100,658,747 25,164,687 75,494,060
Doubtful 53,179,522 26,589,761 26,589,761
Loss 291,556,071 291,556,071 -
Total 447,632,040 343,590,231 104,041,809

5.3. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

The financial assets and liabilities are classified in Amortized Cost, fair value through profit and loss and fair value
through other comprehensive income. The following table exhibit the classification of financial assets and liabilities:

Particulars As on 31st Asar 2081

Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Total
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 813,215,761 - - 813,215,761
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 139,936,167 - - 139,936,167
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Other Trading Assets - - - -
Loans and Advances to BFIs 273,245,826 - - 273,245,826
Loans and Advances to Customers 3,587,469,306 - - 3,587,469,306
Investment Securities 992,407,400 - 72,538,708 1,064,946,108
Investment in Subsidiaries - - - -
Investment in Associates - - - -
Investment Property 136,189,005 - - 136,189,005
Other Assets 162,407,393 - - 162,407,393
Total Financial Assets 6,104,870,858 - 72,538,708 6,177,409,566
Financial Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Deposits from Customers 5,892,048,223 - - 5,892,048,223
Borrowings 8,394,981 - - 8,394,981
Other Liabilities 174,030,883 - - 174,030,883
Debt Securities Issued - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 6,074,474,087 - - 6,074,474,087

ﬁ



5.4. Operating Segment Information

1. General Information:

Factors that management used to identify the entity’s reportable segments
An operating segment is a component of the Bank that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenue and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Bank’s
other components, whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources allocated to each segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available. Based on the nature of the business, transactions, products and services, the management
have identified three reporting segments for the purpose of financial reporting:

2. Information about segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
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Particulars Kavre Sindhupalchok Dolakha Chitwan Makawanpur Total

CRS;’teO“n‘]‘::Sf“’m external 262,729,103.41 205376,012.71 34,749,869.11 108,384,503.14  11,297,760.25 622,537,248.62
Inter Segment Expenses/revenues  -10,039,171.87  58,305,846.80  16,585,958.12 -55720,726.44  2,211,953.34  11,343,859.95
Net Revenue 272,768,275.28 147,070,165.91 18,163,910.99 164,105,229.58  9,085,806.91 611,193,388.67
Interest revenue 259,303,111.53 141,631,514.50 17,783,384.10 156,883,623.85  8,687,940.75 584,289,574.73
Interest expense 145,563,729.31 150,146,740.15  32,994,736.06  49,509,66332  14,443,771.31 392,658,640.15
Net interest expenses/revenue 113,739,382.23  -8,515,225.65 -15,211,351.96 107,373,960.53 -5,755,830.56 191,630,934.59
Depreciation and amortization ~ 16,124,474.88  3,874,023.82  789,870.90  2,487,407.41 72021292 23,995,989.93
Segment profit /(loss) 31,665067  -16,479,886  -10,681,289 35,854,009 9,945,038 30,412,863
Segment assets 2,182,816,331 2,983,492,279  735950,423 381,405,841  154,485452 6,438,150,327
Segment liabilities 5573723219 616,642,928 85980740 88,899,123 72,904,317  6,438,150,327

3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
The transaction between the department is recorded using the inter branch and inter department account. These
accounts arereconciled and inter department balances are cancelled out at each reporting date. The inter department

revenue and expenses are the transfer pricing of the funds which is calculated using the bank’s policy

4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

da. Revenue

b. Profit or loss

Total revenues for reportable segments 622,537,248.62 Total profit or loss for reportable segments 30,412,863
Other revenues Other profit or loss -
Elimination of intersegment revenues (11,343,859.95) Elimination of intersegment profits -
Entity's revenues 611,193,388.67 Unallocated amounts:

Profit before income tax 30,412,863

c. Assets d. Liabilities

Total assets for reportable segments 6,438,150,327 Total liabilities for reportable segments 6,438,150,327
Other assets - Other liabilities -
Unallocated amounts - Unallocated liabilities -
Entity's assets 6,438,150,327 Entity’s liabilities 6,438,150,327

5. Information about geographical areas
Revenue from following geographical area
Areas: Domestic

S

Province 1

Province 2

Province 3

611,193,388.67

Province 4

Province 5

Province 6

Province 7

Foreign

Total

611,193,388.67
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6. Information about major customers
The bank does not have any customer, which generate more than 10% of the entity’s revenue.

5.5. Share options and share based payment

A share-based payment is a transaction in which the bank receives goods or services either as consideration for its
equity instruments or by incurring liabilities for amounts based on the price of the entity’s shares or other equity
instruments of the entity. The bank does not have any share option and share based payment.

5.6. Contingent liabilities and commitment

Contingent Liabilities:

Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees issued, such as for
performance bonds or as irrevocable letters of credit as part of the Bank's transaction banking business for which an
obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are included in these financial statements
as contingent liabilities.

Other contingent liabilities primarily include revocable letters of credit and bonds issued on behalf of customers to
customs, for bids or offers.

Commitments:

Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form
of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Bank has not made
payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these financial statements as commitments.

Please refer Note No. 4.28.1 for the detail of contingent liabilities and commitments as at 31st Asar 2081.

Litigations:

The Bank has filed the legal case against the suspended staffs for the misutilization of the bank’s funds in Appellate
Court, Patan for the recovery of the fund. The Bank does not have any other litigation except the cases in ordinary
course of business. The Bank has estimated contingent liability of Rs. 4,59,628 against the possibility of repayment of
salary for the suspended period in respect of legal case filed against suspended staff. The Bank does not anticipate
any financial liability in any pending lawsuits other than stated as above.

5.7. Related parties’ disclosures
a) List of Related Party
The following parties have been identified as the related party transaction as per NAS 24:

S.N. Name of the Related Party Relationship

1 Damodar Prasad Subedi Chairman

2 Rajendra Kumar Shrestha Ex-Chairman

3 Neeva Dangol Shrestha Director

4 Sanjeeb Pradhan Director

5 Bharat Bahadur Karki Director

6 Basanta Kumar Katuwal Director

7 Sameer Kakshapati Director

8 Ram Kumar Giri Key Managerial Personnel

9 Ganesh Kumar Kc Key Managerial Personnel
10 Pramod Neupane Key Managerial Personnel
11 Rabin Kunwar Chettri Key Managerial Personnel
12 Ravi Kumar Upadhyaya Key Managerial Personnel

b) Related Party Transactions
Board of Directors Allowances and Facilities

S.N. Particulars No of Meetings Sitting Fees
1 Board Meeting 44 1,995,000
2 Audit Committee Meeting 8 56,000
3 Risk Management Committee 7 98,000
4 Assets Money Laundering Prevention Committee 5 25,000
5 Others 3 21,000
Total 2,195,000
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In addition to above meeting allowance, the Chairman of the board and other member are entitled to allowance for
telephone expenses and newspaper expenses. The total amount of Rs.209,500 is paid during the year as telephone
and newspaper reimbursement to the board of directors.

Key Managerial Personnel Emoluments and Facilities

S.N. Particulars Amount
1 Short Term Employee Benefits 11,751,939.19
2 Retirement Benefits
3 Others

Total 11,751,939.19

In addition to above, the bank also provides other facilities like telephone as per the approved employee facilities of
the bank.

5.8. Merger and acquisition
The bank has neither entered into merger nor acquired any bank and financial institutions.

5.9. Non-Banking Assets
Non-Banking Assets are the assets obtained as security for loans & advances and subsequently taken over by the

Bank in the course of loan recovery.

List of Non-Banking Assets:

S.N. Name of Borrower Date of assum-ing NBA Total amount of Non-Banking Assets (Rs.)
1. SHILASHILA TRADERS COMPANY PVT. LTD 2021/09/20 53,034,175
2. SIERRA MULTIPURPOSE PVT.LTD. 2024/07/15 83,154,830

5.10. Additional disclosure of non-consolidated entities:
a) As per the amendment to directive 4/80 (3) issued by Nepal Rastra Bank amount of Rs. 18,017,805 has been
transferred from Regulatory Reserve to Retained Earning with respect to Non-Banking Asset.

b) Previous year adjustments of amount Rs. 6,902,480 were made and were transferred to retained earnings and
general reserve from difference of following heads during the year.

Particulars Amount (Dr) Amount (Cr)
Lease Liabilities 7,088,459.09

PMS Receivable 482,301.01

Other Investment 213,381.47
ROU Asset 401,732.59
Retained Earning 5,521,983.66
General Reserve 1,380,495.91
Leasehold Properties 21,290.44
Equipment &Others 31,876.03

5.11. Events after reporting period

A. Impairment Charges/Reversal for loans and Advances

The Bank has measured impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms
prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39. The
Nepal Rastra Bank’s Directives No. 2, inter alia requires to bank to classify the loans and advances based on the due
dates. There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 31st Asar 2081 till the signing of this financial
statement.

5.12. Comparative Figures

Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year's
presentation.
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Comparison Unaudited and Audited Financial
Statements as of FY 2080/81

As per

As per

, ) Variance
Statement of Financial Position I.Nd'teid ur.|aud|t.ed Reasons for Variance
Financial Financial
Statement  Statement  1Mamount In%
Assets
Interest income from call deposits
Cash and Cash Equivalents 813,215,761 813,225,076 0.00% under-booked before now booked
after making bank reconciliation
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 139,936,167 139,936,167 0.00%
Placement with Bank and Financial
Institutions i i i i
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Other Trading Assets - 992,407,400  (992,407,400) -100.00% Adjustment due to reclassification
Loans and Advances to BFIs 273,245,826 273,245,826 - 0.00%
Loans and Advances to Customers 3,587,469,306 3,635,747,379  (48,278,073) -1.33% Loan & LLP Adjustment
Investment Securities 1,064,946,108 72,538,708 992,407,400 1368.11% Adjustment due to reclassification
Current Tax Assets 30,395,165 30,395,165 - 0.00%
Investment in Subsidiaries - - - -
Investment in Associates - - - -
Investment Property 136,189,005 136,189,005 - 0.00%
Property and Equipment 213,148,296 213,192,423 (44127)  -0.029 reversalof assets booked earlier for
revenue expenses
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 1,919,544 1,919,544 - 0.00%
Impact of remeasurement of Lease
Deferred Tax Assets 15,277,755 13,863,416 1,414,339 10.20% liability and Employee defined
benefit plan.
Impact of remeasurement of ROU
Other Assets 162,407,393 117,105,176 45,302,216 38.69% Asset and Deferred Employee
Expenditure.
Total Assets 6,438,150,327 6,439,765,286 (1,614,959)  -0.03%
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Deposits from Customers 5802,048,223 5877,348223 14,700,000  0.25% ‘L‘gi‘r';tme“t made in Deposit and
Borrowings 8,394,981 8,333,333 61,648 0.74%
Tax computation made earlier on gross
Current Tax Liabilities 9,713,418 35,327,483  (25,614,066) -72.50% profit without considering allowable
and disallowable income & expenses
Provisions - - - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities - - - -
Impact of remeasurement of Lease
Other Liabilities 174,030,883 143,091,688 30,939,194  21.62% liability, employee bonus and
Employee defined benefit plan.
Debt Securities Issued - - - -
Subordinated Liabilities - - - -
Total Liabilities 6,084,187,504 6,064,100,728 20,086,776 0.33%
Equity
Share Capital 557,456,067 557,456,067 - 0.00%
Share Premium - - - -
Adjustment made in LLP and also
Retained Earnings (371,784,191)  (373,589,156) 1,804,965 -0.48% adjustment for prior period items on
lease liability and ROU asset.
Reserves 168,290,946 191,797,646  (23,506,700)  -12.26% Due to change in profit amount
L‘::Ifi'eig‘"ty A O] 353,062,823 375,664,558  (21,701,735)
Total Liabilities and Equity 6,438,150,327 6,439,765,286 (1,614,959)
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As per As per Variance
Statement of Profit or Loss AUd'te.d ur.laudqed Reasons for Variance
Financial Financial In amount In %
Statement Statement
Interest Income 584,111,614 590302265  (6,190,651)  -1.06% D€ toreversal of unrealised interest
income on bad loan
Interest Expense 392,658,640 389,678,577 2,980,064 0.76%
Net Interest Income 191,452,974 200,623,688 (9,170,714) -4.79%
Fee and Commission Income 23,482,959 23,482,959 - 0.00%
Fee and Commission Expense 1,573,768 1,571,703 2,065 0.13% Due to adjustment entry
Net Fee and Commission Income 21,909,191 21,911,256 (2,065) -0.01%
Net Interest, Fee and Commisson 213,362,164 222,534,944  (9,172,779)  -4.30%
Income
Net Trading Income - - - -
Other Operating Income 3,420,855 3,420,855 - 0.00%
Total Operating Income 216,783,020 225,955,799 (9,172,779) -4.23%
Impairment Charge/ (Reversal) for 10,859,105  (41,334,863) 52,193,968 481% Due to additional loan loss provision
Loans and Other Losses made on loans and advances
Net Operating Income 205,923,915 267,290,662 (61,366,747) -29.80%
Operating Expenses
Impact of remeasurement of finance
Personnel Expenses 101,677,123 100,519,029 1,158,094 1.14% expense under NFRS and decrease in
employee bonus.
Other Operating Expenses 50570256 66,519,544  (15949,288) -31.54% Lmpactof remeasurement of
operating lease expenses
Depreciation & Amortisation 23,995,990 14,871,869 9,124,121 38.02% Due to adjustment entry
Operating Profit 29,680,546 85,380,220 (55,699,674) -187.66%
Non Operating Income - - - -
Non Operating Expense - - - -
Profit Before Income Tax 29,680,546 85,380,220 (55,699,674) -187.66%
Income Tax Expense
Current Tax . 25614066  (25614,066)  0.00% DUt remeasurementof tax
expenses based on Income Tax Law.
Deferred Tax (732,317) 702139 (1,434,455) 195.88% TDa”xe to remeasurement of Deferred
Profit for the Period 30,412,863 59,064,015 (28,651,152) -94.21%
Profit/(loss) for the period 30412863 59064015 (28,651,152) -94.21% Lmpactofchangeinincome&
expenditure as above.
Due to adjustment of Acturial loss on
Other Comprehensive Income (5,042,660) (5,089,598) 46,938 -0.93% PVDBO and adjustment of carrying
amount of Share Investment
Total comprehensive income 25,370,203 53,974,417 (28,604,215) -112.75%
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Principal Indicators of last 5 Financial Year

Bank

FY2076-77 FY2077-78 FY2078-79 FY2079-80 FY 2080-81

SN Particulars Unit

As per NFRS
1 Net Profit/ Gross Income Percent 3.01% -2.49% 9.85% -47.04% 4.98%
2 Earning Per Share NPR 2.06 (1.85) 8.31 (52.70) 5.46
3 Market Value Per Share NPR 134.00 401.00 268.20 279.00 454.00
4 Price Earning Ratio Ratio 65.10 (217.12) 32.29 (5.29) 83.22
5 Dividend (Including Bonus) Share Capital Percent 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
6 Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
7 Interestincome / Loans & Advances Percent 14.15% 9.71% 11.19% 14.85% 14.38%
8 Staff Expenses / Total Operating Expenses Percent 21.32% 22.06% 21.36% 15.79% 17.82%
9 Interest Expenses/ Total Deposit & Borrowings Percent 6.36% 4.63% 5.84% 8.42% 7.28%
10 Exchange Gain/Total Income 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
11 Staff Bonus/Total Staff Expenses Percent 2.26% 0.00% 8.73% 0.00% 3.24%
12 NetProfit/Loans & Advances Percent 0.45% -0.29% 1.16% -7.19% 0.73%
13 Net Profit/ Total Assets Percent 0.29% -0.21% 0.83% -5.51% 0.47%
14 Total Credit/ Deposits Percent 76.43% 85.56% 83.45% 83.85% 71.13%
15 Total Operation Expenses/Total Assets Percent 8.49% 6.73% 7.95% 10.99% 8.86%
16 Capital Adequacy (On Risk Weighted Assets)

(a) Core Capital Percent 21.48% 12.21% 11.55% 5.44% 5.22%
(b) Supplementary Capital Percent 1.19% 1.25% 1.17% 1.34% 1.51%
(c) Total Capital Fund Percent 22.67% 13.46% 12.72% 6.78% 6.73%
17 Cash Reserve Ratio Percent 4.49% 3.98% 2.70% 3.95% 4.30%
18 Non- Performing Loan / Loans & Advances Percent 1.96% 2.80% 1.60% 10.52% 10.63%
19 Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread 5.74% 4.96% 4.97% 4.59% 4.59%
20 Book Value Net Worth Per Share NPR 109.42 106.73 110.25 57.71 63.50
21 Number of Equity Shares Nos. 5,574,561 5,574,561 5,574,561 5,574,561 5,574,561
22 Number of Permanent Staffs Nos. 163 151 136 150 151
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2 General Purpose financial statements of the M/S Sindhu Bikash Bank

, which comprise the statement of financial position as at Ashadh 31, 2080

ah and the statement of profit or 10sé; statement of comprehensive income,

. changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
.ancial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

«r opinion, the accompanying financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects,

e financial position of the company as at Ashadh 31, 2080 ( July 16, 2023) and of its financial

performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities
Sor the Audit of the Financial Staterments section of our Report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon, The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the finaneial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and,, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our Enowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. /-—\
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whiole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in

our report:
S.N. | Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key
audit matters
a) | Capital Adequacy Compliance We assessed the bank's capital

The bank has been issued order for
Prompt Corrective Action by Nepal Rastra
Bank on 2081/03/11 due to inadequacy of
Capital Adequacy Ratio, Capital adequacy
is crucial for the financial stability of the
bank and regulatory compliance. Non-

mmplianée cah affect the bank's ability to"

absorb losses and meet its obligations,
impacting its operational continuity and
regulatory standing. So we considered this
matter to.be one of key significance.

capital

adequacy ratios against regulatory
requirements. We reviewed
management’s plans to address any
shortfalls in  capital adequacy.

We ensured that any necessary
adjustments or provisions related to
adequacy ‘were accurately
recorded in the financial statements.
We verified that disclosures regarding
capital adequacy were complete and
transparent.

b)

Identification of and provisioning
for

non-performing assets (NPA) on
loan and advances

The Bank has net advances amounting to
Rs. 3.6 billion as at 31 Ashad 2080,
Identification of and provisioning for non-
performing assets (loans) in accordance

with NFRS and relevant prudential norms”

issued by the Nepal Rastra Bank (WRB) in
respect of income recognition, asset
classification and provisioning pertaining
to advances (herein after referred as "NRB
Directives") is a key audit matter due to
the current processes at the Bank which
requires manual interventions,
management estimates and judgement
and level of regulatory and other
stakeholders focus, Accordingly, our audit
was focused on income recognition, asset
classification and provisioning pertaining

to advances due to the materiality of the |

Our audit approach included testing the
design, operating effectiveness of
internal controls and substantive audit
procedures in respect of income
recognition, asset classification and
provisioning pertaining to advances. In
particular:

We evaluated and wunderstood the
Bank's internal control system in
adhering to the relevant NRE Directives
regarding income recognition, asset
classification and provisioning
pertaining to advances.

We analyzed and understood key IT
systems, applications used and tested
the operational effectiveness of relevant
controls, including involvement of
manual process and manual controls in
relation to income recognition, asset
classification and provisioning
pertaining to advances.
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S.N.

Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the key
audit matters

balances and associated impairment
provisions.

c)

We evaluated the past

We test checked advances to examine
the validity of the recorded amounts,
loan documentation, examined the
statement of accounts, indicators of
impairment, impairment provision for
non-  performing  assets, and
compliance with income recognition,
asset classification and provisioning
pertaining to advaneces; and

trends of
management judgement, governance
process and review controls over
impairment provision ealculations and
discussed the provisions made with
senior management.

Information Technology Systems
and Controls Impacting Financial
Reporting

The Information Technology of the Bank

is complex and involves a large number of

independent and inter- dependent IT
Systems used in the operations of the

Bank for processing and recording a large”

volume of transactions. As a result, there
is a high degree of reliance and
dependency on such IT systems for the
financial reporting process of the Bank.

Appropriate IT General Controls and
application controls are required to ensure
that such IT systems are able to process
the data, as required, completely,
accurately, and consistently for financial
reporting.

We have considered this as key audit
matter as any control lapses, validation
failures, incorrect input data and wrong
extraction of data may result in wrong
reporting of data to management,
stakeholders, and regulators.

We conducted an assessment and
identified key IT  applications,
databases and operating systems that
was relevant to our audit and identified
Central Banking System (CBS) and
Treasury System primarily as relevant
for financial reporting. Our audit
approach was based on Information
Technology Guidelines zo12 issued by
NRB and it also involved testing of
design and operating effectiveness of
the internal controls and substantive
testing as follows: Obtained an
understanding of the Bank's I'T control
environment, IT policies and key
changes during the audit period.

Reviewed the design, implementation,
and operating effectiveness of the
Bank's General IT controls over the key
IT systems that are critical to financial
reporting on test check basis.
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Emphasis of Matter- Prompt Corrective Action

We draw attention to the Point 2.1 of Notes to the Financial Statements section of the financial
statements, which describe prompt corrective action taken by Nepal Rastra Bank on credit
degradation and shortfall of capital adequacy and possible impact on going concern of the
company and its operation. Bank has substantially complied the action notes for financial
statements of FY 2079-80 and adequately assessed its going concern and our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter,

Other Matters

We would like to draw attention that we have issued qualified opinion on Poush 29, 2080 and
certified financial statement for FY 2079-80, however bank had to recompile its whole sets of
financial statement due to regulatory instructions and we issued this opinion and certify
corresponding financial statements as per the same as complete substitute.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, managément is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Audit committee as those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit eondueted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on'the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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+ Obtain an understanding of internal contrdl relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control,

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor' report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or if such diselosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the company to express an opinion on the
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the company audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned seope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on the requirements of Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 and
y Companies Act, 2003

As per Section 66(3) of Bank and_Financial Institutions Act, 2073 we declare that-

» replies to the queries as per the demand were provided,

» the balance sheet, off-balance sheet transactions, profit and loss account, except for
the effects of the matters preseribed in the basis of opinion section of our report, cash
flow statement and other financial statements, as well, have been prepared in such
format and in accordance with such procedures as prescribed by the Rastra Bank, and
whether or not they actually matched with the accounts, records, books and ledgers
maintained by the bank and financial institution,

» the accouhts, records, books and ledgers have been maintained accurately in
accordance with prevailing laws,
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= any official of the bank or financial institution has not committed any act contrary to
the prevailing laws or committed any irregularity or caused any loss or damage to the
bank or financial institution,

= credits have been written off as per the Credit Write-off Byelaws or directives of the
Rastra Bank,

= the transactions of the financial institution have been carried on in a satisfactory
manner as prescribed by the Rastra Bank,

=  matters to be informed to the shareholders have been adequately provided in notes to
accounts and other disclosure

We did not come across, based on our audit, cases of accounting related fraud and the cases
where the board of directors or any director or any office bearer of the Bank has acted contrary
to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the Bank or committed any
misappropriation. of the funds of Bank and materially complied with the provisions of the
Compinies-Act 2063 as well.

-\..-I

'*I'.':ii:-h'“-:_'"""','-' e e n
iba Kmfmtn | Partner

—

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: Srawan 15, 2081
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Statement of Financial Position

As on 31st Asar, 2080

Group Bank
Particulars Note Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.1 665,138,048 1,000,941,234 665,138,048 1,000,941,234
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 175,007,227 87,659,297 175,007,227 87,659,297
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 44 - - - -
Other Trading Assets 4.5 246,464,250 - 246,464,250 -
Loans and Advances to BFIs 4.6 493,727,509 445,250,735 493,727,509 445,250,735
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7 3,268,406,331 3,548,577,259 3,268,406,331 3,548,577,259
Investment Securities 4.8 77,951,580 56,856,756 77,951,580 56,856,756
Current Tax Assets 49 6,943,059 396,344 6,943,059 396,344
Investment in Subsidiaries 4.10 - - - -
Investment in Associates 411 - - - -
Investment Property 4.12 53,034,175 77,503,113 53,034,175 77,503,113
Property and Equipment 413 221,845,063 198,440,296 221,845,063 198,440,296
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.14 2,145,949 2,165,490 2,145,949 2,165,490
Deferred Tax Assets 4.15 12,384,298 18,233,371 12,384,298 18,233,371
Other Assets 4.16 104,447,278 102,947,589 104,447,278 102,947,589
Total Assets 5,327,494,767 5,538,971,484 5,327,494,767 5,538,971,484
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417 - - - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.19 - - - -
Deposits from Customers 4.20 4,873,221,121 4,785,770,121 4,873,221,121 4,785,770,121
Borrowings 4.21 15,000,000 20,000,000 15,000,000 20,000,000
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - - - -
Provisions 4.22 - - - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 415 - - - -
Other Liabilities 4.23 117,583,506 118,579,794 117,583,506 118,579,794
Debt Securities Issued 4.24 - - - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - - - -
Total Liabilities 5,005,804,627 4,924,349,915 5,005,804,627 4,924,349,915
Equity
Share Capital 4.26 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067
Share Premium - - - -
Retained Earnings (360,814,369) (70,329,997) (360,814,369) (70,329,997)
Reserves 4.27 125,048,442 127,495,499 125,048,442 127,495,499
Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders 321,690,140 614,621,569 321,690,140 614,621,569
Non Controlling Interest - -
Total Equity 321,690,140 614,621,569 321,690,140 614,621,569
Total Liabilities and Equity 5,327,494,767 5,538,971,484 5,327,494,767 5,538,971,484
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 4.28 1,375,000 77,514,635 1,375,000 77,514,635
Net Assets Value per share 57.71 110.25 57.71 110.25
As per our report of even date
Sunita Baidar Ganesh Kumar K.C. Damodar Prasad Subedi ~ Neeva Dangol Shrestha ~ FCA Laba Kumar Khatri
Account & Finance Head ~ Act. Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director Partner
Sanjeeb Pradhan Basanta Kumar Katwal Sameer Kakshapati Bharat Bahadur Karki Sujan Kafle & Associates
Director Director Director Director

14 Shrawan, 2081 | Banepa, Kavre
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EULCRREED
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31st Asar, 2080
Group Bank
Particulars Note Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Interest Income 4.29 601,850,503 446,741,693 601,850,503 446,741,693
Interest Expense 4.30 411,649,283 279,459,666 411,649,283 279,459,666
Net Interest Income 190,201,221 167,282,027 190,201,221 167,282,027
Fee and Commission Income 4.31 19,596,857.21 20,577,203.60 19,596,857 20,577,204
Fee and Commission Expense 4.32 3,550,040.34 1,359,531.27 3,550,040 1,359,531
Net Fee and Commission Income 16,046,817 19,217,672 16,046,817 19,217,672
Net Interest, Fee and Commisson Income 206,248,038 186,499,700 206,248,038 186,499,700
Net Trading Income 4.33 - - - -
Other Operating Income 4.34 3,102,502 2,661,687 3,102,502 2,661,687
Total Operating Income 209,350,540 189,161,386 209,350,540 189,161,386
mpairment Charge/ (Reversal)for Loans and Other - 35 319,113,840  (46,605730) 319113840 (46,605730)
Net Operating Income (109,763,301) 235,767,117 (109,763,301) 235,767,117
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 4.36 92,469,956 94,502,556 92,469,956 94,502,556
Other Operating Expenses 4.37 62,594,929 50,990,332 62,594,929 50,990,332
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.38 15,484,969 16,025,302 15,484,969 16,025,302
Operating Profit (280,313,155) 74,248,927 (280,313,155) 74,248,927
Non Operating Income 4.39 - - -
Non Operating Expense 4.40 - - - -
Profit Before Income Tax (280,313,155) 74,248,927 (280,313,155) 74,248,927
Income Tax Expense 4.41
Current Tax 9,713,418 28,143,326 9,713,418 28,143,326
Deferred Tax 3,731,234 (194,418) 3,731,234 (194,418)
Profit for the Year (293,757,807) 46,300,018 (293,757,807) 46,300,018
Profit Attributable to:
Equity-holders of the Bank (293,757,807) 46,300,018 (293,757,807) 46,300,018
Non-Controlling Interest
Profit for the Year (293,757,807) 46,300,018 (293,757,807) 46,300,018
Earnings per Share
Basic Earnings per Share (52.70) 8.31 (52.70) 8.31
Diluted Earnings per Share (52.70) 8.31 (52.70) 8.31

As per our report of even date

Sunita Baidar Ganesh Kumar K.C. Damodar Prasad Subedi ~ Neeva Dangol Shrestha ~ FCA Laba Kumar Khatri
Account & Finance Head  Act. Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director Partner
Sujan Kafle & Associates
Sanjeeb Pradhan Basanta Kumar Katwal Sameer Kakshapati Bharat Bahadur Karki
Director Director Director Director

14 Shrawan, 2081 | Banepa, Kavre
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31st Asar, 2080

Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Profit for the year (293,757,807) 46,300,018 (293,757,807) 46,300,018
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Income Tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -
Gains/(losse;) from investment in equity instruments meas- (1,877,568) (39,625,387) (1,877,568) (39,625,387)
ured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revaluation 0 0 0
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 8,937,028 1,983,751 8,937,028 1,983,751
Income tax relating to above items (2,117,838) 11,292,641 (2,117,838) 11,292,641
z"ctla":s':g';;"t';";:z?l‘:’;i'}’:SL“‘°me that will not be 4941622  (26,349,495) 4,941,622  (26,349,495)
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge -
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial i i i i
assets of foreign operation)
Income tax relating to above items - - - -
Reclassify to profit or loss - - - -
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be i i ) )
reclassified to profit or loss
c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate i i ) )
accounted as per equity method
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, Net of Income Tax 4,941,622 (26,349,495) 4,941,622 (26,349,495)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (288,816,186) 19,950,523 (288,816,186) 19,950,523
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to: -
Equity-Holders of the Bank (288,816,186) 19,950,523 (288,316,186) 19,950,523
Non-Controlling Interest
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (288,816,186) 19,950,523 (288,816,186) 19,950,523
As per our report of even date
Sunita Baidar Ganesh Kumar K.C. Damodar Prasad Subedi  Neeva Dangol Shrestha ~ FCA Laba Kumar Khatri
Account & Finance Head  Act. Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director Partner
Sujan Kafle & Associates
Sanjeeb Pradhan Basanta Kumar Katwal Sameer Kakshapati Bharat Bahadur Karki
Director Director Director Director

14 Shrawan, 2081 | Banepa, Kavre
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31st Asar, 2080

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar end 2080  Asar end 2079

Asar end 2080  Asar end 2079

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest Received

606,940,615 374,250,901

606,940,615 374,250,901

Fee and Other Income Received 19,596,857 20,577,204 19,596,857 20,577,204
Dividend Received - - -
Receipts from Other Operating Activities 1,274,741 1,418,831 1,274,741 1,418,831
Interest Paid (411,649,283) (279,459,666) (411,649,283) (279,459,666)
Commissions and Fees Paid (3,550,040) (1,359,531) (3,550,040) (1,359,531)

Cash Payment to Employees

(93,805,230) (86,375,774)

(93,805,230) (86,375,774)

Other Expenses Paid

(62,594,929) (50,990,332)

(62,594,929) (50,990,332)

Operating Cash Flows before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities

56,212,730 (21,938,368)

56,212,730 (21,938,368)

(Increase)/ Decrease in Operating Assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

(87,347,930) 51,695,689

(87,347,930) 51,695,689

Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions

Other Trading Assets

Loans and Advances to BFIs

(49,119,120) 181,242,617

(49,119,120) 181,242,617

Loans and Advances to Customers

(36,965,292) (561,932,343)

(36,965,292) (561,932,343)

Other Assets

(302,590,616) (34,357,368)

(302,590,616) (34,357,368)

Increase/ (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities

Due to Banks and Financials Institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from Customers

87,451,000 527,917,063

87,451,000 527,917,063

Borrowings

(5,000,000) 20,000,000

(5,000,000) 20,000,000

Other Liabilities

(996,288) 69,216,714

(996,288) 69,216,714

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities before Tax Paid

(338,355,516) 231,844,005

(338,355,516) 231,844,005

Income Tax Paid

(13,444,652) (27,844,204)

(13,444,652) (27,844,204)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

(351,800,168) 203,999,800

(351,800,168) 203,999,800

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Investment Securities

(21,094,824) 41,375,661

(21,094,824) 41,375,661

Receipts from Sale of Investment Securities

974,182 1,193,771

974,182 1,193,771

Purchase of Property and Equipment

(38,438,557) (16,436,879)

(38,438,557) (16,436,879)

Receipts from Sale of Property and Equipment

Purchase of Intangible Assets

(431,638) (200,000)

(431,638) (200,000)

Purchase of Investment Properties

Receipts from Sale of Investment Properties

24,468,938 (51,746,336)

24,468,938 (51,746,336)

Interest Received 48,838,923 43,942,197 48,838,923 43,942,197
Dividend Received 853,579 49,084 853,579 49,084
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 15,170,604 18,177,498 15,170,604 18,177,498

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Issue of Debt Securities

Repayments of Debt Securities

Receipts from Issue of Subordinated Liabilities

Repayments of Subordinated Liabilities

Receipt from Issue of Shares

Dividends Paid

Interest Paid

Other Receipts/Payments

826,379 (26,663,332)

826,379 (26,663,332)

Net Cash from Financing Activities

826,379 (26,663,332)

826,379 (26,663,332)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

(335,803,186) 195,513,966

(335,803,186) 195,513,966

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Shrawan 01, 2079

1,000,941,234 805,427,268

1,000,941,234 805,427,268

Effect of Exchange Rate fluctuations on Cash and Cash Equivalents Held

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Asar End 2080

665,138,048  1,000,941,234

665,138,048  1,000,941,234

As per our report of even date

Sunita Baidar Ganesh Kumar K.C. Damodar Prasad Subedi ~ Neeva Dangol Shrestha  FCA Laba Kumar Khatri
Account & Finance Head  Act. Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director Partner
Sujan Kafle & Associates
Sanjeeb Pradhan Basanta Kumar Katwal Sameer Kakshapati Bharat Bahadur Karki
Director Director Director Director

14 Shrawan, 2081 | Banepa, Kavre
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Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31st Asar, 2080 (As per NRB Regulation)

Group Bank

Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss (293,757,807) 46,300,018 (293,757,807) 46,300,018
Appropriations: - (209,133) (209,133)
a. General reserve - (9,260,004) - (9,260,004)
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund - -

¢. Capital redemption reserve - -

d. Corporate social responsibility fund - (463,000) - (463,000)
e. Employees’ training fund (2,835,077) (2,189,785) (2,835,077) (2,189,785)
f. Other - -

a) Bonus share - - -

b) Cash Dividend Paid - - - -

¢) Investment Adjustment Fund - (249,059) - (249,059)

d) CSR Expenses 372,860 - 372,860

e) Staff Training Expenses 1,206,506 - 1,206,506 -
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment (295,013,518) 33,929,037 (295,013,518) 33,929,037
Regulatory adjustment :

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (11,305,818) (2,402,881) (11,305,818) (2,402,881)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) - - - -
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/ i i i i

reversal (+)

d. f:\ferrtsg’la('l)bss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/ 15415431 (32,600,192) 15415431 (32,600,192)
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) 5,849,072 (11,487,059) 5,849,072 (11,487,059)
f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) - - - -
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) - - - -
h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) - - - -
i. Other (+/-) - -

- Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investment Securities (1,314,297) (27,489,062) (1,314,297) (27,489,062)
Z'iitr';;zft'itof:r the year end 31 Ashad 2080 (16)July 2023)for 00 369 430)  (40,050,156) (286,369,130 (40,050,156)
Opening Balance in Retained Earnings (74,445,239) (30,279,842) (74,445,239) (30,279,842)
Adjustment(+,-) - - - .
Distributions:

Bonus Shares Issued - - - -
Cash Dividend Paid - - - -
Total Distributable profit or (Loss) as on 31 Ashad 2080 (360,814,369) (70,329,998) (360,814,369) (70,329,998)
(16 July 2023)

Annualised Distributable Profit/Loss per share (0.00647) (0.00126) (0.00647) (0.00126)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Financial
Statements, unless otherwise indicated.

1. Reporting Entity

SINDHU BIKASH BANK is a “B” class development bank operating in 5 districts i.e., Sindhupalchowk, Kavrepalanchowk,
Dolakha, Chitwan and Makawanpur. It was established in Bhadra 22, 2067 i.e., September 7, 2010.

This bank is licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank (Central Bank of Nepal) as Class “B” Development Bank and running under
the Company Act & Bank & Financial Institution Act of Nepal. The Bank is listed on Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd and its
stock symbol is “SINDU".

2. Basis of Preparation
2.1. Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared considering bank as a ongoing concern as the Board of the Bank is satisfied
that the Bank has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the
Board of Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including
future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

In the course of regular inspection by Nepal Rastra Bank, the Bank has been imposed Prompt Corrective Action due
to downgrading of some high value credit resulting to addition of loan loss provision for the financial year 2079-80.
Though this addition of provision has reduced capital fund substantially, it doesn't affect the above assumption of
going concern. These loans are well supported by land collateral assets covering the whole loan amount. The Bank
is confident of full recovery of all those loans.

2.2. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis and under historical cost conventions except
where the standards require otherwise. The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with
Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) developed by the Accounting Standards Board, Nepal (ASB, Nepal) and
pronounced for application by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

The financial statements comprise of Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, Statement in Changes in Equity, Statement of Cashflows and Notes to the Accounts
on the format prescribed by NRB Directive No. 4.

2.3. Reporting Period
The Bank follows the Nepalese financial year based on Nepali calendar starting from 1st Shrawan 2079 and ending
on 31st Asar 2080. (17th July 2022 to 16th July 2023).

2.4. Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is functional and presentation currency of
the bank. The financial information presented has been rounded off to nearest rupee except where otherwise stated.

2.5. Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgment

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in
the application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of the notes wherever the
estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

Reporting Pronouncement
The Bank has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB as effective on 13
September 2013. The NFRS conform, in all material respect, to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as

issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
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However, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) vide its notice dated 10 November 2020 has resolved
that Carve-outs in NFRS with Alternative Treatment and effective period shall be provided to the Banks and Financial
Institutions regulated by NRB on the specific recommendation of Accounting Standard Board (ASB).

2.6. Changes in Accounting Policies
The accounting policies are applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements except for new
or revised statements and interpretations implemented during the year.

2.7. New Reporting standards issued but not effective

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation, NAS 39 Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments - Disclosures have been applied. NFRS 9 has
been complied for the classification of Financial Instruments. Few carve-outs on applicable accounting standards
as provided by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal have been used by the Bank, the quantitative and
qualitative impact of the same have been disclosed in detail in Notes to the Accounts. Further, several new standards
and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by International Accounting
Standard Board after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when
Accounting Standard Board Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.

2.8. Discounting
Non-current assets and liabilities are discounted where discounting is material. Interest income and expenses have
been recognized on the unwinding of financial assets and liabilities respectively.

Significant Accounting Policies

3.1. Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following material items in

the Statement of Financial Position:

o Available for sale investments (quoted) are measured at fair value.

o Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value of the defined benefit obligation less
the fair value of the plan assets.

3.2. Basis of consolidation
The bank does not have any subsidiaries & so the disclosure in this section is not applicable.

3.3. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent comprise short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and carried at amortized cost.

The cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement include cash in hand, balances with banks,
money at call and money market funds and financial assets with original maturity less than 3 months from the date
of acquisition.

3.4. Financial assets and Financial Liabilities

a. Recognition

The bank recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs
in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities, other than those carried at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities which are carried at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL), are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

b. Classification
The financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value based on business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Financial assets are classified under three categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:

i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost:
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortized
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cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR) method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR and loss arising
from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
ii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial
assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI).
.Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss:
The bank classifies the financials assets as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or designated
at fair value through profit or loss.

Any other financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified under two categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:

i. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.
Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized at profit or loss.

ii. Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently
measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

c. De-recognition
The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

d. Determination of Fair Value

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Bank follow three levels of the
fair-value-hierarchy are described below:

Level 1:Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;

Level 2:Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable or valuations of quoted
for similar instrument in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instrument in inactive
markets; and

Level 3:Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable. Investment in Unquoted Equity
Instrument are carried cost as the market price of such shares could not be ascertained with certainty at the
reporting date.

e. Impairment

The Bank reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether an
impairment loss should be provided in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The Management'’s judgement is extensively
used in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. These
estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting in
future changes to the provisions made.

The individual impairment provision applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based
on Management's best estimate of the present value of the future cash flows that are expected to be received. In
estimating these cash flows, Management makes judgements about the number of factors including a borrower’s
financial situation and the net realizable value of any underlying collateral.

Top borrowers and loans classified as non-performing assets as per NRB norms forming part of 25% of the portfolio

are tested for individual impairment. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits to estimate the recoverable
amount of cash flows.
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The Bank considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:

o Whether the counterparty is in default of principal or interest payments.

o When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its obligation.

o Where the Bank initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of the counterpart.

o Where the Bank consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished financial obligation,
demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or postponement of scheduled payments.

o Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
of a bank of financial assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with specific individual financial
assets.

A collective impairment provision is established for:

o groups of homogeneous loans and advances and investment securities which are held-to-maturity, that are not
considered individually significant; and

o groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually impaired.

The collective impairment is carried using the statistical modelling such as historical trends of probability of defaults,
timings of recoveries, and current economic and market conditions which may warrant for the loss being greater
than the suggested by the historical trends.

For the purpose of collective assessment of impairment bank has categorized assets into following broad products
as follows:

o Auto Loan

o Home Loan

o Term Loan

o Personal Loan

o Short Term Loan

Carve out adopted for assessment of impairment charge

The Bank has opted to apply carve out on impairment of loans and receivables. Accordingly, individual and collective
impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS is compared with the impairment provision required under NRB
directive no. 2, higher of the amount derived from these measures is taken as impairment loss for loans and
receivables.

3.5. Trading Assets

Financial assets are classified as trading assets (held for trading) if they have been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or form part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are recognized on trade date,
when the bank enters into contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are normally derecognized when
sold. They are initially measured at fair value, with transaction costs taken to profit or loss. Subsequent changes in
their fair values are recognized in profit or loss.

3.6. Derivatives assets and derivative liabilities
The bank does not have derivative assets as on the reporting date so the disclosure in this section is not applicable.

3.7. Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and measurement:

The bank applies the cost model to all property and equipment and recognize these at the cost of acquisition plus
expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost also includes the cost of replacing part of the equipment when the recognition criteria
are met.

Depreciation:

Depreciation is calculated by using the written down value method on cost or valuation of the Property & Equipment
other than freehold land and leasehold properties. Depreciation on leasehold properties is calculated by using the
straight-line method on cost or valuation of the property. The rates of depreciations are given below:

q0g



it Eu

2872y

¥ ufaaga

The Bank has not measured the any property and plant at revaluation model and at fair value. Assets having
acquisition cost less than or equal NPR 10,000 have been written off as an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
Rate of Depreciation per annum (%)

Asset Category For the year ended For the year ended
16 July, 2023 15 July, 2022
Freehold Buildings 5% 5%
Motor Vehicles 15% 15%
Computer Equipment 25% 25%
Furniture 15% 15%
Office Equipment 15% 15%
Leasehold Properties 20% 20%

3.8. Goodwill/Intangible Assets

a. Goodwill

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in Business Combination
is recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The Bank follows
the partial goodwill method for the computation of goodwill in business combinations. Goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired.

b. Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets are recognized when the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, there is control over the asset
as a result of past events, future economic are expected from the asset. These intangible assets are recognized at
historical cost lessimpairment less amortisation over their estimated useful life. Amortisation of the intangible assets
is calculated using the straight-line method over the useful life based on a pattern in which the asset’s economic
benefits are consumed by the bank.

3.9. Investment Property

Investment properties are land or building or both other than those classified as property and equipment under NAS
16 - “Property, Plant and Equipment”; and assets classified as non-current assets held for sale under NFRS 5 - “Non-
Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”. Land and Building acquired as non-banking assets are
recognised as investment property.

Investment properties are measured at cost, including transaction costs. Depreciation is charges in investment
property as they are partly intended for the owner-occupied use.

3.10. Income Tax

Tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

a. Current Tax

Current tax is the income tax expense is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates
to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in equity or in
other comprehensive income. Current tax is the amounts expected or paid to Inland Revenue Department in respect
of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

b. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet and the amounts attributed to such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the periods in which the assets will be realised
or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they arise in the same tax reporting bank and relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and when the bank has a legal right to offset.
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3.11. Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

a. Deposits

Deposits by banks & customers are financial liabilities of the bank as there is an obligation to deliver cash or financial
assets back to the depositing bank or customer and are initially recognised at fair value, plus for those financial
liabilities not at fair value through profit and loss. The transaction price is considered as the fair value for measuring
the deposits.

b. Debt Securities Issued
Debt Securities are initially measured at the fair value less incremental direct cost and subsequently at their amortised
cost using effective interest method except where the bank designates liabilities at fair value through profit t or loss.

c. Subordinated Liabilities
These are the liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to claims of depositors, debt securities issued and
other creditors. It shall include redeemable preference shares, subordinated notes issued, borrowings etc.

3.12. Provisions

A provision is recognized if as a result of a past event, the bank has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
The amount recognised is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date, taking in to account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation at that date. Provisions
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates and are reversed if there is not
the probability of outflow of resources.

The contingent liability are the liabilities for which it is uncertain as to whether it will become an obligation as
it depends on the occurrence of an uncertain future event. These amounts are off-balance sheet items and are
disclosed when there is a possible obligation that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources. A
provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from a contract
are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.

3.13. Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Bank and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

a. Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financial assets through other
comprehensive income interest income or expense is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. The calculation of effective interest rate includes all charges and fee paid or received that are integral part
of the effective interest only if considered necessary. Such a charges are not amortized over the life of the loan and
advances as the income so recognized closely approximates the income that would have derived under effective
interest method and are recognized directly in statement of profit and loss.

The interest income recognized in the statement of profit and loss includes the following:

o Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest rate method,
except for impaired loans and advances. These financial assets include investment in government securities,
investment in NRB Bond and deposit instruments, reverse repos, interbank lending, etc.

o As per carve out on NAS 39 Para 9, the Bank has not included the fees and paid or received in loans and advances
that are immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably the effective interest rate and have recognized them
directly as revenue in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

o As per carve out on NAS 39 AG 93, the Bank has applied the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
a financial asset unless the financial asset is written off either partially or fully.

o Interest on investment securities is calculated on effective interest rate.

o Income on discounted instruments like bills purchased, documents negotiation is recognized over the period of
discounting on accrual basis using effective interest rate.

o The bank has adopted the following criterion in to suspend the interest income where there is reasonable doubt
about the collectability of the interest:

- Loans where there is reasonable doubt about the ultimate collectability of principal or interest;
- Loans against which individual impairment as per NAS 39 or life time impairment as per NFRS 9 has been made;
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- Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 3 months in arrears and where
the “net realizable value” of security is insufficient to cover payment of principal and accrued interest;

- Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 12 months in arrears, irrespective
of the net realizable value of collateral;

- Overdrafts and other short-term facilities which have not been settled after the expiry of the loan and even not
renewed within 3 months of the expiry, and where the net realizable value of security is insufficient to cover
payment of principal and accrued interest;

- Overdrafts and other short-term facilities which have not been settled after the expiry of the loan and even not
renewed within 12 months of the expiry, irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral.

b. Fee and Commission Income
Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.

c. Dividend Income
Dividend income received from equity shares is recognized in the books when the bank’s right to receive the dividend
is established.

d. Net Trading Income

Net Trading Income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value, related capital gain/loss and dividend
from financial assets through profit and loss. Trading expenses are deducted from the trading income and the
amount net of trading expenses are disclosed in statement of profit and loss.

e. Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss
Net income from other financial instrument measured at fair value through Profit or Loss includes all gains/(losses)
arises from the revaluation of financial instrument at fair value.

3.14. Interest Expense
Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using effective interest
rate method.

3.15. Employee Benefits

a. Short term employee benefits

The bank’s short-term employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, allowances, socials security expenses,
bonuses as provided in the law and other employee related expenses. Short term employee benefits are measured
on an undiscounted basis and are charged to statement of profit and loss as and when the related service is provided.

b. Long term employee benefits

o Defined Contribution Plans
The contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in profit or loss as and when the services are
rendered by employees which the bank contributes fixed percentage of the salary to the Employee’s Provident
Fund. The Bank has no further obligations under these plans beyond its periodic contributions.

o Defined Benefit Plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The bank’s net
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in current and prior periods. That benefit
is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan
assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on corporate bonds, that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the bank’s obligation and that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits are expected to be paid.

The defined benefit obligation is recognised on the basis of the report of qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. The bank recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans immediately in
other comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined benefits plans in employee benefit are expensed
in profit and loss account.

Measurements of the net defined benefit liability comprise actuarial gains and losses. The return on plan assets
(excluding interestincome) and the effect of the assets ceiling (if any excluding interest) are recognized immediately
in Other Comprehensive Income. The bank determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined
liability (assets) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
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beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefits liability (assets), taking into account any changes
in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefits payments. Net
interest expenses and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized as personnel expenses in
Statement of profit and Loss.

The bank provides gratuity and leave encashment as the defined benefits plans to its employees.
Bank has not been registered with Social Security Fund during the FY 2079-80.

3.16. Leases

Lease accounting has been prepared according to NFRS 16. Upon lease commencement the bank has recognized a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of the lease liability
plus any initial direct costs incurred by the bank. After lease commencement, bank has measured the right-of-use
asset using a cost model. Under the cost model a right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted at the borrowing yield rate of the bank.

3.17. Foreign Currency Transactions, Translation and Balances
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR). The bank does not have carried out foreign
currency transactions during the reporting period.

3.18. Financial guarantee and loan commitments

Financial Guarantees are contingent liabilities that arise out of the contract that the bank might make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is
due in accordance with terms of debt instrument. Guarantee liabilities being the off-balance items are disclosed if
the outflow of economic resources is probable.

Loan commitment is the commitment where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or
on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not, or letters of
credit and the Bank has not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these financial
statements as commitments.

3.19. Share capital and reserves

Equity is the residual interest in the total assets of the Bank after deducting all of its liability. Shares are classified as
equity when the Bank has an unconditional right to avoid delivery of cash or another financial asset, that is, when
the dividend and repayment of capital are at the sole and absolute discretion of the Bank and there is no contractual
obligation whatsoever to that effect. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are
deducted from the initial measurement of the equity instruments considering the tax benefits achieved thereon.

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in
which they are declared.

Reserves are the allocation out of profit or retained earnings. These are created as statutory requirement, accounting
standard requirement and bank’s own requirement.

3.20. Earnings per share including Diluted EPS

Bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of Bank by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both the profit and loss
attributable to the ordinary equity holders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.21. Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of an entity:

o that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and
expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity),

o whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available.
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Not every part of an entity is necessarily an operating segment or part of an operating segment. For example, a
corporate headquarters or some functional departments may not earn revenues or may earn revenues that are only
incidental to the activities of the entity and would not be operating segments. For the purposes of this NFRS, an
entity’'s post-employment benefit plans are not operating segments.

The geographical segment has been identified on the basis of the location of the branches in 5 different District of
the country.

3.22. Investment in Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Bank has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies. Investments in associate entities are accounted for using the equity method (equity-accounted
investees) and are recognized initially at cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs.

The Bank doesn't have any associate till date.

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Disclosures)

A. Staff Loans measured at fair value

Under previous NAS, staff loans were recorded at cost less repayments net of loan loss provision, if any. Under NFRS,
the Bank has to measure the staff loans granted below the market interest rate at their fair value, calculate based on
the market interest rate of similar products.

The fair value (Amortized cost) of such loans as at Asar 31, 2080 was Rs. 32,284,075 and their previous NAS carrying
amount was Rs. 38,368,150 The difference between the fair value and NAS carrying amount was Rs. 44,350,245 has

been netted off against staff loans & recognized as pre-paid staff cost in other assets.

B. Provisions (excluding provision for tax)

Particular Asar End 2080 Asar End 2079

Provision/(Reversal) for loans and advances 410,279,930 91,166,090
Provision for other assets 209,666 209,666
Provision for investments 48,948,524 45,981,684.27
Provision for PMS investment 3,574,909 4,664,180.88

In compliance with the NRB Directives and subsequent amendment there to, specific loan loss provision was made
based on the arrears time period and General provision were made at a specified rate given by NRB time to time.

Loan has been impaired with the amount which is higher between NFRS impairment and NRB 2.2 provisions as per
the Carve-outs issued which has been calculated as below.

Particular Asar End 2080 Asar End 2079
Loan and Advances 4,086,206,616 4,019,776,112
Pass Loan 3,352,348,773.88 3,776,790,425
Watchlist 301,757,960.46 178,748,220
Restructured / Rescheduled 2,300,000.00 -
Sub-standard 28,998,158.76 14,042,589
Doubtful 113,454,529.86 41,150,244
Bad 287,347,193.17 9,044,634
Staff loan 32,284,075 38,368,150
Accrued Interest Receivable 53,929,034 26,849,821
Total Loan As per NFRS 4,172,419,726 4,084,994,084
Total Loan Loss Provision 410,279,930 91,166,090
Pass 43,580,534.06 49,098,276
Watch List 15,087,898.02 8,937,411
Restructured / Rescheduled 287,500.00 -
Sub-standard 7,249,539.69 3,510,647
Doubtful 56,727,264.93 20,575,122
Bad 287,347,193.17 9,044,634
Opening of Loan Loss Provision 91,166,090 145,350,841
Addition/(Reversal) of Loan Loss Provision 319,113,840 (54,184,751)
Total Collective Impairment of Loans and Advances-NFRS - -
Addition/(Reversal) of loss provision as per NRB 319,113,840 (54,184,751)

193



& Sindhu Bikash Bank Ltd.
V. RAct] [P Sab 13T,

* Provision for investments increased by NRs. 1,877,568.48 primarily due to provision on equity shares.

* The Bank has detected embezzlement of fund during FY 2079/80 committed by Mrs.Ruksa Shrestha, Act. BM of
the Barhabise branch. During the internal investigation made by the bank, it was observed that Mrs. Shrestha
has embezzled approx. NRs. 1.35 Crores. The Bank has filed the Legal case against Mrs. Shrestha & other related
persons to recover the embezzled amount at Appellate Court, Patan through Criminal Investigation Bureau (CIB),

Kathmandu.

C. Financial Investments - Available for Sale

The bank’s investment in shares and mutual fund are carried at fair value through other comprehensive income.
The bonus share received is accounted by increasing the number of shares without changing the cost of the shares.

The details of the investment made in these securities are presented in Note 4.8.3.

D. Staff Training Fund

NRB directive 6 require BFIs to incur expenses towards employee and development equivalent to at least 3% of the
preceding year's total staff expenses Amount remaining to the incurred towards employee training and development

has been presented as staff training fund as per the requirement of the NRB directive as shown below:

Particular Asar End 2080 Asar End 2079

Opening Staff Training Fund 2,189,785 -
Add: 3% of the last year staff expenses 2,835,077 2,189,785
Less: Actual staff training expenses this year 1,206,506 -
Closing Staff Training Fund 3,818,356 2,189,785

E. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

NRB directive 6 require BFIs to create towards corporate social development fund and appropriate an amount
equivalent to 1% of net profit annually into this fund for covering expenditure related to CSR activities in the

subsequent year.

Particular Asar End 2080 Asar End 2079

Opening CSR Fund 463,000 -
Add: 1% of profit this year - 463,000
Less: CSR Expenses this year 372,860 -
Closing CSR Fund 90,140 463,000

F. Regulatory Reserve

The amount to this reserve has been created from the profit/retained earnings as per the Directive of NRB for the
purpose of implementation of NFRSs and is not regarded as free for distribution of dividend. Details are as presented

under:
Particular Asar End 2080 Asar End 2079
Opening Regulatory Reserve 113,873,582 39,894,389
Interest receivable on loans and advances 11,305,818 2,402,881
Actuarial losses
Change in fair value on equity investment 1,314,297 27,489,062
Provision for Non-banking assets (Reversal) (15,415,431) 32,600,192
Deferred Tax Assets (Reversal) (5,849,072) 11,487,059
Closing Regulatory Reserve 105,229,194 113,873,582
The component wise break-up of the regulatory reserve is as follows:
Particular Interest Actuarial Provision for Deferred tax Fair value loss Total
Receivable Loss Non-Banking assets recognized in
assets 0CI
Balance as of Asad 31, 2076 2,291,021 928,859 - 2,302,319 2,717,942 8,240,141
Addition/ Reversal during the FY 2076/77 (1,464,596) (928,859) 423,599 (1,116,550) (3,086,406)
Balance as of Asad 31, 2077 826,425 - - 2,725,918 1,601,392 5,153,735
Addition during the FY 2077/78 8,131,839 - 16,226,769 4,020,394 6,361,651 34,740,654
Balance as of Asad 31, 2078 8,958,264 - 16,226,769 6,746,312 7,963,044 39,894,389
Addition upto Asad 2079 2,402,881 - 32,600,192 11,487,059 27,489,063 73,979,194
Balance as of Asad 31, 2079 11,361,145 - 48,826,961 18,233,371 35,452,107 113,873,583
Addition/ (Reversal) during the year 11,305,818 - (15,415,431) (5,849,072) 1,314,297 (8,644,388)
Balance as of Ashad 31, 2080 22,666,963 33,411,530 12,384,298 36,766,404 105,229,194
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Cash and Cash Equivalent 4.1

Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Cashin Hand 60,349,685 63,967,630 60,349,685 63,967,630
Balances with BFIs 17,633,410 41,780,000 17,633,410 41,780,000
Money at Call and Short Notice 587,154,953 895,193,604 587,154,953 895,193,604
Other - - - -
Total 665,138,048 1,000,941,234 665,138,048 1,000,941,234
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2

Group Bank

Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asarend 2080  Asar end 2079

Statutory Balances with NRB 175,007,227 87,659,297 175,007,227 87,659,297

Securities purchased under Resale Agreement - - - -

Other Deposit and Receivable from NRB - - - -

Total 175,007,227 87,659,297 175,007,227 87,659,297

Placements with Banks and Financial Instutions 4.3
Group Bank

Particulars

Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079

Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079

Placement with Domestic BFIs

Placement with Foreign BFIs

Less: Allowances for Impairment

Total

Derivative Financial Instruments

4.4

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079

Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contract

Others

Held for Risk Management

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contract

Others

Total

Other Trading Assets

4.5

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079

Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079

Treasury Bills

246,464,250 -

246,464,250 -

Government Bonds

NRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate Bonds

Equities

Other Trading Assets

Total

246,464,250 -

246,464,250 -
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Loans and Advances to BFIs 4.6
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Loans to Micro-Finance Institutions 500,118,574 450,707,268 500,118,574 450,707,268
Other-AIR on Loans to Micro Finance institutions 110,476 402,662 110,476 402,662
Less: Allowances for Impairment (6,501,541) (5,859,194) (6,501,541) (5,859,194)
Total 493,727,509 445,250,735 493,727,509 445,250,735
Allowances for Impairment 4.6.1
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Balance at Shrawan 01 5,859,194 8,213,581 5,859,194 8,213,581
Impairment Losss for the year: - -
Charge for the year 642,347 (2,354,386) 642,347 (2,354,386)
Recoveries/Reversal - - - -
Amount Written Off - - - -
Balance at Asar End 6,501,541 5,859,194 6,501,541 5,859,194
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Loans and Advances measured at Amortized Cost 3,672,184,719 3,633,884,154 3,672,184,719 3,633,884,154
Less: Impairment Allowances - -
Collective Impairment (403,778,388) (85,306,895) (403,778,388) (85,306,895)
Individual Impairment - - -
Net Amount 3,268,406,331 3,548,577,259 3,268,406,331 3,548,577,259
Loans and Advances measured at FVTPL - - - -
Total 3,268,406,331 3,548,577,259 3,268,406,331 3,548,577,259
Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Product 4.71
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Product
Term Loans 787,057,347 1,405,712,926 787,057,347 1,405,712,926
Overdraft 44,092,116 423,310,424 44,092,116 423,310,424
Trust Receipt/Import Loans - - - -
Demand and other Working Capital Loans 650,329,538 405,008,663 650,329,538 405,008,663
Personal Residential Loans 584,583,893 452,363,697 584,583,893 452,363,697
Real Estate Loans 86,191,235 74,000,000 86,191,235 74,000,000
Margin Lending Loans 193,463,084 281,939,406 193,463,084 281,939,406
Hire Purchase Loans 202,934,902 243,885,479 202,934,902 243,885,479
Deprived Sector Loans 531,790,800 15,171,764 531,790,800 15,171,764
Bills Purchased - - -
Staffs Loans 32,278,119 38,368,150 32,278,119 38,368,150
Other 1,005,763,701 267,676,485 1,005,763,701 267,676,485
Sub-Total 4,118,484,735 3,607,436,995 4,118,484,735 3,607,436,995
Interest Receivable 53,929,034 26,447,159 53,929,034 26,447,159
Grand Total 4,172,413,770 3,633,884,154 4,172,413,770 3,633,884,154
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Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Currency 4.7.2
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Nepalese Rupee 4,172,413,770 3,633,884,154 4,172,413,770 3,633,884,154
Indian Rupee - - - -
United States Dollar - - - -
Great Britain Pound - - - -
Euro - - - -
Japanese Yen - - - -
Chinese Yuan - - - -
Other - - - -
Grand Total 4,172,413,770 3,633,884,154 4,172,413,770 3,633,884,154
Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Product 4.7.3
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Secured

Moveable/Immoveable Assets 3,492,023,951 2,956,712,401 3,492,023,951 2,956,712,401

Gold and Silver 98,140,554 121,011,893 98,140,554 121,011,893

Guarantee of Domestic BFIs 500,118,574 450,707,268 500,118,574 450,707,268

Government Guarantee - - - -

Guarantee of International Rated Bank - - - -

Collateral of Export Document - - - -

Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt 49,852,571 67,084,443 49,852,571 67,084,443

Collatereal of Government Securities - - - -

Counter Guarantee - - - -

Personal Guarantee - - - -

Other Collateral - - - -

Subtotal 4,140,135,650 3,595,516,004 4,140,135,650 3,595,516,004
Unsecured (staff loan) 32,278,119 38,368,150 32,278,119 38,368,150
Grand Total 4,172,413,770 3,633,884,154 4,172,413,770 3,633,884,154

Allowance for Impairment 4.7.4
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Specific Allowance for Impairment
Balance at Shrawan 01 - - - -
Impairment Loss for the year - - - -

Charge for the year - - - -

Recoveries/Reversals during the year - - - -
Write-Offs - - - -
Other Movement - - - -
Balance at Asar End - - - -
Collective Allowances for Impairment - -

Balance at Sharawan 01 85,306,895 137,137,260 85,306,895 137,137,260
Impairment Loss for the year - -

Charge/(Reversal) for the year 318,471,493 (51,830,365) 318,471,493 (51,830,365)
Other Movement - - - -
Balance at Asar End 403,778,388 85,306,895 403,778,388 85,306,895
Total Allowances for Impairment 403,778,388 85,306,895 403,778,388 85,306,895
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Investment Securities 4.8
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost - - - -
Investment in Equity measured at FVTOCI 77,951,580 56,856,756 77,951,580 56,856,756
Total 77,951,580 56,856,756 77,951,580 56,856,756
Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost 4.8.1
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Debt Securities - - - -
Government Bonds - - -
Government Treasury Bills - - -
Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds - - -
Nepal Rastra Bank Deposit Instruments - - -
Other - - -
Less: Specific Allowances for Impairment - - -
Total - - - -
Investment Securities measured at FVTOCI 4.8.2
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Equity Instruments
Quoted Equity Securities 77,951,580 56,856,756 77,951,580 56,856,756
Unquoted Equity Securities - - - -
Total 77,951,580 56,856,756 77,951,580 56,856,756
Information relating to Investment in Equities 4.83
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Investment in Quoted Equity
Api Power Company Ltd. 649 - Ordinary Shares - - 58,800 158,681
Global IME Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd- 1- Ordinary Share - 1,061 100 1,299
Janautthan Samudayic Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 6 -Ordinary Share - 6,120 300 10,350
Kisan Micro Finance Bittiya Sanstha 1- Ordinary Share - 709 - -
Life Insurance Corporation 2,923- Ordinary Share 5,742,474 4,545,265 5,742,474 4,136,045
Sagarmatha Lumbini Insurance Company Limited 1 - Ordinary Share - 748 100 382
Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited- 1,06,149 Ordinary Shares 49,588,404 23,777,376 48,131,681 24,035,760
Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd- 28,598 Ordinary Shares 36,781,482 21,276,912 25,199,368 10,006,812
Nmb Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 2 -Ordinary Share - 1,280 200 1,500
National Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 18 - Ordinary Share - 24,588 1,100 29,025
Prime Life Insurance Company Limited 3,821 - Ordinary Share - - 2,908,532 2,174,149
NIBL Sahabhagita Fund 9,96,013-Ordinary Share 10,000,000 10,587,618 - -
Himalayan Life Insurance Company Limited 4,318 - Ordinary Share 2,908,532 2,189,226 - -
Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Ltd- 16020 Ordinary Shares 13,175,871 6,837,336 13,175,871 8,682,840
118,196,763 69,248,239 95,218,527 49,236,843
Investment through PMS:
Citizen Investment Trust-906 ordinary shares 2,796,061 1,892,634 2,796,063 1,752,955
Neco Insurance Company Limited-1145 ordinary shares 1,167,900 1,020,310 1,167,896 691,224
Himalayan Distillery Limited- 112 ordinary shares 186,013 251,776 186,013 238,700
Surya Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited-797 ordinary shares 613,722 486,170 611,514 308,439
Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited-864 Ordinary Share 444,355 193,536 444,358 207,360
Siddhartha Premier Insurance Company Limited- 1417 ordinary shares 1,327,361 1,103,135 1,334,777 714,240
Prime Life Insurance Company Limited-575 ordinary shares - - 456,273 327,175
Life Insurance Company Nepal-1548 ordinary shares 2,887,299 2,407,140 2,887,306 2,190,420
Himalayan Life Insurance Company Limited 649 - Ordinary Share 455,643 329,043 - -
Shivam Cements Limited-1565 ordinary shares 2,399,896 1,019,598 2,399,894 1,189,400
12,278,250 8,703,341 12,284,094 7,619,913
Total 130,475,013 77,951,580 107,502,620.85 56,856,756
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Current Tax Assets 4.9
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Current Tax Assets
Current year Income Tax Assets 16,656,476 28,684,577 16,656,476 28,684,577
Tax Assets of Prior Periods - 126,403 - 126,403
Current Tax Liabilities
Current year Income Tax Liabilities 9,713,418 28,143,326 9,713,418 28,143,326
Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods - 271,310 - 271,310
Total 6,943,059 396,344 6,943,059 396,344
Investment in Subsidiaries 410
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries - - - -
Total Investment - - - -
Less: Impairment Allowances - - - -
Net Carrying Amount - - - -
Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries 4.10.1
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Total - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries 4.10.2
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Total - - - -
Information relating to Subsidiaries of the Bank 4.10.3
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Total - - - -
Non Controlling Interest of the Subsidiaries 4.10.4
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079

Equity Interest held by NCI (%)

Profit (Loss) allocated during the year

Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Asar End

Dividend Paid to NCI

Equity Interest held by NCI (%)

Profit (Loss) allocated during the year

Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Asar End

Dividend Paid to NCI
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Investment in Associates 4.11
Group Bank
Particulars Asarend 2080  Asarend 2079  Asarend 2080  Asar end 2079
Investment in Quoted Associates - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Associates - - - -
Total Investment - -
Less: Impairment Allowances - - - -
Net Carrying Amount - - - -
Investment in Quoted Associates 4.11.1
Group Bank
Particulars Asarend 2080  Asarend 2079  Asarend 2080  Asar end 2079
Total - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Associates 4.11.2
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080  Asar end 2079
Total - - - -
Information relating to Associates of the Bank 4.11.3
Group Bank
Particulars Asarend 2080  Asarend 2079  Asarend 2080  Asar end 2079
Total - - - -
Equity Value of Associates 4.11.4
Group Bank
Particulars Asarend 2080  Asarend 2079  Asarend 2080  Asar end 2079
Total - - - -
Investment Properties 4.12
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Investment Properties measured at Fair Value
Balance as on Shrawan 01 - - -
Addition/(Disposal) during the year. - - - -
Net Changes in fair value during the year. - - - -
Adjustment/Transfer. - - - -
Net Amount - - - -
Investment Properties measured at Cost - -
Balance as on Shrawan 01 77,503,113 25,756,777 77,503,113 25,756,777
Addition/(Disposal) during the year - 53,034,175 - 53,034,175
Depreciation on investment property - (1,287,839) - (1,287,839)
Adjustment/Transfer (24,468,938) - (24,468,938)
Net Amount 53,034,175 77,503,113 53,034,175 77,503,113
Total 53,034,175 77,503,113 53,034,175 77,503,113
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Property and Equipment 4.13
Bank
Particulars Land Building Leasehold Computer& Vehicles Furniture Machinery Equipment Total Asar
Properties Accessories & Fixtures & others end 2080
Cost
As on Shrawan 012079 121,056,000 - 22,051,832 18,814,882 20,760,549 61,432,112 17,368,844 17,094,814 278,579,032
Addition during the Year
Acquisition - 26,320,337 801,449 1,157,081 6,017,211 4,573,953 - 1,803,230 40,673,262
Adjustment - - - - - - -
Capitalization - - - - - - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - - (2,226,818) - - - (2,226,818)
Adjustment/Revaluation - - 4,993 (7,888) 598 5,500 (11,091) (7,888)
Balance as on Asar End 2080 121,056,000 26,320,337 22,853,281 19,976,956 24,543,055 66,006,663 17,374,344 18,886,954 317,017,589
Depreciation and Impairment
As on Shrawan 01 2079 - - 6,879,299 10,468,237 9,193,491 36,471,424 8,988,808 8,137,477 80,138,736
Impairment for the year - - - - - - - -
Depreciation charge for the year - 1,248,524 2,959,738 2,209,326 2,104,789 3,856,481 1,257,990 1,396,942 15,033,790
Disposals - - - - - - - - -
Adjustments - - - - - - - -
As on Asar End 2080 - 1,248,524 9,839,038 12,677,563 11,298,281 40,327,904 10,246,798 9,534,419 95,172,526
Capital Work in Progress - -
Net Book Value 121,056,000 25,071,813 13,014,244 7,299,393 13,244,774 25,678,758 7,127,546 9,352,535 221,845,063
As on Asar End 2079 121,056,000 - 15,172,533 8,346,645 11,567,058 24,960,688 8,380,036 8,957,338 198,440,296
As on Asar End 2080 121,056,000 25,071,813 13,014,244 7,299,393 13,244,774 25,678,758 7,127,546 9,352,535 221,845,063
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 414
Bank
Particulars Goodwill Software Other U
Purchased Developed 2080
Cost
As on Shrawan 01 2079 - 4,949,676 - - 4,949,676
Addition during the Year
Acquisition - 423,750 423,750
Capitalization - - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - 7,888 - - 7,888
Balance as on Asar End 2080 - 5,381,314 - - 5,381,314
Amortisation and Impairment
As on Shrawan 01. 2079 - 2,784,186 - - 2,784,186
Amortisation charge for the year - 451,179 - - 451,179
Impairment for the year - - - - -
Disposals - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - -
As on Asar end 2079 - 3,235,365 - - 3,235,365
Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value - 2,145,949 - - 2,145,949
As on Asar end 2079 - 2,165,490 - - 2,165,490
As on Asar end 2080 - 2,145,949 - - 2,145,949
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Deferred Tax 415
Current Year
Particulas Chsetsliabildes Yox evere)
(Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loans and Advances to BFIs -
Loans and Advances to Customers - -
Investment Properties - -
Investment Securities 563,271 - 563,271
Property and Equipment 4,773,349 - 4,773,349
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 7,047,679 7,047,679
Lease Liabilities -
Provisions - -
Other Temporary Differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 12,384,298
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year end of 2080 12,384,298
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan 01, 2079 (18,233,371)
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 5,849,072
Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized in profit or loss 3,731,234
Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized in OCI 2,117,838
Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized directly in Equity -
Other Assets 4.16
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Assets held for Sale - - - -
Other Non-Banking Assets - - - -
Bills Receivable - - - -
Accounts Receivable 1,939,500 4,427,106 1,939,500 4,427,106
Accrued Income - - - -
Prepayments and Deposits 6,489,630 1,737,024 6,489,630 1,737,024
Income Tax Deposit - - - -
Deferred Employee Expenditure 44,356,201 42,941,596 44,356,201 42,941,596
ROU Assets 41,314,123 52,465,713 41,314,123 52,465,713
Other Assets 10,347,824 1,376,149 10,347,824 1,376,149
Total 104,447,278 102,947,589 104,447,278 102,947,589
Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 417
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Money Market Deposits - - - -
Interbank Borrowing - - - -
Other Deposits from BFIs - - -
Settlement and Clearing Accounts - - - -
Total - - - -
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4.18

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar end 2080

Asar end 2079

Asar end 2080

Asar end 2079

Refinance from NRB

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of Last Resort facility from NRB

Securities sold under repurchase agreements

Other Payable to NRB

Total

Derivative Financial Instruments

4.19

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar end 2080

Asar end 2079

Asar end 2080

Asar end 2079

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts

Others

Held for Risk Management

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts.

Others

Total

Deposits from Customers

4.20

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar end 2080

Asar end 2079

Asar end 2080

Asar end 2079

Institutional Customers:

Term Deposits

618,528,154

547,750,899

618,528,154

547,750,899

Call Deposits

487,241,336

704,686,442

487,241,336

704,686,442

Current Deposits

485,113,626

584,901,523

485,113,626

584,901,523

Others

255,000

1,748,000

255,000

1,748,000

Individual Customers:

Term Deposits

1,881,242,311

1,544,399,538

1,881,242,311

1,544,399,538

Saving Deposits

1,370,251,315

1,356,039,120

1,370,251,315

1,356,039,120

Current Deposits 30,589,378 46,214,621 30,589,378 46,214,621
Others - 29,979 - 29,979
Total 4,873,221,121 4,785,770,121 4,873,221,121 4,785,770,121
Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers 4.20.1
Group Bank

Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Nepalese Rupee 4,873,221,121 4,785,770,121 4,873,221,121 4,785,770,121
Indian Rupee - - - -
United States Dollar - - - -
Great Britain Pound - - - -
Euro - = - -
Japanese Yen - - - -
Chinese Yuan - - - -
Other - - - -
Total 4,873,221,121 4,785,770,121 4,873,221,121 4,785,770,121

133



& SindhuBikash Bank Lt
V. RAct] [P Sab 13T,

Borrowings 4.21
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Domestic Borrowings
Nepal Government - - - -
Other Institutions - - - -
Other 15,000,000 20,000,000 15,000,000 20,000,000
Sub Total - - - -
Foreign Borrowings - -
Foreign Banks and Financial Institutions - - - -
Multilateral Development Banks - - - -
Other Institutions - - - -
Sub Total - - - -
Total 15,000,000 20,000,000 15,000,000 20,000,000
Provisions 4.22
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Provisions for Redundancy - - - -
Provisions for Restructuring - - - -
Pending Legal Issues and Tax Litigation - - - -
Onerous Contracts - - - -
Other Provisions - - -
Total - - - -
Movement in Provision 4.22.1
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080  Asar end 2079
Balance at Shrawan 01 - - - -
Provisions made during the year - - - -
Provisions used during the year - - - -
Provisions reversed during the year - - - -
Unwind of Discount - - - -
Balance at Asar end - - - -
Other Liabilities 4.23
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Liabilities for emloyees defined benefit obligations 7,708,124 12,346,600 7,708,124 12,346,600
Liabilities for long service leave 15,784,138 12,945,578 15,784,138 12,945,578
Short term employee benefits 548,430 548,430 548,430 548,430
Bills payable - - - -
Sundry Creditors 10,281,946 10,063,707 10,281,946 10,063,707
Expenses Accrual 6,246,706 5,844,093 6,246,706 5,844,093
Interest payable on deposits - 3,644 3,644
Interest payable on borrowing - 590,794 590,794
Lease Liabilities 52,065,444 54,358,011 52,065,444 54,358,011
Liabilities on defered grant income - - -
Unpaid Dividend - - -
Liabilities under Finance Lease - - -
Employee bonus payable - 8,249,881 - 8,249,881
Other Liabilities 24,948,719 13,629,056 24,948,719 13,629,056
Total 117,583,506 118,579,794 117,583,506 118,579,794
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Defined Benefit Obligation 4.231
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asarend 2080  Asar end 2079
Present value of unfunded obligations 7,708,124 12,346,600 7,708,124 12,346,600
Present value of funded obligations - - - -
Total present value of obligations 7,708,124 12,346,600 7,708,124 12,346,600
Fair value of plan assets - - - -
Present value of net obligations 7,708,124 12,346,600 7,708,124 12,346,600
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 7,708,124 12,346,600 7,708,124 12,346,600
Plan Assets 4.23.2
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Equity securities - - - -
payable - - - -
Bank deposit - - - -
Other - - - -
Total - - - -
Actual return on plan assets - - - -
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations 4.23.3
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 12,346,600 11,469,909 12,346,600 11,469,909
Actuarial (Gains)/losses (8,937,028) (1,983,751) (8,937,028) (1,983,751)
Benefits paid by the plan (389,157) (1,354,913) (389,157) (1,354,913)
Current service costs and interest 4,687,709 4,215,355 4,687,709 4,215,355
Defined benefit obligations at Asar end 7,708,124 12,346,600 7,708,124 12,346,600
Movement in the fair value of plan assets 4.234
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 - - - -
Contributions paid into the plan - - - -
Benefits paid during the year - - - -
Actuarial (losses) gains - - - -
Expected return on plan assets - - - -
Fair value of plan assets at Asar end - - - -
Amount recognised in profit or loss 4.23.5
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asarend 2080  Asar end 2079
Current service costs 3,667,886 3,244,034 3,667,886 3,244,034
Interest on obligation 1,019,823 971,321 1,019,823 971,321
Expected return on plan assets - - - -
Total 4,687,709 4,215,355 4,687,709 4,215,355
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 4.23.6
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asarend 2080  Asar end 2079
Acturial (gain)/loss (8,937,028) (1,983,751) (8,937,028) (1,983,751)
Total (8,937,028) (1,983,751) (8,937,023) (1,983,751)
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Actuarial assumptions 4.23.7
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Discount rate 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
Expected return on plan asset 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Future salary increase 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Withdrawal rate 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00%
Debt secutities issued 4.24
Group Bank
Particulars Asarend 2080  Asarend 2079  Asarend 2080  Asar end 2079
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through i i i i
profit or loss
Debt securities issued at amortised cost - - - -
Total - - - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Redeemable preference shares - - - -
Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities i i i i
component
Other - - - -
Total - - - -
Share Capital 4.26
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Ordinary shares 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067
Convertible preference shares (equity component only) - - - -
Irredemable preference shares (equity component only) - - - -
Perpetual debt (equity component only) - - - -
Total 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067
Ordinary Shares 4.26.1
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Authorized Capital
7,000,0000 Orsinary share of Rs. 100 each 700,000,000 700,000,000 700,000,000 700,000,000
Issued capital
55,74,560p0rdinary share of Rs. 100 each 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067
Subscribed and paid up capital
e dingry LA IV 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067
Total 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067 557,456,067
Ordinary share ownership 4.26.2
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Domestic ownership
Nepal Government - - - -
"A" Class Licensed Institutions - - - -
Other Licensed Intitutions - - - -
Other Institutions - - - -
Public 49% 49% 49% 49%
Other 51% 51% 51% 51%
Foreign ownership - - - -
Total 100% 100% 100.00% 100.00%
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List of Principal Shareholders holding 0.50% or more share of the total share of the bank 4.26.3

Group Bank

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars Nos. of Shares % of holding Nos. of Shares % of holding
Employees Provident Fund 399,661 7.17% 399,661 7.17%
Devi Bahadur Shrestha 302,394 5.42% 302,394 5.42%
Rajendra Kumar Shrestha 195,112 3.50% 195,112 3.50%
Ram Hari Paudel 126,976 2.28% 126,976 2.28%
Sashikanta Agrawal 104,159 1.87% 104,159 1.87%
Amir Ratna Dangol 81,888 1.47% 81,888 1.47%
Surja Shrestha 75,536 1.36% 75,536 1.36%
Durga Bahadur Shrestha 55,746 1.00% 55,746 1.00%
Naresh Lal Shrestha 55,744 1.00% 55,744 1.00%
Janak Kumar Shrestha 54,402 0.98% 54,402 0.98%
Bishnu Bdr Khatri 41,712 0.75% 41,712 0.75%
Keshav Bahadur Basukala 38,667 0.69% 38,667 0.69%
Mahima Basukala 36,233 0.65% 36,233 0.65%
Padam Bahadur Chhetri 35,343 0.63% 35,343 0.63%
Parbati Shrestha 31,225 0.56% 31,225 0.56%
Nirab Bhandari 30,970 0.56% 30,970 0.56%
Bed Bahadur Shrestha 27,875 0.50% 27,875 0.50%
Pratap Khatri 27,873 0.50% 27,873 0.50%
Balaram Shrestha 27,873 0.50% 27,873 0.50%
Sharmila Shrestha Sakha 27,873 0.50% 27,873 0.50%
Shyam Krishna Shrestha 27,873 0.50% 27,873 0.50%
Reserves 4.27

Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Statutory General Reserve 43,914,210 43,914,210 43,914,210 43,914,210
Exchange Equilisation Reserve - - - -
Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve 90,140 463,000 90,140 463,000
Capital Redemption Reserve - - - -
Regulatory Reserve 105,229,194 113,873,582 105,229,194 113,873,582
Investment Adjustment Reserve - - - -
Capital Reserve 18,746 18,746 18,746 18,746
Assets Revaluation Reserve - - - -
Fair Value Reserve (36,766,404) (35,452,106) (36,766,404) (35,452,106)
Dividend Equalisation Reserve - - - -
Actuarial Gain 8,744,201 2,488,281 8,744,201 2,488,281
Special Reserve - - - -
Other Reserve 3,818,356 2,189,785 3,818,356 2,189,785
Total 125,048,442 127,495,499 125,048,442 127,495,499
Contingent liabilities and commitments 4.28

Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Contingent liabilities 1,375,000 9,800,000 1,375,000 9,800,000
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities - 67,714,635 - 67,714,635
Capital commitment - - - -
Lease Commitment - - - -
Litigation - - - -
Total 1,375,000 77,514,635 1,375,000 77,514,635
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Contingent Liabilities 4.28.1
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Acceptance and documentary credit - 5 . -
Bills for collection - - - B
Forward exchange contracts - 5 - -
Guarantees 1,375,000 9,800,000 1,375,000 9,800,000
Underwriting commitment - - - -
Other commitments - - - -
Total 1,375,000 9,800,000 1,375,000 9,800,000
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 4.28.2
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Undisbursed amount of loans - - - i,
Undrawn limits of overdrafts - 67,714,635 - 67,714,635
Undrawn limits of credit cards - - - .
Undrawn limits of letter of credit - - - B
Undrawn limits of guarantee - - - -
Total - 67,714,635 - 67,714,635
Capital commitments 4.28.3

Capital expenditure approved by relevant

statements

authority of the bank but provision

has not been made in financial

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079

Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079

Capital commitments in relation to Property and

Equipment

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Total

Lease commitments

4.28.4

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079

Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable

operating lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable

operating lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Grand total
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Accrued Interest Receivable (AIR) Reconciliation 4.28.5
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Opening AIR on Loans and Advance 28,548,595.91 27964306.11 28,548,595.91 27964306.11
Add: Accrued Interest on Loans and Advance 571,461,491.88 431,620,936.20 571,461,491.88 431,620,936.20
Less: Realised Interest on Loans and Advance 546,081,053.71 431036646.4 546,081,053.71 431036646.4
Closing AIR on Loans and Advance 53,929,034.08 28,548,595.91 53,929,034.08 28,548,595.91
Litigation 4.28.6
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Interest Income 4.29
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Cash and cash equivalent 21,241,941 14,508,711 21,241,941 14,508,711
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Placement with bank and financial institutions - - - -
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions 48,838,923 43,942,197 48,838,923 43,942,197
Loans and advances to customers 524,372,915 383,696,273 524,372,915 383,696,273
Investment securities - - - -
Loan and advances to staff 2,632,160 4,594,513 2,632,160 4,594,513
Other interest income 4,764,564 - 4,764,564 -
Total interest income 601,850,503 446,741,693 601,850,503 446,741,693
Interest Expense 4.30
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Due to bank and financial institutions 2,271,337 5,867,534 2,271,337 5,867,534
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Deposits from customers 409,377,946 273,592,132 409,377,946 273,592,132
Borrowing - - -
Debt securities issued - - -
Subordinated liabilities - - -
Other Charges - - -
Total Interest expense 411,649,283 279,459,666 411,649,283 279,459,666
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Fees and Commission Income 4.31
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Loan administration fees 13,995,604 14,376,774 13,995,604 14,376,774
Service fees - 10 - 10
Consortium fees - - - -
Commitment fees - 1,178 - 1,178
DD/TT/Swift fees - - - -
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees 100,980 281,000 100,980 281,000
Prepayment and swap fees 88,843 43,704 88,843 43,704
Investment banking fees - - - -
Asset management fees - - - -
Brokerage fees 1,375 32,390 1,375 32,390
Remittance fees 1,407,106 2,045,313 1,407,106 2,045,313
Mobile banking issurance and renewal fees 2,493,405 1,558,630 2,493,405 1,558,630
Commission on letter of credit - - - -
Commission on guarantee contracts issued - 6,000 - 6,000
Commission on share underwriting/issue - - - -
Locker rental - - - -
Other fees and commision income 1,509,545 2,232,205 1,509,545 2,232,205
Total Fees and Commission Income 19,596,857 20,577,204 19,596,857 20,577,204
Fees and Commission Expense 4.32
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
ATM management fees - - - -
VISA/Master card fees - - - -
Guarantee commission - - - -
Mobile banking expenses 984,083 1,359,531 984,083 1,359,531
DD/TT/Swift fees. - - - -
Remittance fees and commission - - - -
Other fees and commission expense 2,565,957 - 2,565,957 -
Total Fees and Commission Expense 3,550,040 1,359,531 3,550,040 1,359,531
Net Trading income 4.33
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079

Changes in fair value of trading assets

Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets

Interest income on trading assets

Dividend income on trading assets

Gain/loss foreign exchange transation

Other

Net Trading Income
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Other Operating Income 4.34
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Foreign exchange revauation gain - - - -
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities - (622,525) - (622,525)
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - - - -
Dividend on equity instruments 853,579 49,084 853,579 49,084
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment 974,182 872,941 974,182 872,941
Gain/loss on sale of investment property - 943,356 - 943,356
Operating lease income - - - -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - - - -
Other Operating Income 1,274,741 1,418,831 1,274,741 1,418,831
Total 3,102,502 2,661,687 3,102,502 2,661,687
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses 4.35
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
L?Eairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to 642,347 (2,354,386) 642,347 (2,354,386)
irspiglr:]rzfsnt charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to 318,471,493 (51,830,365) 318,471,493 (51,830,365)
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - - - 5
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with BFIs - - - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment - - - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible i i i i
assets
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial assets - 7,579,021 - 7,579,021
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties - - - -
Total 319,113,840 (46,605,730) 319,113,840 (46,605,730)
Personnel Expenses 4.36
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Salary 50,862,965 45,247,142 50,862,965 45,247,142
Allowances 19,076,714 16,471,524 19,076,714 16,471,524
Gratuity Expense 4,687,709 4,215,355 4,687,709 4,215,355
Provident Fund 4,437,009 3,735,292 4,437,009 3,735,292
Uniform 120,000 1,580,100 120,000 1,580,100
Training & development expense 1,206,506 224,401 1,206,506 224,401
Leave encashment 6,454,770 8,402,678 6,454,770 8,402,678
Medical 3,591,180 3,424,569 3,591,180 3,424,569
Insurance - - - -
Employees incentive 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
Cash-settled share-based payments - - - -
Pension expense - - - -
Finance expense under NFRS 1,335,274 2,901,615 1,335,274 2,901,615
Other expenses related to staff 647,828 - 647,828 -
Subtotal 92,469,956 86,252,676 92,469,956 86,252,676
Employees Bonus - 8,249,881 - 8,249,881
Grand total 92,469,956 94,502,556 92,469,956 94,502,556
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Other Operating Expense 4.37
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Directors' fee 1,793,000 1,439,050 1,793,000 1,439,050
Directors' expense 844,929 748,808 844,929 748,808
Auditors' remuneration 655,400 655,400 655,400 655,400
Other audit related expense 457,610 624,594 457,610 624,594
Professional and legal expense 113,085 101,000 113,085 101,000
Office administration expense 33,099,213 27,899,563 33,099,213 27,899,563
Operating lease expense 17,017,601 14,299,486 17,017,601 14,299,486
Operating expense of investment properties - - - -
Corporate social responsibility expense 372,860 549,468 372,860 549,468
Onerous lease provisions - - - -
Other Expenses 8,241,231 4,672,963 8,241,231 4,672,963
Total 62,594,929 50,990,332 62,594,929 50,990,332
Office Administration Expenses 4.371
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Printing & Stationery expenses 4,545,526 3,534,511 4,545,526 3,534,511
Connectivity Expenses 4,153,023 3,866,974 4,153,023 3,866,974
Repair & Maintenance - -
a) Building 50,368 - 50,368 -
b) Vehicle 876,499 751,905 876,499 751,905
¢) Computer & accessories 561,788 53,650 561,788 53,650
d) Office equipment and other 972,320 1,441,864 972,320 1,441,864
Office expenses 2,858,833 2,661,708 2,858,833 2,661,708
Light, Electricity & Water exp 2,593,936 2,486,617 2,593,936 2,486,617
Postage, Telex, Telephone & Fax 562,085 638,315 562,085 638,315
Security Expenses 6,183,055 5,553,690 6,183,055 5,553,690
Annual AGM expenses 897,171 - 897,171 -
DCGC premium 2,563,823 1,922,184 2,563,823 1,922,184
Insurance exp 1,768,797 1,529,789 1,768,797 1,529,789
Periodicals & Books 34,087 39,300 34,087 39,300
Advertisement 1,004,338 603,627 1,004,338 603,627
Donation - - - -
Entertainment exp 794,550 514,974 794,550 514,974
Other-Registration and Renewal 2,679,014 2,300,454 2,679,014 2,300,454
Total 33,099,213 27,899,563 33,099,213 27,899,563
Depreciation and Amortisation 4.38
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Depreciation on property and equipment 15,033,790 13,761,661 15,033,790 13,761,661
Depreciation on investment property - 1,287,839 - 1,287,839
Amortisation of intangible assets 451,179 975,801 451,179 975,801
Total 15,484,969 16,025,302 15,484,969 16,025,302
Non Operating Income 4.39
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079

Recovery of loan written off

Other income

Total
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Non Operating Expenses 4.40
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Loan written off - - - -
Redundancy provision - - - -
Expense of restructuring - - - -
Other expense - - - -
Total - - - -
Income Tax Expenses 4.41
Group Bank
Particulars Asarend 2080  Asarend 2079  Asarend2080  Asar end 2079
Current tax expense
Current year 9,713,418 28,143,326 9,713,418 28,143,326
Adjustments for prior years - - - -
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 3,731,234 194,418 3,731,234 194,418
Changes in tax rate - - - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - - - -
Total income tax expense 13,444,652 27,948,909 13,444,652 27,948,909
Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit 4.411
Group Bank
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079 Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Profit before tax (280,313,155) 74,248,927 (280,313,155) 74,248,927
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% (84,093,947) 22,274,678 (84,093,947) 22,274,678
?)S?p;g: effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax 3342744 4,353,099 3342744 4,353,099
Less: Tax effect on exempt income - - -
Add/less: Tax effect on other items - - -
Total income tax expense (80,751,203) 26,627,777 (80,751,203) 26,627,777
Effective tax rate 28.81% 35.86% 28.81% 35.86%
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5. Disclosures and Additional Information
5.1. Risk Management
Risk is inherent in the Bank’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement,
monitoring and controlling. The bank has set risk limits and implemented controls. Each individual within the Bank
is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and continuous development of Bank's risk
management framework. The board oversee the appropriateness and sufficiency risk management policies and its
implementation. The board receives risk reports from risk management committee, deliberate on reports and issue
instructions to committee and the management.

Management committee ensures all risk management related policies are implemented. It oversees the functions
of Integrated Risk Management Department which is fully responsible for compliances of legal, regulatory or
contractual requirements on a continuous basis. Management Committee submits reports to board level risk
management committee and the board. The CRO ensures compliance of internal policies and procedures, prepares
risk related reports and submit to management and Risk management committee. Risk Management structure is
depicted below:

. RiskManagement
Committee
BOARD
—1 CEO CRO

Risk Management Committee

Board of Directors is the apex and supreme authority of the Bank and is responsible to frame and implement robust
policies and framework for effective compliance of regulation and direction issued by the regulatory authority. BOD
ensures the strategies, policies and procedure is in accordance with the risk appetite/tolerance limit for effective
management of risk within the Bank. The board understands the nature of risk of the bank, and periodically reviews
reports on risk management, including policies and standards, stress testing, liquidity and capital adequacy through
the reporting by the Risk Management Committee and the Management Committee.

Pursuant to the NRB directive on corporate governance, the Bank has established Risk Management Committee with
well-defined terms of reference in line the NRB directive. At least four meeting is conducted on annual basis however
number of meetings can be increased as per the requirement. The committee supervises overall risk management
of the Bank broadly classified as liquidity risk, market risk, operational risk and credit risk.

A. Credit Risk

The Bank has its own Credit Policy Guidelines to handle the Credit Risk Management philosophy that involves a
continual measurement of probability of default/loss; identification of possible risks and mitigations. The provisions
of Capital Adequacy Framework -2007 are compiled in line-to-line basis to overcome the Credit Risk. In order to
manage and eliminate the credit risk, the Bank has a practice of maintaining the best quality assets in its book. The
Bank’s Credit Policy elaborates detailed procedures for proper risk management. The Bank has delegated credit
approval limits to various officials to approve and sanction various amount of credit request based on their individual
expertise and risk judgment capability.

As a check and balance mechanism, each credit case requires dual approval. Regular monitoring of the credit
portfolio ensures that the Bank does not run the risk of concentration of portfolio in a particular business sector or
a single borrower. Similarly, the Bank also exercises controlled investment policy with adequately equipped resource
looking after the investment decisions.

The Bank has developed a risk assessment culture and has in place the required reports for assessing concentration
of risks. Periodic performance reporting based on Balanced Scorecard, in line with capital strength, to the Board is
also in place. These reports are periodically put up to the board. Board also reviews the same and issues instructions,
as appropriate, to the Bank's management.

q3¥



it Eu

2872y

LGl REGE
During the current financial year, the Bank has availed the benefits of credit risk mitigation as under:
Particulars Asar end 2080 Asar end 2079
Deposits with own bank 49,852,571 67,084,443
Deposit with other banks and financial institutions - -
Securities issued by Nepal Government and Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Gold & Silver 98,140,554 121,011,893
Total 147,993,125 188,096,335

Collateral and other credit enhancements
The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty.
Guidelines are in place covering the acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral.

The general creditworthiness of customers tends to be the most relevant indicator of credit quality of a loan. However,
collateral provides additional security and the Bank generally requests large borrowers to provide same. The Bank
may take collateral in the form of a first charge over real estate and residential properties, floating charges over all
corporate assets and other liens and guarantees.

The Bank’s policy is to pursue timely realization of the collateral in an orderly manner. The proceeds are used to
reduce or repay the outstanding claim. The Bank generally does not use non-cash collateral for its own operations.

Definition of Past Due
Bank consider that any amounts uncollected one day or more beyond their contractual due date are ‘past due'.

Past due but not impaired loans

Past due but not impaired loans are those for which contractual interest or principal payments are past due, but
the Bank believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the stage of collection of amounts owed to the
Bank. All loans and advances have been impaired.

B. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes
in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and equity prices. The bank
classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios and manages each of those portfolios
separately.

i. Currency Risk:

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Bank to experience volatility in the value of its assets, liabilities and
solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between the currencies of its assets and
liabilities and its reporting currency.

The Bank have not carried out any transactions in foreign currency & do not owned any assets in foreign currency.

ii. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The major interest rate risk that the bank is exposed to is the discount rate for determining.

iii. Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar
financial instruments traded in the market. The bank’s equity price risk exposure relates to financial investment held
at FVTOCI, whose values fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

C. Operational Risk

Operational Risk is defined as the risk of potential loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people
and systems or from the impact of external events, including legal risks for the bank. Operational Risk is pervasive
across all the functions of the Bank and is influenced by all resources, including human resource, systems and
procedural designs, deployed by the Bank to carry out those functions. Operational Risk can be caused by both internal
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and external sources such as fraud, business interruptions, system failures, damage to physical infrastructure, failure
in execution and service delivery, inherent risks in products, customers, inadequacy in procedures or flawed process
designs, and business practices. The risk can occur in any business function or the business supporting functions.

The Bank is committed to be governed with a strong culture of risk management and ethical business practices and
therefore to averse it from potentially damaging operational risk events and is in a sound position to deal effectively
with those events that do occur. The actions of the board and senior management, and policies, processes and
systems provide the foundation for a sound risk management culture.

Bank seek to minimize our exposure to operational risk by use of key control standards, key control self-assessments
and key risk indicators as toolkits to identify, assess, monitor and control operational risk events through timely
acknowledgement of emerging threats and underlying vulnerabilities. The Bank shall also ensure highest level of
governance standards and adherence to Code of Conduct and robust compliance to all regulatory as well as the
Bank’s internal policy, procedures and guidelines.

The Bank has adopted dual control mechanism in its all-operational activities where each and every financial and
non-financial transaction is subject to approval from an authority higher than the transaction initiator. Regular
review meetings are conducted to assess the adequacy of risk monitoring mechanism and required changes are
made as and when felt necessary.

Effectivepolicies, proceduralguidelinesandstandard operating procedure are crucialtoolsforsoundriskmanagement.
Therefore, adequacy and effectiveness of the policies and procedures and their effective implementation is closely
monitored by the department to ensure that they have continuing relevance in line with regulatory requirement and
adjusts to dynamic risk environment of the industry

D. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial commitments that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. Hence the bank may be unable to meet its payment obligations when they
fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged diversified funding
sources in addition to its core deposit base, and adopted a policy of continuously managing assets with liquidity in mind
and of monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The bank has formulated separate internal control
processes and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows
and the availability of high-grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The Bank maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets assumed to be easily liquidated in the event
of an unforeseen interruption of expected cash flow. The Bank also has committed lines of credit that could be
utilized to meet liquidity needs. Further, the Bank maintains a statutory deposit with the Nepal Rastra Bank equal
to approx. 2.70% of customer local deposits. In accordance with the bank’s policy, the liquidity position is assessed
and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration to stress factors relating to both the market
in general and specific to the Bank. The most important of these is to maintain the required ratio of liquid assets to
liabilities, to meet the regulatory requirement. Liquid assets consist of cash, short-term bank deposits and liquid
debt securities available for immediate sale. Further the Statutory Liquid Assets Ratio of the Bank for the month of
Asar 31, 2080 is 22.30%.

E. Risk Governance

Bank has a policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level arising to the bank and has inculcated
risk culture among the employees by establishing ownership mentality, capacity building programs, well defined job
responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture.

Through its Risk Management Framework, the Bank seeks to efficiently manage credit, market and liquidity risks
which arise directly through the Bank’s activities as well as operational, regulatory and reputational risks which arise
as a normal consequence of any business undertaking.

5.2. Capital Management

Capital management approach is driven by its desire to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business and to meet the regulatory capital requirements. The Bank’s capital management policies and practices
support its business strategy and ensure that it is adequately capitalized to withstand even in severe macroeconomic
downturns. Sindhu Bikas Bank is a licensed institution providing financial services therefore it must comply with capital
requirement of central bank so called Nepal Rastra Bank. The Bank'’s capital consists of Tier I capital and Tier II capital.
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The bank is assessing capital adequacy as per the framework as provided in Unified Directive-2078, directive no.1 as

issued by the Nepal Rastra Bank.

The bank is calculating, assessing, analyzing & monitoring the capital adequacy periodically.

The Board shall be primarily responsible for ensuring the current and future capital needs of the bank in relation
to strategic objectives. The management shall review and understand the nature and level of various risks that
the bank is confronting in the course of different business activities and how this risk relates to capital levels and
accordingly implement sound risk management framework specifying control measures to tackle each risk factor.

a) Capital structure and capital adequacy
o Tier 1 Capital and a breakdown of its Components:

Particulars

FY 2079-80

FY 2078-79

Paid up Equity Share Capital

557,456,067

557,456,067

Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares

Share Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

43,914,210

43,914,210

Retained Earnings

(360,814,369.29)

(70,329,997)

Un-audited current year cumulative profit

Special Reserve Fund

Capital Adjustment Reserves

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Capital Redemption Reserves Fund

Deferred Tax Reserve

Less: Goodwill

Less: Intangible Assets

2,145,949

(2,165,490)

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

(18,233,371)

Less: Investment in equity of licensed Financial Institutions

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits

Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments

Less: Purchase of Land & Building in excess of limit & utilized

Less: Reciprocal crossholdings

Less: Other Deductions

Total Tier 1 Capital

238,428,704

510,660,165

o Tier 2 Capital and Breakdown of its Components:

Particulars

FY 2079-80

FY 2078-79

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

Subordinated Term Debt

Hybrid Capital Instruments

General loan loss provision

58,668,432

51,615,697

Exchange Equalization Reserves

Investments Adjustment Reserves

Assets Revaluation Reserves

Special Reserve Fund

Total Tier 2 Capital

58,668,432

56,585,525
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o Total Qualifying Capital:

Particulars FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79

Core Capital (Tier 1) 238,428,704 510,660,165
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 58,668,432 51,615,697
Total Capital Fund 297,097,137 562,275,861

Capital Adequacy Ratio:
Tier I Capital to Total Risk weighted exposures as on 16th July, 2023 is 5.44%

Total Capital Fund to Total Risk weighted exposures as on 16th July, 2023 is 6.78%

Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support current and future activities,
if applicable:

Sindhu Bikash Bank adopts healthy risk management framework. The bank follows Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICAAP) and Risk Management Guideline while taking decision on any business. It has always
taken note of ICAAP and has taken steps accordingly in ensuring soundness of capital position and sustainability of
the business. The bank’s policies and procedures are approved by the Board of Directors and these documents provide
guidance on independent identification, measurement and management of risks across various businesses. Bank’s
different committees like Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee review the business and risks periodically
and take account of stress test results, scenario analysis so as to align risk, return and capital in sustainable manner.

The bank also defines risk aspects, considering domestic economic scenario, and puts in place the system to minimize
and remove such risk. The risk appetite and approach towards risk taking is well discussed in management level and
board level. It is always aligned with the business, its return and capital. Basel disclosures have been complied with,
addressing the risks and adopting measures to minimize their impact. Increasing complexities in risks, weakness of
businesses and fast changing world with intense competition pose a threat to sustainability.

Capital planning is an integral part of the bank’s medium-term strategic planning and annual budget formulation
process. Total risk weighted exposures for the projected level of business operations is calculated, the required
capital level is projected, and a plan is formulated to retain the required capital. The bank is well capitalized and able
to maintain the required capital through internal generation, and equally through capital markets if needed.

b) Risk exposures

Risk Weighted Exposures FY 2079-80

Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 3,698,069,316
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 400,924,648
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk -
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before Bank's adjustment of Pillar II) 4,098,993,964

o Risk Weighted exposures under each 11 categories of Credit Risk:

Categories FY 2079-80

Claims on Government and Central Bank -
Claims on Other Financial Entities -
Claims on Banks 220,981,388
Claims on Domestic Corporate and Securities Firms 1,107,048,224
Claims on Regulatory Retail Portfolio & Other Retail Portfolio 161,703,316

Claims secured by residential properties

1,012,606,857

Claims secured by Commercial real estate

Past due claims 293,820,541
High Risk claims 382,790,205
Other Assets 517,743,786
Off Balance Sheet Items 1,375,000.00
Total 3,698,069,316
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o Total Risk Weight Exposures Calculation Table:
Risk Weighted Exposures FY 2079-80
Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 3,698,069,316
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 400,924,648
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk =
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before adjustments of Pillar II) 4,098,993,964.18
Adjustments under Pillar II
Add: Net liquid assets to total deposit ratio is not shortfall. -
Add: Overall risk management policies and procedures are not satisfactory. Add 2% of RWE 81,979,879
Add: Overall risk management policies and procedures are not satisfactory. Add 4% of RWE 163,959,759
Add: RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 2 % of gross income. 39,718,168
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustment of Pillar II) 4,384,651,770
Total Core Capital 238,428,704
Total Capital 297,097,137
o Amount of Non-Performing Assets (both Gross and Net):

Particulars Gross Amount (Rs) Loan Loss Provision (Rs) Net NPL (Rs)
Restructured 2,300,000.00 287,500.00 2,012,500.00
Sub-Standard 28,998,159.00 7,249,540.00 21,748,619.00
Doubtful 113,454,530.00 56,727,265.00 56,727,265.00
Loss 287,347,193.00 287,347,1930.00 -
Total 432,099,882.00 351,611,498.00 80,488,384.00

5.3. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
The financial assets and liabilities are classified in Amortized Cost, fair value through profit and loss and fair value
through other comprehensive income. The following table exhibit the classification of financial assets and liabilities:

Particulars As on 31st Asar 2080
Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Total

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 665,138,048 - 665,138,048
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 175,007,227 - 175,007,227
Placement with Bank and Financial Institu-tions - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - -
Other Trading Assets - - -
Loans and Advances to BFIs 493,727,509 - 493,727,509
Loans and Advances to Customers 3,268,406,331 - 3,268,406,331
Investment Securities 77,951,580 77,951,580
Investment in Subsidiaries - -
Investment in Associates - - -
Investment Property 53,034,175 - 53,034,175
Other Assets 104,447,278 - 104,447,278
Total Financial Assets 4,759,760,568 77,951,580 4,837,712,148

Financial Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Derivative Financial Instruments

Deposits from Customers

4,873,221,121

4,873,221,121

Borrowings 15,000,000 - 15,000,000
Other Liabilities 117,583,506 - 117,583,506
Debt Securities Issued - -

Total Financial Liabilities 5,005,804,627 - 5,005,804,627
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5.4. Operating Segment Information

1. General Information:

Factors that management used to identify the entity’s reportable segments

An operating segment is a component of the Bank that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenue and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Bank’s
other components, whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources allocated to each segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available. Based on the nature of the business, transactions, products and services, the management
have identified three reporting segments for the purpose of financial reporting:

2. Information about segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Particulars Kavre Sindhupalchok Dolakha Chitwan Makawanpur Total

CRS;’teO“n‘]’::Sf“’m ex-ternal 308,411,610 258,708,820 36,344,998 124,827,492 60,795,949 789,088,870
Inter Segment Expenses/revenues 22,067,066 98,045,468 15,808,781 1,767,871 - 137,689,186
Net Revenue 286,344,544 160,663,352 20,536,217 123,059,621 60,795,949 651,399,683
Interest revenue 247,253,127 169,231,897 30,598,282 108,936,081 45,831,116 601,850,503
Interest expense 143,075,828 155,909,122 40,430,262 57,145,010 15,089,062 411,649,283
Net interest expenses/revenue 102,842,026 13,322,775 -9,831,979 51,791,072 30,742,054 190,201,221
Depreciation and amortization 6,935,294 4,285,883 550,884 2,789,479 923,430 15,484,969
Segment profit /(loss) -67,143,885 -26,569,050 -6,452,578 -113,794,413 -79,797,881 293,757,807
Segment assets 1,591,656,010 2,845,800,054 598,258,198 228,076,785 63,703,720 5,327,494,767
Segment liabilities 4,651,147,574 243,681,064 59,986,061 32,876,011 18,113,917  5,005,804,627

3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

The transaction between the department is recorded using the inter branch and inter department account. These
accounts arereconciled and inter department balances are cancelled out at each reporting date. The inter department
revenue and expenses are the transfer pricing of the funds which is calculated using the bank’s policy.

4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

a. Revenue b. Profit or loss
Total revenues for reportable segments 789,088,870 Total profit or loss for reportable segments (293,757,807)
Other revenues - Other profit or loss -
Elimination of intersegment revenues (137,689,186) Elimination of intersegment profits -
Entity's revenues 651,399,683 Unallocated amounts:

Profit before income tax (293,757,807)

c. Assets d. Liabilities
Total assets for reportable segments 5,327,494,767 Total liabilities for reportable segments 5,005,804,627
Other assets - Other liabilities -
Unallocated amounts - Unallocated liabilities -
Entity’s assets 5,327,494,767 Entity’s liabilities 5,005,804,627

5. Information about geographical areas

Revenue from following geographical areas

Areas: Domestic
Province 1 -
Province 2 -
Province 3 651,399,683
Province 4 -
Province 5 -
Province 6 -
Province 7 -
Foreign -
Total 651,399,683
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6. Information about major customers
The bank does not have any customer, which generate more than 10% of the entity’s revenue.

5.5. Share options and share based payment

A share-based payment is a transaction in which the bank receives goods or services either as consideration for its
equity instruments or by incurring liabilities for amounts based on the price of the entity’'s shares or other equity
instruments of the entity. The bank does not have any share option and share based payment.

5.6. Contingent liabilities and commitment

Contingent Liabilities:

Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees issued, such as for
performance bonds or as irrevocable letters of credit as part of the Bank's transaction banking business for which an
obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are included in these financial statements
as contingent liabilities.

Other contingent liabilities primarily include revocable letters of credit and bonds issued on behalf of customers to
customs, for bids or offers.

Commitments:

Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form
of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Bank has not made
payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these financial statements as commitments.

Please refer Note No. 4.28.1 for the detail of contingent liabilities and commitments as at 16 July 2023.

Litigations:

The Bank has filed the legal case against the suspended staffs for the misutilization of the bank’s funds in Appellate
Court, Patan for the recovery of the fund. The Bank does not have any other litigation except the cases in ordinary
course of business. The Bank does not anticipate any financial liability in these pending lawsuits.

5.7. Related parties’ disclosures
a) List of Related Party
The following parties have been identified as the related party transaction as per NAS 24:

S.N. Name of the Related Party Relationship
1 Rajendra Kumar Shrestha Chairman
2 Neeva Dangol Shrestha Director
3 Sanjeeb Pradhan Director
4 Damodar Prasad Subedi Director
5 Basanta Kumar Katuwal Director
6 Sameer Kakshapati Director
7 Ram Kumar Giri Key Managerial Personnel
8 Ganesh Kumar Kc Key Managerial Personnel
9 Pramod Neupane Key Managerial Personnel
10 Rabin Kunwar Chettri Key Managerial Personnel
11 Ravi Kumar Upadhyaya Key Managerial Personnel

b) Related Party Transactions
Board of Directors Allowances and Facilities

S.N. Particulars No of Meetings Sitting Fees
1 Board Meeting 35 1,793,000
2 Audit Committee Meeting 4 28,000
3 Risk Management Committee 7 98,000
4 Assets Money Laundering Prevention Commit-tee 4 28,000
5 Others 4 28,000
Total 1,975,000
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In addition to above meeting allowance, the Chairman of the board and other member are entitled to allowance
for telephone expenses and newspaper expenses. The total amount of Rs.216,000.00 is paid during the year as
telephone and newspaper reimbursement to the board of directors.

Key Managerial Personnel Emoluments and Facilities

S.N. Particulars Amount
1 Short Term Employee Benefits 10,323,920.72
2 Retirement Benefits
3 Others

Total 10,323,920.72

In addition to above, the bank also provides other facilities like telephone as per the approved employee facilities of
the bank.

5.8. Merger and acquisition
The bank has neither entered into merger nor acquired any bank and financial institutions.

5.9. Non-Banking Assets
Non-Banking Assets are the assets obtained as security for loans & advances and subsequently taken over by the

Bank in the course of loan recovery.

List of Non-Banking Assets:

S.N. Name of Borrower Date of assum-ing NBA Total amount of Non-Banking Assets (Rs.)
1. SHILASHILA TRADERS COMPANY PVT. LTD 2021/09/20 53,034,175

5.10. Additional disclosure of non-consolidated entities:

a) Accrued Interest: As per the directive 4/77(3) issued by Nepal Rastra Bank the accrued interest received up to
15th Shrawan 2080 amounting to Rs. 17,949,728.30 has been adjusted in the regulatory reserve. However, the
interest suspense as on Ashad end 2080 was Rs.53,929,034.

b) Previous year adjustments of amount Rs. 4,115,242 were made and were transferred from retained earnings to
following heads during the year.

Particulars Amount
ROU Asset 953,939.65
Lease Liabilities 3,161,302.35

5.11. Events after reporting period

A. Impairment Charges/Reversal for loans and Advances

The Bank has measured impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms
prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39. The
Nepal Rastra Bank’s Directives No. 2, inter alia requires to bank to classify the loans and advances based on the due
dates. In calculating the due dates, the bank has considered the recovery on installment and interest made after the
reporting period and up to 15th Shrawan 2080. There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 16
July, 2023 till the signing of this financial statement on 13th January 2024 (Poush 29, 2080).

5.12. Comparative Figures

Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year's
presentation.
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Comparison Unaudited and Audited Financial
Statements as of FY 2079/80
- per - per Variance
Statement of Financial Position F’?:::;gl uF?s::::ti:? Reasons for Variance
Statement  Statement  LMamount In%

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 665,138,048 665,138,048 0.00%
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 175,007,227 175,007,227 - 0.00%
Placement with Bank and Financial i i i i
Institutions
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Other Trading Assets 246,464,250 246,464,250 - 0.00%
Loans and Advances to BFIs 493,727,509 493,727,509 - 0.00%
Loans and Advances to Customers 3,268,406,331 3,557,085,351 288,679,020 8.83% LLP Adjustment
Investment Securities 78,164,961 213,381 0.27%
Current Tax Assets 6,943,059 16,656,476 9,713,417 139.90% ch:‘r‘:ﬁtCL‘ﬁmg of Tax iakiEvet
Investment in Subsidiaries - - - -
Investment in Associates - - - -
Investment Property 53,034,175 53,034,175 - 0.00%
Property and Equipment 221,845,063 221,845,063 - 0.00%
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 2,145,949 2,145,949 - 0.00%
Deferred Tax Assets 12384208 12,574,206 189,007 1.53% ;Leraat::ﬁgﬁy°f6rat”“ya“d leave as
Other Assets 104,447,278 147,856,389 43,409,111 41.56% Due to Treatment of ROU Assets
Total Assets 5,327,494,767 5,669,699,604 342,204,836 6.42%
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Deposits from Customers 4,873,221,121 4,873,221,138 17 0.00%
Borrowings 15,000,000 15,000,000 - 0.00%

Due to clubbing of Tax liability of
Current Tax Liabilities _ 8769646 8169646  0.00% ;‘:]L“zggﬁ;re"l’:x‘::‘eﬁ;‘:;i'}faﬁ'l’l‘lgsset

due to change in profit before tax.
Provisions - - - 0.00%
Deferred Tax Liabilities - - - 0.00%
Other Liabilities 117,583,506 145,283,910 27,700,404  23.56% Adjustment made in Lease Liability
Debt Securities Issued - - - -
Subordinated Liabilities - - - -
Total Liabilities 5,005,804,627 5,041,674,694 35,870,067 0.72%
Equity
Share Capital 557,456,067 557,456,067 - 0.00%
Share Premium - - - 0.00%
Retained Earnings (360,814,369)  (76,496,620) 284,317,749  -78.80%
Reserves 125,048,442 147,065,463 22,017,020 17.61%
L‘;ﬁﬁ';g”ity Attributable to Equity 321,690,140 628,024,910 306,334,770
Total Liabilities and Equity 5,327,494,767 5,669,699,604 342,204,837
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As per As per Variance
Statement of Profit or Loss FI?:::\t;:I u;;s::(':ti:f R, o Reasons for Variance
Statement Statement

Interest Income 601,850,503 600,515,230 (1,335,274) -0.22%
Interest Expense 411,649,283 411,649,283 0.00%
Net Interest Income 190,201,221 188,865,947 (1,335,274)  -0.70%
Fee and Commission Income 19,596,857 19,596,857 - 0.00%
Fee and Commission Expense 3,550,040 3,550,040 - 0.00%
Net Fee and Commission Income 16,046,817 16,046,817 - 0.00%
I“:‘ectome’e“' Fee and Commisson 206,248,038 204,912,764  (1,335274)  -0.65%
Net Trading Income - - - -
Other Operating Income 3,102,502 3,102,502 - 0.00%
Total Operating Income 209,350,540 208,015,266 (1,335,274) -0.64%
impairment Charge/ (Reversal) for 319,113,840 12,667,907 (306,445933)  -96% Due to adjustments
Net Operating Income (109,763,301) 195,347,358 305,110,659 -277.97%
Operating Expenses
Personnel Expenses 92,469,956 94,779,087 2,309,131 2.50% E#:ntg"el(m:‘: tf(')g:éjeu‘;‘m‘:;;’:as
Other Operating Expenses 62,594,929 57,851,149 (4,743,780) -7.58% Due to Adjustment in Lease expenses
Depreciation & Amortisation 15,484,969 15,484,969 - 0.00%
Operating Profit (280,313,155) 27,232,153 307,545,308 -109.71%
Non Operating Income - - - -
Non Operating Expense - - - -
Profit Before Income Tax (280,313,155) 27,232,153 307,545,308 -109.71%
Income Tax Expense - 0.00%

Current Tax 9,713,418 8,169,646 (1,543,772)  -15.89% Due to change in Profit before Tax

Deferred Tax 3,731,234 5,659,165 1,927,930  51.67%
Profit for the Period (293,757,807) 13,403,342 307,161,149 -104.56%
Profit/(loss) for the period (293,757,807) 13,403,342 307,161,149 -104.56% Due to adjustments
Other Comprehensive Income 4,941,622 11,621,185 6,679,563  135.17% Due to adjustments
Total comprehensive income (288,816,186) 25,024,527 313,840,713 -108.66%
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Principal Indicators of last 5 Financial Year
Bank
FY2075-76 FY2076-77 FY2077-78 FY2078-79 FY 2079-80
SN Particulars Unit
As per NFRS

1 Net Profit/ Gross Income Percent 13.40% 3.01% -2.49% 9.85% -47.04%
2 Earning Per Share NPR 8.12 2.06 (1.85) 8.31 (52.70)
3 Market Value Per Share NPR 144.00 134.00 401.00 268.20 279.00
4 Price Earning Ratio Ratio 17.72 65.10 (217.12) 32.29 (5.29)
5 Dividend (Including Bonus) Share Capital Percent 12.09% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
6 Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent 0.60% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
7 Interestincome / Loans & Advances Percent 14.08% 14.15% 9.71% 11.19% 14.85%
8 Staff Expenses / Total Operating Expenses Percent 25.76% 21.32% 22.06% 21.36% 15.79%
9 Interest Expenses/ Total Deposit & Borrowings Percent 5.70% 6.36% 4.63% 5.84% 8.42%
10 Exchange Gain/Total Income 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
11 Staff Bonus/Total Staff Expenses Percent 9.54% 2.26% 0.00% 8.73% 0.00%
12 NetProfit/Loans & Advances Percent 2.01% 0.45% -0.29% 1.16% -7.19%
13 Net Profit/ Total Assets Percent 1.25% 0.29% -0.21% 0.83% -5.51%
14 Total Credit/ Deposits Percent 77.43% 76.43% 85.56% 83.45% 83.85%
15 Total Operation Expenses/Total Assets Percent 2.73% 8.49% 6.73% 7.95% 10.99%

16 Capital Adequacy (On Risk Weighted Assets)
(a) Core Capital Percent 24.40% 21.48% 12.21% 11.55% 5.44%
(b) Supplementary Capital Percent 1.26% 1.19% 1.25% 1.17% 1.34%
(c) Total Capital Fund Percent 25.66% 22.67% 13.46% 12.72% 6.78%
17 Cash Reserve Ratio Percent 4.72% 4.49% 3.98% 2.70% 3.95%
18 Non- Performing Loan / Loans & Advances Percent 1.61% 1.96% 2.80% 1.60% 10.52%
19 Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread 6.98% 5.74% 4.96% 4.97% 4.59%
20 Book Value Net Worth Per Share NPR 119.87 109.42 106.73 110.25 57.71
21 Number of Equity Shares Nos. 5,000,273 5,574,561 5,574,561 5,574,561 5,574,561
22 Number of Permanent Staffs Nos. 143 163 151 136 150
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Branch & Ext. Counter Details

1. Barhabise

Harisharan Thapa

Branch Manager
harisharan.thapa@sindhubank.com.np
011-489245/46

2. Banepa

Dipendra Lamsal

Branch Manager
dipendra.lamsal@sindhubank.com.np
011-662340/41

3. Melamchi

Sitaram Dulal

Branch Manager
sitaram.dulal@sindhubank.com.np
011401007

4. Khadichaur

Bishowa Tamang

Branch Manager
bishowa.tamang@sindhubank.com.np
011-4821438

5. Dolalghat

Reena Bhandari

Acting Branch Manager
reena.bhandari@sindhubank.com.np
011-498200/01

6. Mude

Roshan Shrestha

Branch Manager
roshan.shrestha@sindhubank.com.np
9843489046

7. Sukute

Jeevan Shrestha

Branch Manager/Cluster Head
jeevan.shrestha@sindhubank.com.np
011-400033

8. Sipaghat

Bhakta Ram Dulal

Branch Manager
bhakta.dulal@sindhubank.com.np
011-422006/007

9. Bhakunde

Sabin Shrestha

Acting Branch Manager
sabin.shrestha@sindhubank.com.np
011-404120/12

940

10. Panchkhal

Nil Prasad Banjara

Branch Manager
nil.banjara@sindhubank.com.np
011-499353/54

11. Charikot

Jeewan Khanal

Branch Manager
jeewan.khanal@sindhubank.com.np
049-421979

12. Chautara

Shiva Shankar Kharel

Branch Manager
shiva.kharel@sindhubank.com.np
011-620429

13. Singati

Takendra Magar

Acting Branch Manager
takendra.magar@sindhubank.com.np
049-410034

14. Sildhunga Ext. Counter

Laxman Shrestha

Operation In-charge
laxman.shrestha@sindhubank.com.np
9851100791

15. Jalbire

Enosh Paudyal

Acting Branch Manager
enosh.paudyal@sindhubank.com.np
011-403006

16. Panauti

Rupak Bastakoti

Branch Manager
rupak.bastakoti@sindhubank.com.np
011-440175/76

17. Tandi

Sachit Sharma Poudel

Acting Branch Manager
sachit.poudel@sindhubank.com.np
056-563144/494335

18. Parsa

Sagar Lamsal

Acting Branch Manager
sagar.lamsal@sindhubank.com.np
056-583145

19. Palung

Basanta Thapa

Branch Manager
basanta.thapa@sindhubank.com.np
057-400026

20. Bikashchowk

Rajendra Adhikari

Branch Manager
rajendra.adhikari@sindhubank.com.np
056-418212/13

21. Narayanghat

Krishna Prasad Dahal

Branch Manager
krishna.dahal@sindhubank.com.np
056-595561/595761

22. Chanauli

Januka Kshetri

Operation In-charge
januka.kshetri@sindhubank.com.np
056-592128

23. Hetauda

Sumitra Bhusal

Branch Manager
sumitra.bhusal@sindhubank.com.np
057-520118

24. Thokarpa

Surendra Upadhaya

Branch Manager
surendra.upadhaya@sindhubank.com.np
9849261431

25. Lamosanghu

Rojisha Parajuli

Operation In-charge
rojisha.parajuli@sindhubank.com.np
011-495056/57

26. Kholesimal

Manoj Pathak

Branch Manager
manoj.pathak@sindhubank.com.np
056-494050/51



I )

9

X
%

4 Notes

149



 SindhuBikash Bank Lt
P o e dep o,




I )

9

X
%

4 Notes




 SindhuBikash Bank Lt
P o e dep o,




cIIaIAMeT AlAld

AEar fASIfeTor
U o gfafer UAH 3Medlch AETGIT UAE TS TH



& SindhuBikash Bank Lt.
Y RcE] APy dab faT.

AU AL FFAE G AR TS TH T FL)
(@i=r foree ST ST

UelTel BIIferd- digfad), fisEUiediic, aureT |
PHURET HIfcI- Foldl, BIdUcToTD | Blel of.: 099-§&3380/89/59
Email: info@sindhubank.com.np






